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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders:
1.1 Business Result in 2018
The Company continues to grow at a steady pace this year. In accordance
with our business plan, the Company has achieved its operational
objectives with the help of your continuous support.
(1) Results of Execution of 2018 Business Plan
The Company continues to focus on projects in the three major areas of
pain management, ophthalmology and oncology this year. The main
achievements are summarized below.
A. TLC599, a BioSeizer sustained release formulation of
dexamethasone sodium phosphate (DSP) intended for the
treatment of osteoarthritis (OA) pain, met primary endpoint and
key secondary endpoints in its Phase II trial. The primary
endpoint is the change from baseline in the WOMAC (Western
Ontario and McMaster Universities Osteoarthritis Index) pain
subscale through Week 12. TLC599 12mg demonstrated
statistically significant pain reduction compared to placebo from
Day 3 through Week 12, meeting the primary endpoint. TLC599
12mg also showed statistically significant pain reduction
compared to placebo from Day 3 through Week 16, Week 20, and
Week 24 which are key secondary endpoints. Data from the
24-week study showed TLC599 to be well tolerated, with
comparable frequency of treatment-related adverse events for
both doses of TLC599 and placebo. Most adverse events were
mild and there were no treatment-related serious adverse events.
B. TLC590, a non-opioid BioSeizer sustained release formulation of
ropivacaine for post-surgical pain management, has started a
first-in-human clinical trial enrollment after clearance of its IND
application with the FDA. This randomized, double-blind,
comparator-controlled, dose escalation phase I/II clinical trial
assesses the safety, tolerability and pharmacokinetic profile of
TLC590 compared to free, non-liposomal ropivacaine when
given as a single infiltrative local administration in adult patients
following inguinal hernia repair surgery. The trial is taking place
in the United States and will enroll approximately 64 evaluable
patients across four cohorts.
1

C. ProDex™/TLC399, a BioSeizer formulation of DSP intended as
an intravitreal, or in-eye, injection for the treatment of macular
edema due to RVO, continues recruitment in the U.S for its Phase
II clinical trial. The patients are gauged for visual acuity, safety,
tolerability and retinal thickness after a single intravitreal
injection with a one-year follow-up period.
D. TLC178, a NanoX liposomal formulation of vinorelbine, has
received IND clearance from the FDA to initiate a pediatric
Phase I/II clinical trial in rhabdomyosarcoma (RMS). TLC178
received a Rare Pediatric Disease Designation last year from the
FDA for the treatment of RMS. Due to the rarity of RMS, the
FDA has agreed with the Company’s plan to first enroll all types
of pediatric refractory or relapsed sarcoma patients to evaluate
the safety and tolerability of TLC178 in combination with
low-dose oral cyclophosphamide in Part 1 of the trial; this
approach will also explore the potential activity of TLC178 in
patients with various pediatric sarcomas. Part 2 of the trial will
then evaluate the antitumor activity of TLC178 in combination
with low-dose oral cyclophosphamide in pediatric patients with
relapsed or refractory RMS.
In terms of operations, the Company, for the fourth consecutive year, was
ranked in the top 5% of all TWSE- and TPEx- listed companies in the
annual Corporate Governance Evaluation. 861 TWSE-listed companies
and 675 TPEx-listed companies were evaluated, with the top 5% being
the highest ranking group. Among the total of 1,536 companies, only 33
made the top 5% for the fourth consecutive year; TLC was among the few
to be honored with this recognition. These extraordinary achievements
reflect on the Company's unyielding efforts to improve corporate
governance and information disclosure, as well as its high regard for the
interests of all shareholders.
(2) Research and Development in 2018
Progress of the Company’s drug R&D activities in 2018 is
summarized as follows:
A. TLC599 showed positive top-line data from Phase II clinical trial
in knee osteoarthritis pain, meeting primary endpoint and key
secondary endpoints.
B. We have submitted an end of Phase II meeting request with the
FDA to discuss requirements for Phase III study.
C. TLC590 started Phase I/II recruitment in the U.S.
D. We submitted an IND and received clearance from the FDA for a
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pediatric Phase I/II clinical trial in rhabdomyosarcoma (RMS).
E. TLC599 has been patented for “Method of Treating Arthritis” in
Australia and New Zealand.
F. ProDex™/TLC399 has been patented for “Ophthalmic Drug
Delivery System Containing Phospholipid and Cholesterol” in
Canada and Europe.
G. ProDex™/TLC399 has been patented for “Pharmaceutical
Compositions To Reduce Complications of Ocular Steroid “ in
Taiwan, Hong Kong, China, Russia, Europe and the United
States.
(3) Results of Execution of 2018 Budget：NA

1.2 Annual Plan in 2019
(1) Business Strategies

The Company will continue to focus on its two main technology
platforms of sustained release delivery and targeted delivery. With
experience and expertise in LipAD™, or Lipid-Assembled Delivery,
the company will systemically expand applications of the two
platforms as well as their patents.
The know-how of modifying platforms and optimizing formulations
in dealing with various drugs and diseases, alongside continuous
patent filings, help to shorten the R&D process, reduce costs and
risks, and ensure profitability after the product hits the market.
In addition, the Company will develop more products in the areas of
pain management, ophthalmology and oncology by utilizing its own
or other companies’ technologies or drugs to fulfill unmet medical
needs.
In line with the “One IND every 18 months” strategy, the Company
will steadily commercialize its R&D results to meet its business
strategic goals.
(2) Key production and distribution strategies
A. Operation planning and production and distribution strategies
a. Create turnkey solutions to increase the scale of its
production and work with domestic and foreign GMP
manufacturers with respect to such production.
b. Enhance human resources management in each of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Make use of the resources available
to the Company so as to allow the Company to become
familiarized with local laws, regulations and medical needs,
3

which will improve its position when submitting MAAs to
local governments and applying for government subsidies.
The subsidiaries received by the Company should help the
Company form a closer relationship with its local business
partners, from which the Company can better identify local
market trends.
c. Enlarge production and distribution network through
different product distribution strategies in order to reduce
operating risks.
B. Research and product development strategies
a. Focus on developing and commercializing LipAD™.
b. Extend products into other indications by exploring market
needs and trends.
c. Attract pharmaceutical companies to enter into technical
collaboration arrangements with the results of its product
development. More collaboration opportunities for the
Company mean the Company can observe relevant markets
more closely and as a result develop products that cater to
each market. Through this collaboration scheme, the costs
can be shared with cooperation partner(s), and the access of
the product to the relevant markets is also secured with such
scheme, which will significantly reduce R&D costs and risks.
By cooperating with international pharmaceutical companies,
the Company will be able to increase its R&D capacity.
d. Improve technology to develop derivative drugs by
combining the Company's know-how with that of other
companies through technical collaboration.

1.3 Future Corporate Strategy
The Company strives to improve upon original drug properties to achieve
less toxicity, fewer side effects, and higher or longer efficacy through its
drug delivery systems and formulation designs. The company will not
only emphasize on developing products which address unmet market
needs on its own, but also assist international pharmaceutical companies
with problems they encounter in developing new drugs, providing
assistance to these companies with research on particular drugs or
technology, and collaborating with them in developing new products.
Through these technical collaborative relationships, the Company will be
able to bring good to patients who are suffering from related illness.
4

1.4 External Impacts on Corporate Operating
By modifying existing drugs, New Formulation drugs came into the
international spotlight in recent years for their relatively lower
development risks, shorter time-to-market, existing markets, and most
importantly, patentability. With its pipeline filled with New Formulation
drugs, Taiwan Liposome Company is well positioned to take advantage of
the trend.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Chairman of the Board: Keelung Hong
General Manager: George Yeh
Head of the Accounting Dept.: Nicole Lin
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II. Company Profile
1. Date of Incorporation: The Company was founded on Nov. 10th 1997.
2. Company History:
1997

1997-2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Seed-round of financing of $26,995,000 from Dr. Hong and TTY
Biopharm.
1. Conducted preclinical animal experiments in NTUH for
Lipo-Dox.
2. Conducted preclinical trial in NTUH for Lipo-Dox.
3. Conducted preclinical animal experiments for Lipo-AB
4. Technology transfer and authorization to TTY Biopharm of
Lipo-Dox and Lipo-AB。
1. Awarded the "Rising Star Award" by the Ministry of
Economic Affairs (MOEA), Taiwan.
2. Lipo-Dox has been approved as the prescription medication
for Ovarian Cancer.
Raised NT$45,500,000 in capital, to a total of NT$72,495,000.
Including cash increase NT$20,931,800, other assets of
NT$22,750,000, convertible bonds NT$1,818,200.
1. Setup scale-up production in GMP plant.
2. Expanded operation and relocated to Nangang Software Park.
Raised NT$53,000,000 in capital, to a total of NT$125,495,000.
1. Awarded "2004 Technology Transfer Gold Award" by Taipei
City Government, Taiwan.
2.Scale-up and Phase I Clinical Trial conducted for NanoVNB
3. Clinical trial of NanoVNB® at NTUH.
1. Dr. Keelung Hong, Chairman, awarded "Advanced Skill
Innovation Award" of Industrial Technology Advancement
(ITA) Award by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA),
Taiwan.
2. Awarded "2005 Research and Development Innovation Gold
Award" by Taipei City Government, Taiwan.
3. Established TLC Biopharmaceuticals and lab in the U.S..
4. Filed patent for Lipotecan.
5. Conducted preclinical animal experiments for Lipotecan
1. Raised NT$486,000 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$125,981,000.
2. Raised NT$7,176,000 in capital by exercising stock option, to
a total of NT$133,157,000.
1. NanoVNB entered phase II clinical trial
2. Filed patent for TLC-X99.
3. Awarded "2006 Research and Development Innovation Silver
Award" by Taipei City Government, Taiwan
1. Raised NT$60,843,000 in capital, to a total of
NT$194,000,000.
1. Awarded Red Herring Asia Top 100 Company
2. Awarded "2007 Technology Commercialization Gold Award"
by Taipei City Government, Taiwan
3. Filed patent for ProFlow (TLCe01).
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2008

2009

2010

4. Set up Preclinical PK and toxicity labs in the Incubation
Center of Genomics Research Center, Academia Sinica.
5. Holding 100% ownership of TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc..
1. Raised NT$449,000 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$ 194,449,000.
2. Raised NT$12,400,000 in capital from stock exchange, to a
total of NT$206,849,000.
3. Wrote off treasury stock NT$6,305,710, the total capital after
capital decrease was NT$ 200,543,290.
4. Raised NT$3,811,200 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$204,354,490.
1. Qualified by MOEA as a biotech company involved in NCE
development, TLC is thus entitled to related subsidies.
2. IND for Lipotecan (TLC388) was filed and approved by US
FDA, the 1st anti-cancer NCE from Taiwan to achieve this
milestone.
3. Lipotecan entered Phase I Clinical Trial in U.S. and Taiwan.
4. NanoVNB entered phase II clinical trial for colorectal cancer.
5. GMP production of ProFlow.
1. Winner in the "Innovations in Product/System" category of
"Industrial Innovation Achievement Award"
2. Awarded "2009 Research and Development Innovation Gold
Award" by Taipei City Government, Taiwan, for Lipotecan.
3. Received the "Gold Award" from DOH, MOEA, for
NanoVNB®.
1. Raised NT$261,000 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$204,615,490.
2. Raised NT$80,915,500 by issuing prefer stock, , to a total of
NT$285,530,990.
3. Raised NT$1,657,200 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$287,188,190.
1. Winner of the 6th Taiwan Nano Achievers Award, for
ProFlow.
2. Established TLC Biopharmaceuticals B.V. in Leiden Science
Park, The Netherlands
1. Raised NT$2,252,600 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$289,440,790.
2. Raised NT$2,739,500, in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$292,180,290 元。
1. Listed on Emerging Market in Taiwan Stock Exchange (ticker
number:4152).
2. Drug approval granted for ProFlow in Taiwan.

2011

2012

1. Raised NT$47,114,250 in capital from Employee Stock
Option plan, to a total of NT$339,294,540.
2. Raised NT$5,450,660 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$344,745,200.
3. Raised NT$44,117,650 in capital from Employee Stock
Option plan, to a total of NT$388,862,850.
4. Raised NT$2,142,880 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$391,005,730.
1. Collaboration with Teva Pharmaceuticals.
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2013

2014

2015

2. Publicly listed on Gretai Securities Market in Taiwan on 21
Dec, 2012.
1.Raised NT$1,914,180,880 in capital from Employee Stock
Option plan, to a total of NT$392,919,910.
2. Raised NT$790,080,880 in capital from Employee Stock
Option plan, to a total of NT$393,709,990.
3. Raised NT$46,220,000 in capital, to a total of
NT$439,929,990.
1. Collaboration with SciClone, Sandoz, SamchunDang Pharm
Co., Ltd. and Yung Shin Pharmaceuticals for different
products.
2. Winner of "Potential Star Award" in Taipei Biotech Award.
3. Drug approval and NHI pricing granted for AmBiL in Taiwan,
product launched in July.
4. Lipotecan was accepted into Green Path by CFDA.
1. Raised NT$766,310 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$440,696,300.
2. Raised NT$100,000,000 in capital, to a total of
NT$540,696,300.
3. Raised NT$884,230 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$541,580,530.
4. Raised NT$4,707,410 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$546,287,940.
1. Collaboration with Ablynx N.V.
2. AmBiL, a super generic product, applied for market approval
in 24 EU member states.
3. To establish Xinzhu branch office.
4. To establish a subsidiary in HK, TLC Biopharmaceuticals
(H.K.) Limited, and reinvested in TLC Biopharmaceuticals
(Shanghai) Limited.
5. Lipotecan approved to phase II clinical study by CFDA.
6. To establish a subsidiary in Australia, TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd.
1. Raised NT$1,264,480 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$547,552,420.
2. Raised NT$1,109,370 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$548,661,790.
3. Raised NT$3,070,000 in capital from Restricted Stock Awards
plan, to a total of NT$551,098,610.
4. Raised NT$1,366,820 in capital from Employee Stock Option
plan, to a total of NT$553,098,610.
5. Raised NT$430,000 in capital from Restricted Stock Awards
plan, to a total of NT$553,528,610.
1. To establish a subsidiary in Japan, TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Japan Co., Ltd.
2. Received the highest A++ rating from the 12th Publicly Traded
and TPEX Company Information Evaluation. The first
3. Corporate governance evaluation results ranked the Company
as one of the top 5 TPEX companies in Taiwan.
4. Arthritis’s new formulation drug, TLC599, approved to
conduct phase I/II clinical studies on human by TFDA.
5. To license out the distribution rights of AmBiL® in Hong
Kong and Macau areas to Main Life Corporation.
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2016

2017

2018

2019

1. The second corporate governance evaluation results ranked the
Company as one of the top 5 TPEX companies.
2. TLC178, the oncology drug of new dosage form, has received
approvals for Phase-I/-II clinical trials on humans from the
Taiwan FDA and the U.S. FDA. TLC178 has also been
granted the orphan drug status in the U.S. for the treatment of
cutaneous T-cell lymphoma (CTCL).
3. Withdrew the sales rights for Doxisome, the anti-cancer super
generics, in the U.S.
1. TLC599, the new-dosage-form arthritis medication, received
approval for Phase-II clinical trials on humans from TFDA
and the Australian Therapeutic Goods Administration (TGA).
2. TLC178 has been designated as a drug for a rare pediatric
disease in the treatment of rhabdomyosarcoma(RMS) and
received an orphan drug designation for the treatment of soft
tissue sarcoma by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(FDA).
3. The third corporate governance evaluation results ranked the
Company as one of the top 5 TPEx companies.
4. TFDA approved on November, 2017 to rename AmBiL to
Ampholipad.
1. The forth corporate governance evaluation results ranked the
Company as one of the top 5 TPEx companies.
2. TLC590, the new-dosage-form arthritis medication, received
approval for Phase-I/II clinical trials on humans from FDA.
3. TLC178, a NanoX liposomal formulation of vinorelbine, has
received IND clearance from the FDA to initiate a pediatric
Phase I/II clinical trial in rhabdomyosarcoma.
4. To issue ADR in Nasdaq.
1. TLC590, the new-dosage-form arthritis medication, received
approval for Phase II clinical trials on humans from FDA.
2. European Medicine Agency grants Orphan Drug Designation
to TLC178 for the treatment of soft tissue sarcoma.
3. Commercialization Corporation with Hongkong Sansheng
Medical Limited
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III. Corporate Governance Report
3.1

Organization

3.1.1 Organization Chart
Shareholders’ Meeting
Supervisors

Audit
Committee

Board

Compensation
Committee

Internal Audit
Chairman

President
GM’s Office

Research &

Quality

Product

Corporate

Manufacturing

Development

Assurance

Development

Development

Development

Division

Division

Division

Division

Division

Administration
Division

3.1.2 Major Corporate Functions
Division
General Manager Office

Internal Audit

Research & Development

Functions
1.Make high-level decisions on policy and strategy and report to BoD
2. Provide executive leadership across an organization and develop
its culture and vision
3. Develop an organizational environment that promotes positive
staff morale and performance
4. Shape market opportunities and solidifying a company’s position
in the marketplace
1. Investigating and evaluate internal control and other managerial
measures
2. Planning and conducting internal control and projects
1. Coordinate the activities of pharmaceutical research team,
pharmaceutical development team and analytical team including
internal resources and external partners.
2. Direct the worldwide strategic direction and operations of
technology and pipeline development function.
3. Lead a process with a translational medicine discipline to
accelerate “bench to bedside” pipeline progress.
4. Drive Research and Clinical Development strategy with the head
of functional teams, including assessment of pipeline for in- or
out-licensing.
5. Instruct acquisition and management of intellectual property right
upon the strategic direction.
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Division
Quality Assurance

Product Development

Corporate Development

Manufacturing Development

Administration

Functions
6. Improve document management rules and build new system.
1. Review and approve RD document for the internal RD,
CMO/CRO study and QA related activities
2. Approve the batch release and clinical study drug packing and
labeling
3. Supplier qualification/inspection (raw material supplier, courier)
4. Company QA system set up/maintenance, SOP approval
5. Company documentation management
1. Responsible for market analysis of new drug candidates that meet
unmet medical needs
2. Oversee new drug development and ensure regulatory compliance
3. Lead the development of clinical and non-clinical strategies for
new drug programs
4. Manage the design and execution of clinical study protocols
5. Manage the design and execution of clinical pharmacokinetics
study protocols
6. Manage the design and execution of toxicology, pharmacokinetics,
and pharmacodynamics studies
1. Develop business strategy and planning.
2. Lead partnering opportunities’ assessment, negotiation and
execution.
3. Establish project management’s responsibilities and functionalities
in supporting R&D pipeline.
4. Develop and execute Regulatory filing and approval’s strategy,
planning, and processes.
5. Oversee legal operation, contract preparation and management.
1.Set up manufacturing process lab for scale up development and
optimization
2.Manage Hsinchu lab operations, ensure the lab complies with
Heath, Safety and Environment laws
3.Manage CMO site operations for commercialization to ensure
schedule, cost and quality goals are met
4.Assist in reviewing CMO documents for commercial product
5.Involved in CMO selection
6.Coordinating Actions of Production efficiency Improvement,
Quality Improvement and Corrective Actions
1. Central monitor for operating strategy, goals, and budgets.
2. Human resources planning, human management system set-up and
operating, and education training.
3. Management information system planning and digitalizing internal
work flow.
4. General affairs and environment safety planning.
5. Financial planning and cash management.
6. Accounting system planning.
7. Shareholder services.
8. Internal control system set-up and review.
9. Establishing and revising internal regulations.
10. Annual business plan summary and variance analysis.
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3.2

Directors, Supervisors and Management Team

3.2.1

Directors and Supervisors
February 24, 2019
Date

Nationality/Place

Title

of Registration

Name

Gender

First
Elected

Chairman

R.O.C.

Director

R.O.C.

Representative
of Director

R.O.C.

Keelung Hong

Taiwan Global
Biofund(TGB)

Hong-Jen Chang

Male 06/27/2003

Term Date
(Years) Elected

Current

when Elected

Shareholding

Shares

3

05/31/2017

N/A 05/31/2017

3

05/31/2017

Male 06/26/2007

3

05/31/2017

Spouse &

Shareholding

％

1,208,105 2.17%

2,987,372 5.36%

0

0

Shares

1,330,883

2,487,372

0

％

2.08%

Shareholding
by Nominee

Minor

Arrangement

Shareholding

（Education）

Other Position

Shares ％ Shares ％

0

0

0

3.88%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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Experience

BS in Chemistry,
National Cheng Kung
University
0 PhD in Chemistry,
UCSF
Chairman of TLC
CEO of TLC

Executives, Directors
or Supervisors who are
spouses or within two
degrees of kinship
Title

Name

Relation

1.CEO of Taiwan
Liposome Company,
LTD.
None
2. Chairman and CEO of
TLC
Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

1. Director of Medeon
Bio Company
2.Director of Somnics,
Inc.
3. Director of iXensor
Inc
0 N/A
4.Director of HenKan
Pharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd.
5.Director of MiCareo
Inc.
6.Director of NeuroSky,
Inc.
1. Director of NeuroSky
MS in Medical Policy 2. Director of MiCareo,
and Management,
Inc.
Harvard University
3. Director of iXensor,
0
Deputy Minister,
Inc.
Ministry of Health and 4. Chairman and
Welfare
President of Taiwan
Global Biofund

Date

Nationality/Place

Title

of Registration

Name

Gender

First
Elected

Director

U.S.A.

Burrill Life
N/A 06/26/2009
Sciences Capital

Term Date
(Years) Elected

Current

when Elected

Shareholding

Shares

3

05/31/2017

Spouse &

Shareholding

％

5,187,921 9.31

Shares

Minor

5,187,921 8.100

Experience

Arrangement

Shareholding

％
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Shareholding
by Nominee

（Education）

Shares ％ Shares ％

0

0

0

Other Position

Executives, Directors
or Supervisors who are
spouses or within two
degrees of kinship
Title

N/A

5. Director of YFY
Biotech Entrepreneur
Company
6. Director of TaiGen
Biotechnology Holding
Company
7. Director of TaiGen
Biotechnology Company
8. Chairman of MiCareo
Inc.
9. Director of Taiwan
Genome Sciences, Inc.
10. Chairman of
YaxiangBioMedicine
Company
11.Director, AP
Biosciences, Inc
12. Director, iXensor Inc
13. Director, Medeon
International, Inc.
14. Director, Medeon
Bio Company
15. Director, Sunny
Pharma Holding Limited
16. Director, Sunny
PharmTech Company
17. Director, Mycemax
Biotech Inc.
18. Director, Excelsior
Biopharma Inc.
Company
19. Director, Twi
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
20. Director, Abprotix
Inc.
1. AliveCor - Board of
None
Director

Name

Relation

None

None

Date

Nationality/Place

Title

of Registration

Name

Gender

First
Elected

Term Date
(Years) Elected

Spouse &

Shareholding

Current

when Elected

Shareholding

Shares

Shares

％

Minor

Shareholding
by Nominee

Experience

Arrangement

Shareholding

（Education）

Shares ％ Shares ％

％

Fund III, L.P.

Representative
of Director

U.S.A.

Anupam Dalal

Director

R.O.C.

Chang Xiang
Investment Company,
Ltd.

Other Position

Executives, Directors
or Supervisors who are
spouses or within two
degrees of kinship
Title

Name

Relation

None

None

None

None

None

None

2.NewBridge
Pharmaceuticals - Board
of Director
3.Novadaq (NDQ.TO) Board of Director
4.XDx - Board of
Director
5.Acusphere (Other
OTC: ACUS.PK) Board of Director
6.Cobalt Technologies –
Chairman
7.Nanovasc - Board of
Director
8.Wellpartner - Board of
Director
9.Nora Therapeutics Board of Director
10.NEOS Therapeutics Board of Director
11.Neurotech
Pharmaceuticals - Board
of Director
12.Gevo (GEVO) Board of Director
13.Waterstone
Pharmaceuticals - Board
of Director
14.HCL CleanTech Board of Director
Male 5/31/2017

3

05/31/2017 0

0

0

N/A 06/18/2014

3

05/31/2017 593,283

1.06 593,283

0

0

0

0

1.MBA, Harvard
Business School
2.MD, University of
California, San
Francisco

0.93 0

0

0

0

N/A

0
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Kearny venture partners
- Managing Director
None

Date

Nationality/Place

Title

of Registration

Name

Gender

First
Elected

Representative
of Director

R.O.C.

Director

R.O.C.

Independent
Director

R.O.C.

Beatrice Liu

Independent
Director

R.O.C.

Independent
Director

R.O.C.

Chan Yu Lee

Term Date
(Years) Elected

Spouse &

Shareholding

Current

when Elected

Shareholding

Shares

Shares

％

Male 06/18/2014

3

05/31/2017 0

0

Moun-Rong Lin Male 05/31/2017

3

05/31/2017 934,507

Female06/17/2011

3

May Kang

Female06/26/2012

Shieh-Shung
Tom Chen

Male 05/31/2017

5,000

Minor

Shareholding
by Nominee
Arrangement

Shareholding

（Education）

Other Position

Shares ％ Shares ％

％
0.01 0

0

0

0

1.68 934,507

1.46 0

0

0

0

05/31/2017 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

05/31/2017 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

05/31/2017 277,731

0.50 453,731

0.71 0

0

0

0
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Experience

M.S. in Actuaries, the Director, Apollo Medical
University of Iowa
Optics Inc.
1. MBA, National
Chiao Tung
University
None
2. General Manager ,
Han Ting Co., Ltd.
1. Partner of BDO2.
Director of ROC CPA
1. PhD in Accounting, Association
Xiameng University
2. M.S. in Accounting, 3. Independent Director,
UIUC, USA
Reber Genetics Co. Ltd.
3. Partner of BDO
4. Independent Director,
Genovate Biotechnology
Co., Ltd.
1. EMBA, National
Taiwan University
1. Director, IF Mobile
2. General Manager,
Technology Inc.2.
Waterland Securities
Chairman, Wilmar
Co., Ltd.
International Investment
3. Vice Manager,
Co., Ltd.
Polaris Securities
Investment Trust Co.,
Ltd.
1. PHD in Pharmacy,
Purdue University
2 Researcher of Merck
& Co., Inc.
3. Principal
None
Investigator of
Medicine
Manufacturing,
Development Center
for Biotechnology

Executives, Directors
or Supervisors who are
spouses or within two
degrees of kinship
Title

Name

Relation

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders

Name of institutional shareholders

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders

NC Innovation Fund, L.P. (17.6%)
Malaysian Life Sciences Capital Fund (15.9%)
Development Fund of Executive Yuan (10.6%)
Celgene Corporation (7.0%)
Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund III, L.P. Key Ingredient Corporation (5.3%)
Kraft Foods Group (5.3%)
Monsanto Company (3.5%)
Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company (3.5%)
Oregon State Fund (3.5%)
Procter & Gamble Company (3.5%)
Fang Zi LinLiu(34.55%)
LiangMao Lin(24.55%)
Chang Xiang Investment Company, Ltd. YuHua Lin(15.45%)
YanHui Lin(14.54%)
LiFen Wang(10.91%)
Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (36.0%)
YFY Inc. (22.97%)
Shin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd.(22.97%)
Sinopac Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (5.0%)
Taiwan Global Biofund (TGB)
Chung Hwa Pulp Corporation (4.44%)
YFY Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (3.94%)
Chun Teng New Century Co., Ltd. (2.22%)
Shin Kong Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (1.33%)
Yuen- Shin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.12%)
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Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders listed above

Name of institutional shareholders
NC Innovation Fund, L.P.
Malaysian Life Sciences Capital Fund
Development Fund of Executive Yuan

Celgene Corporation

Key Ingredient Corporation

Kraft Foods Group

Monsanto Company

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders
NC Government Fund, L.P. (100%)
Malaysian Government Capital Fund (100%)
Taiwanese Government Fund (100%)
JANUS CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC(6.31%)
VANGUARD GROUP, INC. (4.37%)
STATE STREET CORPORATION(3.9%)
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A.(3.12%)
Capital World Investors(2.97%)
PRICE (T.ROWE) ASSOCIATES INC(2.49%)
JANUS TWENTY FUND(1.86%)
JP MORGAN CHASE & COMPANY(1.85%)
Invesco Ltd.(1.78%)
WINSLOW CAPITAL MANAGEMENT(1.65%)
Fonterra Co-coperative Group(100%)
CHARTWELL INVESTMENT PARTNERS(0.03%)
GREYLIN INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT INC.(0.01%)
Hudson ValleyInvestment Advisors, LLC(0.01%)
Tompkins Financial Corp(0.01%)
HOWARD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT(<0.01%)
NAVELLIER & ASSOCIATES, INC.(<0.01%)
Farmers Trust Company(<0.01%)
ABNER, HERRMAN & BROCK, INC.(<0.01%)
NORTHSTAR INVESTMENT ADVISORS, L.L.C.(<0.01%)
Edinburgh Partners Limited(<0.01%)
VANGUARD GROUP, INC. (5.02%)
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Name of institutional shareholders

Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company
Oregon State Fund

Procter & Gamble Company

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders
FMR LLC(3.44%)
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A.(2.79%)
PRICE (T.ROWE) ASSOCIATES INC(2.51%)
PRIMECAP MANAGEMENT COMPANY(2.33%)
DAVISSELECTED ADVISERS, LP(2.14%)
JENNISON ASSOCIATES LLC(2.08%)
WINSLOW CAPITAL MANAGEMENT(1.96%)
MARSICO CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC(1.52%)
MANNING & NAPIER ADVISORS INC(1.52%)
Insurance Fund (100%)
Oregon Government Fund (100%)
VANGUARD GROUP, INC. (4.55%)
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A.(2.67%)
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY, INC(2.16%)
FMR LLC(1.72%)
NORTHERN TRUST CORPORATION(1.56%)
Bank of New York Mellon Corporation(1.41%)
VANGUARD TOTAL STOCK MARKET INDEX FUND(1.22%)

Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
YFY Inc.

PRICE (T.ROWE) ASSOCIATES INC(1.08%)
JP MORGAN CHASE & COMPANY(1.01%)
YACKTMAN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY(1.00%)
Capital World Investors(0.99%)
Mega Financial Holding Company Ltd. (100%)
Show Chung HO (10.16%)
Hsin-Yi Foundation (5.66%)
Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.69%)
Cheng-Ting Ho (2.80%)
YFY Inc. Pension Fund Monitoring Committee (2.79%)
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Name of institutional shareholders

Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Sinopac Venture Capital Co., Ltd.

Chung Hwa Pulp Corporation

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders
Mei-Yu Ho (2.67%)
NEW TALENT LIMITED(2.28%)
I-TA Ho (2.14%)
Rong-Ting Ho (2.08%)
Min-Ting Ho (2.07%)
Show Chung HO (27.84%)
Ju Cheng Investment Co., Ltd. (12.5%)
BRILLIANT PRIDE LIMITED(12.5%)
Gao Da Global Co., Ltd. (12.5%)
Mei-Yu Ho (12.5%)
Guan Yu Investment Co., Ltd. (5.91%)
Hui-Hsin Ho Tsai (2.48%)
Hsing-Hui Ho (2.18%)
Chin Jie Investment Co., Ltd. (1.52%)
Hoss Foundation (1.48%)
Hoss Cultural Foundation (1.48%)
SinoPac Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (100%)
YFY Inc. (56.93%)
Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.55%)
China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (2.59%)
Hsin-Yi Golf Course Co., Ltd. (2.14%)
Hsin-Yi Investment Co., Ltd. (1.91%)
Citibank Po Lou Ning Emerging Market Fund(0.74%)
YFY paradigm Investment Co., Ltd. (0.69%)
Yuen- Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (0.66%)
Advanced General ETF investment account held in trust by
J.P. Morgan Chase (0.57%)
Investment Portfolio of Emerging Market Funds,entrusted to Citi (0.50%)
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Name of institutional shareholders
YFY Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd.
Chun Teng New Century Co., Ltd.
Shin Kong Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Yuen- Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders
YFY Inc. (100%)
O-Bank Co., Ltd. (99.75%)
Shin Kong Financial Holding Co.,Ltd. (100%)
Hsin-Yi Investment Co., Ltd. (97.16%)
Hsin-Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.84%)
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Professional qualifications and independence analysis of directors and supervisors
February 24, 2019

Name

Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification Requirements, Together with at Least
Five Years Work Experience
Criteria
A Judge, Public Prosecutor,
An Instructor or Higher
Have Work Experience in the
Attorney, Certified Public
Position in a Department of
Areas of Commerce, Law,
Accountant, or Other
Commerce, Law, Finance,
Finance, or Accounting, or
Professional or Technical
Accounting, or Other
Otherwise Necessary for the
Academic Department Related Specialist Who has Passed a
Business of the Company
to the Business Needs of the
National Examination and been
Company in a Public or Private Awarded a Certificate in a
Junior College, College or
Profession Necessary for the
University
Business of the Company

IndependenceCriteria(Note)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Chairman: Keelung Hong
v
v v v v v v
Board of Director:
Representative of Burrill Life
v
v v v v v v v v v
Sciences Capital Fund III, L.P.:
Anupam Dalal
Board of Director:
Representative of TGB:Hong-Jen
v
v
v v v v
v v v v
Chang
Board of Director:
Representative of Chang Xiang
v
v v v v v v v v v
Investment Company, Ltd.: Chan
Yu Lee
Board of Director: Moun-Rong
v
v v v v v v v v v
Lin
Independent Director: Beatrice
v
v
v
v v v v v v v v v
Liu
Independent Director: May Kang
v
v v v v v v v v v
Independent Director:
v
v v v v v v v v v
Shieh-Shung Tom Chen
Note: Please tick the corresponding boxes if directors or supervisors have been any of the following during the two years prior to being elected or during the term of office.
1. Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.
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Number of
Other Public
Companies in
Which the
Individual is
10 Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent
Director

v

0
0

v

0
0

v

0

v

1

v

0

v

0

2. Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. The same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the Company, its parent
company, or any subsidiary in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting shares.
3. Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others’ names, in an aggregate amount of 1%
or more of the total number of outstanding shares of the Company or ranking in the top holdings.10 in
4. Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the fifth degree of kinship, of any of the persons in the preceding three subparagraphs.
5. Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of the Company or that holds shares ranking in the
top five in holdings.
6. Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the share, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business relationship with the Company.
7. Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that, provides commercial, legal, financial,
accounting services or consultation to the Company or to any affiliate of the Company, or a spouse thereof.
8. Not having a marital relationship, or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any other director of the Company.
9. Not been a person of any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Act.
10. Not a governmental, juridical person or its representative as defined in Article 27 of the Company Act.

3.2.2

Title

Nationality

Management Team

Name

Gender

Date

Shareholding

Effective
Shares

Chairman &
CEO

President

R.O.C.

R.O.C.

Keelung
Hong

George
Yeh

％

Shareholding
by Nominee
Arrangement

Spouse & Minor
Shareholding
Shares

Shares

％

Experience
（Education）

Other Position

Managers who are
Spouses or Within
Two Degrees of
Kinship
Title Name

％

Relation

PhD in Chemistry at the University of
Male

Male

05/05/2009

03/01/2004

1,330,883

888,150

2.08%

1.39%

0

200,000

0

0.31%

0

0

0 California at Berkeley
Chairman of Company
CEO of Company
M.A. and M.B.A, University of
0 Michigan at Ann Arbor
CFO, Hermes Bioscience
Vice President, AsiaWired Group
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Chairman and CEO of TLC
Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.

None None None

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
-General Manager
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
B.V. –Managing Director
None None None
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, (H.K.)
Limited –Director
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, (Shanghai)

Title

Nationality

Name

Gender

Date

Shareholding

Effective
Shares

％

Shareholding
by Nominee
Arrangement

Spouse & Minor
Shareholding
Shares

Shares

％

Experience
（Education）

Other Position

Managers who are
Spouses or Within
Two Degrees of
Kinship
Title Name

％

Relation

Limited –Director and President

U.S.A.

George
SpencerGreen

R.O.C.

Yunlong
Tseng

Chief
Medical
Officer

Male

02/01/2019

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

BA, Oberlin College
MD, Columbia University College of
Physicians and Surgeons
0 0.00% MS, Dartmouth College:Clinical
Evaluative Science
Vice President and Clinical Head of
Pfizer’s Biosimilars Development
Program

0.09%

PhD in biochemistry on
immunoliposome research, National
0 Taiwan University
Vice President and Head of Research
of Company

Vice
President,
Research &
Developme

Male

11/01/2004

117,851

0.18%

57,467

0

nt
Vice
President,
Adm.Divisi

R.O.C.

Nicole Lin Female 01/12/2005

62,516

0.10%

0

0

0

4,800

0.01%

0

0

0

on

Vice
President,
Corporate
Developme
nt
Division

R.O.C.

Wenji
Chen

Female 10/03/2016

Independent Consultant
Biotherapeutics, GTSG Assoc

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, (Shanghai)
None None None
Limited –Supervisor

MBA, University of California,
Riverside
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
0 Accounting Manager, MaLab. Inc.
Inc.-Controller
Accounting Manager, NextGen
Communication
1. Development Center for
Biotechnology, VP of Industrial
Promotion and Business
Development
2. GlaxoSmithKline (Shanghai), Senior
0 Director of Business Development
None
3. GlaxoSmithKline (U.S.), Director of
Business Development
4. Norak (a biotech in U.S.), Director
of Business Development and
Strategic Alliances
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None None None

None None None

None None None

Title

Nationality

Name

Gender

Date

Shareholding

Effective
Shares

％

Shareholding
by Nominee
Arrangement

Spouse & Minor
Shareholding
Shares

Shares

％

Director,
Manufacturi
ng

R.O.C.

Hung Wei
Chih

R.O.C.

Yvonne
Shih

Developme

0.00%

0

0.00%

Female 05/01/2015

111,809

0.17%

42,168

0.07%

0

Director,
Portfolio &

R.O.C.

Terry Tai

03/30/2015

3,200

0.00%

0

0

0

R.O.C.

Bella Kuo Female 05/01/2015

106,358

0.17%

0

0

0

R.O.C.

MW Kuo

Male

106,559

0.17%

4,000

0.01%

0

Male

Strategy

Director,
Quality
Assurance

Director,
President
Office

Title Name

2,000

nt

07/01/2016

Other Position

％

07/02/2018

Male

nt

Developme

（Education）

Ph.D.,Chemistry, University of
Michigan
0 0.00% University of Michigan, Outstanding
Graduate Research Award
Director, Genentech, Inc/Roche

Director,
Product

Experience

Managers who are
Spouses or Within
Two Degrees of
Kinship

PhD and postdoctoral research in
0 Biochemistry, College of Medicine,
National Taiwan University
B.S. in Medicine, Taipei Medical
College
Researcher, Center of Drug Evaluation
Lecturer, Clinical Medical School,
0 National Cheng Kung University
Lecturer, Institute of Pharmacology,
National Yang-Ming University
Chief Resident, Physical medicine and
rehabilitation, Chung Shan Medical
University Hospital
B.S. in Animal Science and
Technology, National Taiwan
0 University
M.A in Engineering and Technology
Management, George Washington
University
M.A., The Institute of Environmental
Medicine, School of Medicine, New
0 York University
PhD and post-doctoral researcher, the
National Institutes of Health, the U.S.
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Relation

None

None None None

None

None None None

None

None None None

None

None None None

None

None None None

Title

Nationality

Name

Gender

Date

Shareholding

Effective
Shares

％

Shareholding
by Nominee
Arrangement

Spouse & Minor
Shareholding
Shares

Shares

％

Experience
（Education）

Other Position

Managers who are
Spouses or Within
Two Degrees of
Kinship
Title Name

％

Relation

Senior researcher and deputy assistant
general manager, Regeneron
Pharmaceuticals

Director,
Medical

U.S.A

Science

Director,
Clinical

Auditor

05/02/2017

4,000

0.01%

0

0

0

R.O.C

Cynthia
Lin

Female 05/23/2017

4,000

0.01%

0

0

0

R.O.C.

Milia Lu Female 11/19/2007

15,639

0.02%

0

0

0

Research

Internal

Carl Oscar
Male
Brown

PhD, Molecular and Cellular Biology,
Baylor College of Medicine (Houston, TX)
Sr. Medical Writer, Amylin Pharmaceuticals
Sr. Investigator, Medical Research, Amylin
0 Pharmaceuticals
Sr. Director, Medical Research, TWi
Biotechnology
Director, Medical Science, Taiwan
Liposome Company

Master, National Taiwan University,
Agriculture Chemistry, Microbiology
Product Manager, Self-Medication
Marketing Department, Boehringer
Ingelheim Taiwan
Exchange Scholarship, Children
0 Hospital, University of South
California
Regional Clinical Monitor Local,
Boehringer Ingelheim Taiwan
Director, Project Leadership
Department, Quintiles Taiwan
MBA, National Yunlin University of
0 Science and Technology
Senior Associate, Golden Bridge
Electech Inc.
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None

None None None

None

None None None

None

None None None

3.2.3 Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors, President, and Vice President
Remuneration of Directors

Unit: NT$ thousands

Remuneration

Base Compensation(A)

Title

Name

Chairman

Keelung
Hong(Note3)

Board of
Director

Severance Pay(B)

Relevant remuneration received by directors who are also employees

Director’s
Compensation(C)

Allowances(D)

Ratio of total
remuneration
(A+B+C+D) to net
income(%)

Salary, Bonuses, and
Allowances (E)

Severance Pay (F)

Employees’ Compensation (G)

Ratio of total
compensation
(A+B+C+D+E+F+G) to
Compensation
net income(%)
paid to directors
from an invested
company other
the
Companies than
company’s
in the subsidiary

Companies in
Companie
Companies
Companies
Companies
Companies
Companies in
Companies
the
The
s in the
in the
in the
in the
in the
the
in the
consolidated The
The
The
The
The
The
The
The
company
consolidate
consolidated
consolidated
consolidated
consolidate
consolidated
consolidate
consolidate
financial company
company
company
company
company
company
company
company
d financial
financial
financial
financial
d financial
financial
d financial
d financial
statements
statements
statements
statements
statements
statements
statements
statements
statements
Cash Stock Cash Stock
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

6,190

9,302

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.69)

(1.03)

No

TGB

180

180

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

No

Board of
Director

Burrill Life Sciences
Capital Fund III, L.P.

190

190

0

0

0

0

296

0

(0.05)

(0.05)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.06)

(0.06)

No

Board of
Director

Chang Xiang
Investment
Company, Ltd.

210

210

0

0

0

0

345

0

(0.06)

(0.06)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.06)

(0.06)

No

Board of
Director

Moun-Rong Lin

210

210

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

No

Independent
Beatrice Liu
Director

210

210

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

No

Independent
May Kang
Director

190

190

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

No

Independent Shieh-Shung Tom
Director
Chen

210

210

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(0.02)

(0.02)

No

* Except for the disclosures above, remuneration paid to the Company’s directors for their services to all the companies listed in the financial statements (e.g., serving as a non-employee adviser): None.
Note 1: The board resolute not to attribute board remuneration for 2018 on Jan. 25, 2019. Once it is resolute by general shareholders’ meeting, the Company will announce in MOPS.
Note 2: The Company’s consolidated net loss is NT$901,573,500.
Note 3: Dr. Keelung Hong is the chairman and the chief executive officer.
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Name of Directors
Total of (A+B+C+D)

Bracket

Under NT$ 2,000,000

NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000
NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000
NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000
NT$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000
NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000
NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000
Over NT$100,000,000
Total

Total of (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The company

Companies in the
consolidated financial
statements

The company

Companies in the
consolidated financial
statements

1. Keelung Hong
2. TGB
3. Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund
III, L.P.
4. Chang Xiang Investment
Company, Ltd.
5. Moun-Rong Lin
6. Beatrice Liu
7. May Kang
8. Shieh-Shung Tom Chen

1. Keelung Hong
2. TGB
3. Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund
III, L.P.
4. Chang Xiang Investment
Company, Ltd.
5. Moun-Rong Lin
6. Beatrice Liu
7. May Kang
8. Shieh-Shung Tom Chen

1. TGB
2. Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund
III, L.P.
3. Chang Xiang Investment
Company, Ltd.
4. Moun-Rong Lin
5. Beatrice Liu
6. May Kang
7. Shieh-Shung Tom Chen

1. TGB
2. Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund
III, L.P.
3. Chang Xiang Investment
Company, Ltd.
4. Moun-Rong Lin
5. Beatrice Liu
6. May Kang
7. Shieh-Shung Tom Chen

None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None

8 persons

8 persons
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None

None

Keelung Hong

Keelung Hong

None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None

8 persons

8 persons

Unit: NT$ thousands

Remuneration of Supervisors
Title

Name

Remuneration
Ratio of total remuneration
Compensation paid to
(A+B+C) to net income (%)
Base Compensation(A)
Compensation(B)
Allowances(C)
supervisors from an invested
Companies in the
Companies in
Companies in
Companies in the
company other than the
consolidated
the consolidated
The
The
the consolidated
consolidated financial The company
The company
company’s subsidiary
financial
financial
company
company
financial
statements
statements
statements
statements

Supervisor Ching-Fen Huang

108

108

0

0

0

0

(0.01)

(0.01)

None

Supervisor Matthew Chan

108

108

0

0

3,288

3,288

(0.38)

(0.38)

None

Supervisor Eric Chu

98

98

0

0

0

0

(0.01)

(0.01)

None

Name of Supervisors
Total of (A+B+C)

Bracket
The company

Companies in the consolidated
financial statements

Ching-Fen Huang, Eric Chu

Ching-Fen Huang, Eric Chu

Matthew Chan

Matthew Chan

NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000

None

None

NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000

None

None

NT$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000

None

None

NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000

None

None

NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000

None

None

Over NT$100,000,000

None

None

3 persons

3 persons

Under NT$ 2,000,000
NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000

Total
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Remuneration of Top Management
Unit: NT$ thousands
Severance Pay (B)

Salary(A)
Title

Name

Bonuses and
Allowances (C)

Employees’ Compensation (D)

Companies
Companies
Companies in
in the
in the
the
The company
The
The
The
consolidated
consolidated
consolidated
company
company
company
financial
financial
financial
Cash Stock
statements
statements
statements

Companies in the
consolidated
financial statements
Cash

Stock

Ratio of total
Compensation paid to the president and
remuneration
vice president from an invested company
(A+B+C+D) to net
other than the company’s subsidiary
income(%)
Companies in
the
The
consolidated
company
financial
statements

CEO

Keelung Hong

3,434

6,545

0

0

2,757

2,757

0

0

0

0

(0.69)

(1.03)

None

President

George Yeh

3,728

8,401

108

108

2,805

2,805

0

0

0

0

(0.74)

(1.26)

None

12,990

12,990

378

378

7,761

7,761

0

0

0

0

(2.34)

(2.34)

None

Yunlong Tseng
Vice President

Nicole Lin
Wenji Chen
Hung Wei Chih

Bracket
Under NT$ 2,000,000
NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000
NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000

Name of Top Management
The company

Companies in the consolidated financial statements

None

None

Hung Wei Chih

Hung Wei Chih

Keelung Hong, George Yeh, Yunlong Tseng, Nicole Lin,
Wenji Chen

Keelung Hong, Yunlong Tseng, Nicole Lin, Wenji Chen

NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000

None

George Yeh

NT$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000

None

None

NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000

None

None

NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000

None

None

Over NT$100,000,000

None

None

6 persons

6 persons

Total
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3.2.4

Comparison of Remuneration for Directors, Supervisors, Presidents and Vice
Presidents in the Most Recent Two Fiscal Years and Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Supervisors, Presidents and Vice Presidents

A. The ratio of total remuneration paid by the company and by all companies included in the
consolidated financial statements for the most recent two fiscal years to directors, supervisors,
CEO, president and vice presidents of the Company, to the net income.

Title

Ratio of total remuneration paid to
directors, supervisors, CEO,
president and vice presidents to
net income in 2018 (%)
Companies in the
consolidated
The company
financial
statements

Ratio of total remuneration paid
to directors, supervisors, CEO,
president and vice presidents to
net income in 2017 (%)
Companies in the
consolidated
The company
financial
statements

Board of Directors

(0.91)

(1.25)

(0.83)

(1.37)

Supervisors

(0.40)

(0.40)

(0.38)

(0.38)

Management

(3.77)

(4.63)

(3.12)

(4.02)

B. The policies, standards, and portfolios for the payment of remuneration, the procedures for
determining remuneration, and the correlation with business performance：Please refer to the
Chinese annual report in page 23.
3.3 Implementation of Corporate Governance
3.3.1 Board of Directors
A total of 12(A) meetings of the board of directors were held in 2018 and as of the date of this
annual report. Director attendance was as follows:
Title
Chairman
Director

Name

Attendance
in Person(B)

By Proxy

Attendance
rate (%)【Ｂ/Ａ】

Remarks

Keelung Hong

11

1

92%

reelected

TGB

9

3

75%

Elected in May, 2017

9

2

75%

reelected

Director

Burrill Life Sciences
Capital Fund III, L.P.
Chang Xiang Investment
Company, Ltd.

12

0

100%

reelected

Director

Moun-Rong Lin

12

0

100%

Elected in May, 2017

Beatrice Liu

12

0

100%

reelected

May Kang

9

3

75%

reelected

Shieh-Shung Tom Chen

12

0

100%

Elected in May, 2017

Director

Independent
Director
Independent
Director
Independent
Director

Other mentionable items:
1. Meetings of the Board of Directors, if in accordance with the following conditions, shall clearly
state the date of the Board Meeting, the term number, the contents of the proposals, and opinions
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from all Independent Directors and the follow-up procedures of the Company:
(1) Matters listed in Article 14-3 of Securities and Exchange Act.
(2) All objections or reservations made by any Independent Director to the resolutions of the Board
Meeting, apart from the above-mentioned, either in the form of a written statement or other records.
Date

Terms

Content

Jan. 19, 2018

2018 / 1

Apr. 10, 2018

2018 / 4

To dispose of 33.4% of the
Company’s shares in the HK
subsidiary.
To amend the Procedures for the
Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.

May 5, 2018

2018 / 5

June 29, 2018

2018 / 6

Opinions of all
The Company’s
Independent Directors
Follow-up
Consent
Approved as
proposed
Consent

The proposed issuance of
ordinary shares for cash to
sponsor the issuance of overseas
depositary receipts and/or
issuance of domestic ordinary
shares for cash.
To grant 2018 Employee Stock
Option to full time employees.

Consent

June 29, 2018 2018 / 6

To grant Restricted Employee
Stock to full time employees.

Consent

June 29, 2018 2018 / 6

The issuance of ordinary shares
for cash to sponsor the issuance of
overseas depositary receipts.
To amend “Internal Audit
System” and “Internal Control.”

Consent

The issuance of ordinary shares
for cash to sponsor the issuance of
overseas depositary receipts
and/or issuance of domestic
ordinary shares for cash.
To grant 2018 Employee Stock
Options to employees.

Consent

To amend certain provisions of
the Company’s accounting
system.

Consent

Oct. 31, 2018

2018 / 9

Jan. 25, 2019

2019 / 1

Jan. 25, 2019

2019 / 1

Jan. 25, 2019

2019 / 1

Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

No objection or reservation from any Independent Director in all 12 Board Meetings.
2. If there is Directors’ avoidance of motions in conflict of interest, the Directors’ names, contents of
motions, causes for avoidance and voting should be specified:
Name

Meeting Agenda

Causes for avoidance and
voting

Result of Voting

The Company’s
Follow-up

None

NA

NA

NA

NA

3. Measures taken to strengthen the functionality of the Board: For the purposes of establishing a
sound governance system by the Board of Directors of the Company and strengthening the
Board’s supervision function and management mechanism, the Company hereby promulgates the
“Rules of the Board of Directors Meeting” pursuant to the “Regulations Governing Procedure for
Board of Directors Meetings of Public Companies”. The Company posts director and supervisor
attendance and resolution from time to time to Company website. Since 2011, two Independent
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Directors have been elected. A total of 3 Independent Directors are counted currently, which
accounts for 37.5% of the Directors in total. The Company encourages Directors to continue with
their education by arranging courses and instructors for them every year. Since 1998, the
company has purchased liability insurance for all Directors and reports to the Board of Directors
on the critical contents, including insured amounts, insurance coverage, and insurance rates. The
Company has established two functional committees, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee to strengthen corporate governance.
4. Others: In the most recent fiscal year (the year of 2018) and up to the date of publication of the
annual report, at least two Independent Directors attended and voted in the resolutions in each
Board meeting. Independent Director attendance was as follows.
Independent
Director
Beatrice Liu
May Kang
Shieh-Shung
Tom Chen

1/19

3/6

3/20

4/10

V
ᇞ
V

V
V
V

V
V
V

V
V
V

2018
5/11 6/29

V
V
V

V
ᇞ
V

7/20

8/1

10/31

V
V
V

V
V
V

V
V
V

2019
12/21 1/25 2/22

V
V
V

V
ᇞ
V

V
V
V

V: Attendance in Person ᇞ:By Proxy

3.3.2

Audit Committee
A total of 5(A) meetings of audit committee were held in 2018 and as of the date of this
annual report. Committee members’ attendance was as follows:
Title
Chairman of
Committee
Committee
Member
Committee
Member

Name

Attendance in

By Proxy

Person(B)

Attendance rate
(%)【Ｂ/Ａ】

Beatrice Liu

5

0

100%

May Kang

4

1

80%

Shieh-Shung
Tom Chen

5

0

100%

Remarks

Other mentionable items:
1. If the operations of the Audit Committee have any of the following circumstances, the
Company should state the date of the Board meeting, session, the content of the proposal, the
resolution of the Audit Committee, and the Company's response toward the Audit Committee's
opinions:
(1) Matters listed in Article 14-5 of Securities and Exchange Act.
Opinions of all
Members

Date

Terms

Content

6/29/2018

2018/1

6/29/2018

2018/1

6/29/2018

2018/1

To grant 2018 Employee Stock Option to full
time employees.
To grant Restricted Employee Stock to full
time employees.
The issuance of ordinary shares for cash to
sponsor the issuance of overseas depositary
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Consent
Consent
Consent

The
Company’s
Follow-up
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

7/20/2018

2018/2

10/31/2018

2018/4

1/22/2019

2019/1

1/22/2019

2019/1

1/22/2019

2019/1

1/22/2019

2019/1

1/22/2019

2019/1

1/22/2019

2019/1

receipts and/or issuance of domestic ordinary
shares for cash.
To dispose of 33.4% of the Company’s
shares in the HK subsidiary.
To amend “Internal Audit System” and
“Internal Control.”
The issuance of ordinary shares for cash to
sponsor the issuance of overseas depositary
receipts and/or issuance of domestic ordinary
shares for cash.
To grant 2018 Employee Stock Option to full
time employees.
To amend certain provisions of the
Company’s accounting system.
The Company’s 2018 Financial Statement
and Operational Reports.
To amend the Procedures for the Acquisition
or Disposal of Assets.
Approve the 2018 Internal Control System
Declaration.

Authorized
the Chairman
Consent
Consent

Consent
Consent
Consent
Consent
Consent

Chairman's
decision made
as proposed
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

(2) In addition to the above matters, other resolutions passed by two-thirds of all the
directors but yet to be approved by the Audit Committee: None.
2. In regards to the recusal of independent directors from voting due to conflict of interests, the
name of the independent directors, the proposal, reasons for recusal due to conflict of interests
and voting outcomes should be stated:
Name of
Independent
Directors

Meeting
Agenda

None

NA

Reason for recusal

The
Company’s
Follow-up

Result of
resolution

NA

NA

NA

3. The communication between independent directors and internal audit officer, and certified
public accountant(CPA)
The independent directors of the Company proceed communication with the CPA and the
internal audit officer at least once a year, and may convene meetings to discuss major or
abnormal matters at any time.
The internal audit officer completes the audit reports on a monthly basis and delivers them to the
Independent Directors for review in the following month. Regular reports should be conducted
at the Board meetings; the Audit Committee composed of all Independent Directors reviews the
operation of internal control, the internal audit, and the results of the Company's self- inspection;
Regular reviews on the financial statements should be conducted with the publication of review
report. The internal audit officer proceeds communication with the Independent Director at least
once a quarter, and may convene a meeting to discuss major or abnormal matters at any time.
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(1)Summary of communication between Independent Directors (not included in the Board of
Directors) and internal auditors for the year of 2018:
Date

Nature

Communication topic

Recommen

The

dation of

Company’s

Independen

Follow-up

t Directors
10/31/2018 Annual

(1) Audit results report from

independent August to October 2018
communicat (2) Review and discussion on
ion meeting

No

Proceeding

objection

the original
plan

2018 audit plan

(2)The Independent Directors of the Company perform well in auditing execution, the
effectiveness and communication.
4.Annual major work items of the Audit Committee
Year

Major work items

Integrity

1. The fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company.
2.The appointment (or dismissal) of Certified Public Accountant,
evaluation of independence and performance.
3. The effective implementation of internal control of the Company.
4. Regulatory compliance.
5. Management of the existing or potential risks in the Company

Key works
of 2018

1. Assess the necessity and reasonableness of raising and issuing securities
with equity nature, including Global Depository Receipt(GDR), new
restricted employee shares, and employee stock option certificates, etc.
2. Review the internal control system and conduct necessary amendment.
3. Amend Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.
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3.3.3

Corporate Governance Execution Status and Deviations from “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies”
Implementation Status
Item

1. Does the company establish and disclose the
Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles
based on “Corporate Governance Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies”?
2. Shareholding Structure & Shareholders’ Rights
(1) Does the company establish an internal
operating procedure to deal with
shareholders’ suggestions, doubts, disputes
and litigations, and implement based on the
procedure?

Yes No




(2)Does the company possess the list of its major 
shareholders as well as the ultimate owners
of those shares?

(3)Does the company establish and execute the
risk management and firewall system within

Description
The Company has established its Corporate
Governance Principles and Practices. The regulation
could be downloaded on MOPS and its website.

Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons
None

(1) The Company sets a spokesperson and a deputy
spokesperson to handle the related shareholders’ issues of None
the Company and its subsidiaries, with the assistances
from stock affair and legal units. The approaches for
shareholders to reach the Company includes inquiries,
corporate webmail and dedicated emails. The Company
has set the “Procedures for Reporting Illegal, Unethical or
Dishonest Cases” to deal with shareholders' suggestions,
doubts, disputes and litigation matters.
(2)The Finance & Shared Services Division is responsible
for collecting the updated information of major
shareholders and the list of ultimate owners of these
major shareholders.
(3)Rules are made to strictly regulate the activities of
trading, endorsement and loans between the Company
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Implementation Status
Item

Yes No

its conglomerate structure?

(4) Does the company establish internal rules
against insiders trading with undisclosed
information?



3.Composition and Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors
(1)Does the Board develop and implement a
diversified policy for the composition of its
members?
(2) Does the company voluntarily establish other
functional committees in addition to the
Compensation Committee and the Audit



Description
and its affiliates. Also, we followed the “Criteria of
Internal Control Mechanism for Public Company”
outlined by the Financial Supervisory Commission when
drafting the guidelines for the “Supervision and
governance of subsidiaries” in order to implement total
risk control with respect to subsidiaries.
(4)The Company has “Rules of Prevention From Insider
Trading (Including Internal Material Information Best
Practice)” to forbidden directors, supervisors, managers,
or employees to disclose any internal material
information to others. Anyone who obtains the
Company’s internal material information is also
forbidden to disclose to any other. The rules are listed
on the Company’s website.

(1) The Company has seven to eleven Directors as set by
the shareholders' meeting. The Board of Directors
consider its diverse and professional backgrounds, care
about gender equality and generally possess sufficient
knowledge, skills and expertise to perform their duties.
It is clearly stated that the number of Independent
Directors shall not be less than three, and at least one
Independent Director should be added other than the
 legal requirement. There are a total of eight seats in the
most recently selected Board of Directors, three of
which are Independent Directors. As of the date of
publication of the annual report, the number of seats has
not changed, and only the Chairman of the Board of
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Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

(1)(3)(4) None
(2) if future needs, the
Company will establish
related functional
committees.

Implementation Status
Item
Committee?
(3)Does the company establish a standard to
measure the performance of the Board, and
implement it annually?

Yes No



Description
Directors serves as the chief executive officer. The other
seven directors do not serve as employees or managers
in the Company.
The Company's "Articles of Incorporation" and
"Directors and Supervisors Election Measures" clearly
specify that the diverse composition of the Board of
Directors is disclosed on the Company's website and the
MOPs. The Directors of the Company own different
professional backgrounds and the industrial experiences.
There are six Directors with the professional
background in the biotechnology industry, three
Directors with financial professional backgrounds, and
three Directors who are institutional investors. They
generally encompass the knowledge, skills and expertise
to perform their duties. Among the members of the
eighth term of Board of Directors, two are female and
six are male.
(2)The company has established Compensation
Committee and Audit Committee.
(3) The Company began implementing annual Board of
Director performance evaluations in 2013, and
expressly provided the Board of Director Performance
Evaluation Method in 2015. The latest performance
evaluation, for 2018, was completed during the first
quarter of 2019. The scope of the evaluation covered
individual board members and the adoption of the board
member self-assessment evaluations. The questionnaire
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Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Implementation Status
Item

Yes No

Description
format consisted of 25 items covering six major
categories, including mastering of the company’s
objectives and tasks, recognition of the directors’ duties,
level of participation in company operations, internal
relationship management and communication,
professional and continued education of the directors,
and internal controls. The results were good, with
average scores of over 90 points. Two functional
committees, Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, carry out self-evaluation in questionnaire
format. The questionnaire format consisted of 25 items
covering six major categories, including mastering of
the company’s objectives and tasks, recognition of the
directors’ duties, level of participation in company
operations, internal relationship management and
communication, professional and continued education
of the directors, and internal controls. The results were
good, with average scores of over 90 points. The
management office has submitted the results to the
Board of Directors during the first quarter for review of
the lower-scored items so that improvements can be
made in the future. Considering the profit and cost in
the future, the Company will measure the feasibility and
cycle of appointing an external professional agency. The
Company appointed an external professional agency,
Taiwan Corporate Governance Association, for the first
time on March 20, 2018 to implement the evaluation. A
two-way evaluation consisting of data evaluation and
face-to-face conversation with the directors and
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Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Implementation Status
Item

(4)Does the company regularly evaluate the
independence of CPAs?

Yes No



Description
supervisors was conducted based on 8 aspects
(composition, guidance, authorization, supervision,
communication, self-discipline, meeting of the Board of
Directors, and internal control and risk management).
This was a concrete action representing the Company’s
emphasis on corporate governance according to the
Chairman’s instruction. Five evaluation experts at
Taiwan Corporate Governance Association provided
five suggestions to the Company: First, to report risk
management and compliance to the Board of Directors;
second, to set up measures for CPA suitability
assessment; third, to cultivate successors of senior
managers; fourth, to explicitly stipulate a system for
daily reports to the Board of Directors; fifth,
independent directors and internal auditors shall
communicate deficiencies found in internal control and
improvement follow-ups on their own.
(4) The Company has conducted independent annual
reviews of its certified public accountants to ensure that
they are non-interest parties and that their independence
is intact. The evaluation, under the auspices of the
Board of Directors, was done according to 10 criteria
for independence, such as the appointment of relations,
inspection procedures, and accountant report
mechanisms to the supervisors and independent
directors, to name a few. The most recent evaluation of
the independence of CPAs was based in 2018 to ensure
that they are non-interest parties and that their
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Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Implementation Status
Item

Yes No

4. Do the TWSE/TPEx listed companies have a
committee or full-time / part-time personnel
responsible for dealing with corporate
governance matters?



5. Does the company establish a communication



Description

Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

independence is intact.
The Company is committed to corporate governance. For None
example, it has set up concrete plans, adheres to
Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies, and discloses all
relevant information on its websites, as well as in the
Market Observation Post System (MOPS). The Company
also makes its best efforts to abide by the latest
regulations regarding corporate governance. Under the
supervision of the Vice President in the Administration
Management Office, the designated personnel who has
more than three years of experience in finance and stock
holders’ affairs, is in charge of corporate governance
related matters. These include planning of the corporate
governance structure, proceeding of the schedule,
addition or amendment of regulations, the execution of
the latest laws and regulations, holding of shareholders'
(Board) meetings, and fulfillment of corporate social
responsibility. The implementation of corporate
governance related matters has been good. At present,
there's no necessity to set up a managerial officer as the
head of corporate governance. In the future, the head of
corporate governance will be set up when necessary.
The Company has designated appropriate departments,
None
such as Investor Relations, Public Relations, the SEC
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Implementation Status
Item

Yes No

channel and build a designated section on its
website for stakeholders, as well as handle all
the issues they care for in terms of corporate
social responsibilities?

6. Does the company appoint a professional
shareholder service agency to deal with
shareholder affairs?
7.Information Disclosure
(1) Does the company have a corporate website
to disclose both financial standings and the
status of corporate governance?





(2) Does the company have other information

disclosure channels (e.g. building an English
website, appointing designated people to
handle information collection and disclosure,
creating a spokesman system, webcasting

Description

Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Compliance Department, Legal Department, etc., to
communicate with stakeholders on a case by case basis,
as needed. Furthermore, the contact information
providing access to the Company’s spokesperson and
relevant departments is available on the Company’s
website. For information on stakeholders, important
concern issues, communication channels and response
methods, please refer to the Chinese version of the annual
report.
The Company authorizes SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd to
deal with general shareholders’ meeting. This
professional shareholder service agency is not a “related None
enterprise” stated on Article 369-2 of the Company Act.
(1)The Company has set up a Chinese/English website
(www.tlcbio.com/-TW) to disclose information
regarding the Company’s financials, business and
corporate governance status.
(2)The company has designated appropriate persons to None
handle information collection and disclosure. The
Company has established a spokesperson system; the
spokesperson attended institution investor conference 3
times in 2018. Investor conference information is
disclosed on the corporate website.
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Implementation Status
Item

Yes No

Description

Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

investor conferences)?
8.Is there any other important information to
facilitate a better understanding of the
company’s corporate governance practices
(e.g., including but not limited to employee
rights, employee wellness, investor relations,
supplier relations, rights of stakeholders,
directors’ and supervisors’ training records,
the implementation of risk management
policies and risk evaluation measures, the
implementation of customer relations
policies, and purchasing insurance for
directors and supervisors)?



(1)For issues regarding employee rights; employer care; None
investor, supplier and stakeholder relations, please
refer to “(5) Social Responsibility Compliance”.
(2)Board of Directors meeting attendance (for the
chairman and supervisors): The chairman and
supervisors attended the Board of Directors meetings
in accordance with the relevant section detailed in the
Board of Directors Operational Procedures. Measures
will be put in place in the future to enhance the
directors and supervisors’ ability to exercise their
authority, which include enabling them to connect
remotely via video/teleconferencing, as well as
allowing them to appoint representatives when they
are unable to attend meetings in person.
(3)Conditions for recusal due to conflicts of interest
between the chairman and stakeholders: The
Company follows the principle that allows for the
chairman to recuse him/herself and abstain from
voting when there are conflicts of interest with
stakeholders.
(4)Advancement education for the chairman and
supervisors: The Company’s chairman and
supervisors shall have suitable and adequately
professional backgrounds. Provisions are made for
them to further their studies with advanced courses, a
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Implementation Status
Item

Yes No

Description

Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

list of which is presented on page 45 of this annual
report.
(5)Risk management policy and risk measurement
standards: The Company has established several
internal management policies in accordance with the
law. Risk analysis and evaluations are compliant with
these regulations.
(6)Client policy: The Company has established subsidiary
companies in Europe, the United States, China,
Australia and Japan to cater for client and R&D
requirements. We cooperate closely with our clients to
develop products.
(7) Liability insurance for the chairman and supervisors:
This is stated in the Company’s code of conduct.
Since 2008, the Company has insured continuously
the liability insurance for all Directors, and reported
annually to the Board of Director the insurance
amount, the coverage, the insurance expense, and the
related material matters, etc. The latest liability
insurance was reported to the Board of Directors in
January 2019.
9. As per the results of the latest Corporate Governance Evaluation issued by the TWSE Corporate Governance Center, please state the improved
issues. For issues that were not improved on, please state the measures to be taken and the issues to be prioritized. (Companies not evaluated
in the Corporate Governance Evaluation are not required to fill this in.)
The Company has been ranked as a top 5% TPEX company in the first, second, third, and forth Corporate Governance Evaluation. For the
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Deviations from
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
Item
Yes No
Description
for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons
items that failed to meet the evaluation standards, the Company assesses the feasibility of its current and future strategies on an annual basis
prior to making improvements on them. The Company strikes a balance between its own business strategies and the policy objectives of the
Competent Authority. Execution plans are immediately imposed for items earmarked for immediate improvement. Execution plans with annual
goals are set up for items which cannot be immediately improved on.
Implementation Status
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3.3.4

Composition, Responsibilities and Operations of Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities related to the
Company’s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs, and in the evaluation and
compensation of the Company’s executives.
The Compensation Committee is comprised of three members. All three independent directors serve
as voting members of the Committee. The Compensation Committee Charter is available on the
Company’s corporate website.
Qualification

not have been or be any of the following
disqualifications of independent directors

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Numbers of
Concurrent
Service as
Independent
Directors



















4

-

May Kang



















0

-

Shieh-Shung
Tom Chen



















0

-

Title

Name
Independent
Director
Independent
Director
Independent
Director

one of the following professional qualification
requirements, together with at least five years of
work experience
An instructor
A judge,
Have work
or higher in a
public
experience
department of prosecutor,
in the area
commerce,
attorney,
of
law, finance,
certified public commerce,
accounting,
accountant, or
law, finance,
or other
other
or
academic
professional or
accounting,
department
technical
or otherwise
related to the
specialist who
necessary
business
has passed a
for the
needs of the
national
business of
company in a
examination
the company
public or
and been
private junior
awarded a
college,
certificate in a
college, or
profession
university
necessary for
the business of
the company

Beatrice Liu





Note

A total of 5(A) meetings of the compensation committee were held in 2018 and as of the date of this
annual report. Committee members’ attendance was as follows:
Title
Chairman of
Committee
Committee
Member
Committee
Member

Attendance

Attendance in

Attendance by

Person(A)

Proxy(B)

May Kang

5

0

100%

Reelected

Beatrice Liu

5

0

100%

Reelected

Shieh-Shung
Tom Chen

5

0

100%

Elected in June 2017.

Name

rate (%)

Remarks

【B/A】

Other required disclosure:
1.
If the Board of Directors do not adopt or amend suggestions proposed by the Remuneration
Committee, the Company should state the date of the Board meeting, session, the content of
the proposal, the resolutions of the Remuneration Committee, and the Company’s response
toward the Remuneration Committee opinions: None.
2.
The resolutions of the Remuneration Committee, if members have objections or reservations
with a record or written declaration, shall include the date, session, the content of the
proposal, the opinions of all members and the response toward the Remuneration Committee
opinions: None.
The resolutions of the Remuneration Committee:
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Date

Terms

Content

1/18/2018

2018/1

3/20/2018

2018/2

6/13/2018

2018/3

10/31/2018

2018/4

10/31/2018

2018/4

10/31/2018

2018/4

1/22/2019

2019/1

The allocation of the common stock
subscriptions granted to managerial officers
that issued ordinary shares in the capital
increase by cash for issuance American
Depositary Receipts.
Vice President of Manufacturing Division
appointment
The allocation of employee stock option
certificates granted to the managerial
officers
The allocation of employee stock option
certificates
The amount payment of annual year-end
bonus for managerial officers
Annual managerial officers salary
adjustment
Chief Medical Officer appointment

1/22/2019

2019/1

The allocation of employee stock option
certificates

Opinions of all
Independent
Directors
Consent

The
Company’s
Follow-up
Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed

Consent

Approved as
proposed
Approved as
proposed

Consent

3. Remuneration Committee responsibilities: The members of Remuneration Committee are
appointed by the Board of Directors. Members of the Committee shall be responsible for the
good management to the Board of Directors and shall set and regularly review the
management’s performance, policies, systems, standards, and structures of the remunerations
and compensations; Regular assessment shall be conducted to determine the remunerations and
compensations of Directors and the managerial officers. The most recent fiscal year and up to
the date of publication of the annual report, the Remuneration Committee faithfully fulfilled the
duties.
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3.3.5

Social Responsibility:
Current Status
Items

1. Corporate Governance Implementation
(1) Does the company declare its
corporate social responsibility
policy and examine the results of
the implementation?

Yes No Description



(2)Does the company provide
educational training on corporate
social responsibility on a regular
basis?
(3)Does the company establish 
exclusively
(or
concurrently)
dedicated
first-line
managers
authorized by the board to be in
charge of proposing the corporate
social responsibility policies and
reporting to the board?

(1)The Company discloses its CSR Guidelines on its website
and MOPS; it has been approved by the Board in 2015
Board meeting and was reported in General Shareholders’
Meeting. A step-by-step CSR policy was developed by the
General Manager and Vice President, the objectives of
which were achieved and reflected as follows: precise
implementation of corporate governance; zero occurrence of
issues that would have an environmental impact or be
regarded as unfair treatment; information disclosures being
transparent and immediate; CSR implementation status
regularly reported to the Board for their advice on making
improvements; donations totaling NT$247 thousand.
Directors’ suggestions were included on a broad scale to
serve as the guidance for enhancement.
(2) The Company’s CSR activities cover many aspects, such as

gender equality or social enterprises, etc.

(3) While running the business, the company also strives to
learn to fulfill its corporate social responsibility. The CSR
team headed by the President and Vice-President,
Administration Division, is the corporate social
responsibility promotion unit, which is divided into three
major tasks: Corporate Governance, Stakeholders, and
47

Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons
None

Current Status
Items

(4)Does the company declare a
reasonable salary remuneration
policy, and integrate the employee
performance appraisal system with
its corporate social responsibility

Yes No Description
public participation. Guided by the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Best Practice Principles “and amended it as
needed, leaded our colleagues to jointly promote the CSR
operation. The work plan includes various propaganda and
education training, and is devoted to the maintenance of
sustainable environment and public welfare. The next year's
plan is formulated this year. The execution the year of
2018: the company began to double listing in Taiwan and
the United States, so particularly strengthen the
implementation of Corporate Governance in the two places,
and invited lawyers and CPAs to collect governance’
regulations and practice instructions, assistance by
independent external training: A total of 10-person and
60-hour course was carried out, and the results in the good
promotion for the work and duty. They were not mistaken
for listing in the United States in the first year. The annual
report on corporate social responsibility is regularly
conducted annually from the Board of Directors since 2015,
and the implementation status is explained on the
company's website. The most recent report is January 25,
2019.
(4)The
Company has implemented business ethics education

and advocacy initiatives; established the training and
remuneration methods for its directors, supervisors, and
employees; and established the Director, Supervisor, and
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Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Current Status
Items

Yes No Description

policy, as well as establish an
effective reward and disciplinary
system?
2. Sustainable Environment Development
(1) Does the company endeavor to
utilize all resources more efficiently
and use renewable materials which
have low impact on the
environment?

Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Manager Code of Ethics as well as the Employee Practice
Code of Ethics. However, it has not yet combined the
employee appraisal system with its social responsibility
policies.


(2) Does the company establish proper

environmental
management
systems
based
on
the
characteristics of their industries?
(3) Does the company monitor the 
impact of climate change on its
operations and conduct greenhouse
gas inspections, as well as establish
company strategies for energy
conservation and carbon reduction

(1) The Company belongs to biotech industry and focuses on
research and development. There is established guideline
for laboratory waste, for the purpose of fostering energy
usage rate. Labs recycle reusable resources and allocate
waste to different categories.
(2) For business operation purposes, the Company has
environmental protection framework which set rules for
air, water, noise, waste, and toxic substance. Besides, the
Company has its own Laboratory Guidelines.
(3) The Company does not engage in business that produces
green-house air emission. The laboratories comply with
Guidelines for waste air, waste liquid, and waste solidity.
The offices promote to save energy, carbon-consumption,
water, and electricity. In the past two years (2018 and
2017), based on the electricity and water bills, the
average consumption of the company’s carbon-dioxide
were 776 tons and 754 tons respectively, were 5.1 tons
and 4.8 tons per person. It is due to the energy
consumption of the post-development process in 2018;
the total amount of waste removal in the whole year of
2018 was 7.35 tons, and the annual reduction of 4% had
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None. The Company is for
Biotech development, not for
manufacturing. The labs and
office aim at decreasing
environmental impacts.

Current Status
Items

Yes No Description

Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

achieved the effect. As a result, quantitative management
goals fall into three categories: (1) carbon reduction
raised by 2% in 2019 and holding steady in 2019; (2)
water reduction improved by 1% in 2019 and 2020; (3)
waste reduction improved by 1% in 2019 and 2020, plus
other waste control measures, e.g., sectional energy
management, electronic sheets and recycling. Please refer
to the dedicated chapter in the CSR report for more
details.
3. Preserving Public Welfare
(1) Does the company formulate
appropriate management policies
and procedures according to
relevant regulations and the
International Bill of Human
Rights?



(1) In order to implement social responsibility for the
protection of human rights, the Company has established a
human rights policy and disclosed it on the Company's website
based on International Bill of Human Rights. The specific
plans, are initially implemented in the diversification in the
workplace. Gender, age, race, political preference, physical and
mental disorders set no difference in promotion. There are
eight male supervisors and five female supervisors in the
Company. Secondly, in order to promote labor and social
rights, four labor management meetings are held in 2018. In
accordance with the regulations of labor law to guaranteed the
employees' rights, the Company has provided pensions.
Employees' Benefit Committee is established. The members
are elected by the employees to operate various welfare
matters. Furthermore, in terms of information security,
Computerized Information System Procedures has been set to
implement internal control and maintain information security
policies. Annual review has been carried out to ensure its
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None
Please refer to the Chinese
version of the annual report
on the Company's human
rights policy.

Current Status
Items

Yes No Description

(2) Has the company set up an 
employee hotline or grievance
mechanism to handle complaints
with appropriate solutions?
(3) Does the company provide a

healthy and safe working
environment and organize training
on health and safety for its
employees on a regular basis?
(4) Does the company setup a
communication channel with
employees on a regular basis, as
well as reasonably inform
employees of any significant
changes in operations that may
have an impact on them?



(5) Does the company provide its
employees with career
development and training sessions?



(6) Does the company establish any
consumer protection mechanisms
and appealing procedures regarding
research development, purchasing,
producing, operating and service?



appropriateness and effectiveness and evaluate the safety
regulations and procedures.
(2) Employees can file complaints to HR department, his/her
manager, President, or the Supervisor. Currently, the Company
has not happened to significant complaint cases.
(3)The Company holds more than twice Safety Training and at
least once Chemical Safety Training a year. So as to Fire
Extinguish Training, Environmental Safety, or other concerns
over health and working conditions.
(4) The Company communicates with its employees via
announcement and meetings.

(5) The Company analyzes employees’ career development
periodically. Besides, the Company also hires consulting firms
to train employees.
(6) It hasn't happened to consumer complaints. The approaches
to appeal and communicate with the Company when necessary
shall be clearly disclosed on the Company's website in order
for the stakeholders (consumers, suppliers, general public) to
contract the Company when the rights are violated.
(7) The Company promotes the concepts and practices of CSR
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Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

Current Status
Items

Yes No Description

(7) Does the company advertise and
label its goods and services
according to relevant regulations
and international standards?



(8) Does the company evaluate the
records of suppliers’ impact on the
environment and society before
taking on business partnerships?



(9) Do the contracts between the 
company and its major suppliers
include termination clauses which
come into force once the suppliers
breach the corporate social
responsibility policy and cause
appreciable
impact
on
the
environment and society?

Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

to the supply chain, selects the outsourcing pharmaceutical
factory that meets the environmental management ISO
certification, and cooperates with the supplier verified by the
Authorities of the Government to ensure that environmental
protection, safety and health are indeed followed. We will
work together to protect the environment, improve the safety
and health of our employees, and select international
pharmaceutical companies with reliable reputation to authorize
their product marketing to enhance corporate social
responsibilities.
(8) The Company has its system to evaluate suppliers for a
sustainable relationship.

(9) The Company stipulated the “Supplier Management
Procedure” which is defined as a supplier management policy
and has to sign contracts with suppliers. Currently, a standard
contract version which signed with major suppliers, has been
developed to incorporate corporate social responsibility, and
the termination or cancellation of the condition if the event of a
significant impact on the environment and society. So far, there
is no findings that major suppliers have been violated corporate
social responsibility. The detailed explanation to devote
together of the corporate social responsibility has been
disclosed on the Company website and the specific chapter of
the Corporate Social Responsibility Report.

4. Enhancing Disclosure of Corporate
Social Responsibility Information

None
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Current Status
Items

Yes No Description

Deviations from “Corporate
Social Responsibility
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and reasons

(1) Does the company disclose relevant 
(1) The Company reports its relevant information and material
and reliable information regarding its
information on MOPS and discloses information of
corporate social responsibility on its
corporate social responsibility on Company’s website
website and the Market Observation
(https://www.tlcbio.com/zh-TW) and annual report.
Post System (MOPS)?
5. Notes for differences between current status and Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies: The
Company has established “Corporate Social Responsibility Guidelines” and reports to Board every year. The Company also writes Annual
Corporate Social Responsibility Reports to disclose its achievement and improvement in this area.
6.Other key information on social responsibilities: The Company actively participates in social responsibilities, including lab safety management,
on-job training, conservation activities, and supporting minority groups.
7. Specify if any certificates on products or social responsibility reports: The Company might apply for certification for its Annual Corporate
Responsibility Report in future.

3.3.6 Compliance and Measurement of Company Ethics Management:
State of Operation (Note 1)
Evaluated Content
1. Establishment of Ethics Management
Principles and policies.
A. Having established Ethics Management
Principles and policies, has the
Company openly disclosed such
policies and operational methods in its
code of conduct and public statements,

Yes No


Description
A. The Company has established the “Ethics Management
Principles” and follows the Companies Act, Securities
and Exchange Act, Political Donations Act,
Anti-Corruption Act, Government Procurement Act,
Act on Recusal of Public Servants Due to Conflicts of
Interest, TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies’ related
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Deviations from TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies’ Code of
Practice, and Explanation
Complies with
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies’ Code of
Practice.

State of Operation (Note 1)
Evaluated Content

Yes No

and has the board of directors and
management
authorities
actively
implemented its commitment to these
policies?

B.

C.

Has
the
company
established
precautionary measures for unethical
behavior, stated and implemented its
operational procedures, code of
conduct, punishment for violation and
appeal system in each case?

Regarding highly-unethical behavior in
operational activities detailed in Article
7 Item 2 of the “Corporate Governance
Best
Code
of
Practice
for
TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies”, has
the company established precautionary
measures for bribery, including
accepting or providing illegal political
donations?





Description
regulations, and other business-related regulations as a
basis for implementing Ethics Management. The Board
of Directors has ensured that a competent administrator
is in place to supervise and guard against unethical
activities, and has periodically reviewed the
effectiveness of its implementation and results
achieved, thereby continuing to make improvements. In
addition, the Board of Directors complies with these
principles in order to avoid conflicts of interest.
B. In accordance with regulations in the “Corporate
Governance Best Code of Practice for TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies”, the Company has established the
“Ethics Management Principles”, which was approved
in the 2012 annual shareholders’ meeting. This openly
states that business activities must be conducted with
transparency and in a fair manner; any unethical
behavior is expressly forbidden. The auditing office is
responsible for the integrity of these policies and
supervises the implementation of preventive measures
and procedures. Related units are responsible for
specific prevention measures, and any violations are to
be reported to the Board of Directors.
C. The Company has established its “Ethics Management
Principles” and, through continuing education and
advocacy, requires the chairman, managers and
employees to adopt policies that prevent bribery and
illegal campaign contributions in the process of
conducting their business behavior. It is also clearly
stated that accepting unreasonable gifts of any kind,
either directly or indirectly, is prohibited in order to
prevent the personal interests of employees superseding
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Deviations from TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies’ Code of
Practice, and Explanation

State of Operation (Note 1)
Evaluated Content

2. Implementation of Ethics Management
A. Has the company assessed its business
partners’ ethical records and has its trade
partners adhered to ethical behavior
regulations as stated in the contract?
B. Has the company established a
specialized (or part-time) business
integrity management unit under the
auspices of the Board of Directors, and is
its implementation performance regularly
reported to the Board of Directors?

Yes No





Description
that of the Company’s. Concerning biotech company
industry matters, such as outsourcing and procurement
issues, the Company has established a committee for
decision making rather than allow for individuals to
make decisions in order to prevent unethical behavior
in conducting business activities.
A. The Company conducts business activities with
transparency and fairness. The legality of doing
business with partners is taken into consideration
according to the applicable laws, and terms for ethical
behavior are stated in the contract.
B. The company’s operations adhere to the Ethical
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies. The fulfillment of
ethical operations by the company’s employees is done
in a top-down manner, thanks to an optimal
organizational structure where the authority and
responsibility of the respective departments is guided
by the Ethical Management Unit (an ad hoc unit),
which is headed by the General Manager along with
officials from the Administration Division. In 2018, the
Company focused on the promotion of education by the
supervisors of the unit. In addition to the e-mail, the
Company held seminar to directly deliver the related
business should pay attention during the execution, a
total of 11 persons and 33 hours. And the internal and
external training courses for the employees, a total of
20 persons and 88 hours. The supervision of the
implementation is reported to the Board of Directors
once a year, the most recent report was on January 25,
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Deviations from TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies’ Code of
Practice, and Explanation

Complies with
TWSE/TPEx-Listed
Companies’ Code of
Practice.

State of Operation (Note 1)
Evaluated Content

Yes No

C. Has the company established and
implemented shareholder conflict
precautionary measures and provided
appropriate channels for dealing with
complaints?



D. Has the company established effective
accounting and internal control
regulations for implementing Ethics
Management, and conducted periodic
audits by internal controls or a retained
accountant?



Description
2019. The Company has established communication
channels between employees, shareholders and
stakeholders on illegal and unethical behavior on the
Company's website.
C. The Company has established the “Insider Trading
Prevention Management Procedure”, which includes
the internal information management procedures. It
states that the chairman, supervisors, managers and
employees may not disclose critical internal
information to others, and may not inquire or gather
undisclosed significant internal information that is
irrelevant to personal duties from those who hold such
information. When such information is gathered
through non-business related means, that person may
not disclose it to others. The chairman, supervisors and
other internal staff members are prohibited to profit
from information that is undisclosed to the public; this
rule is clearly stated on the Company’s website, and is
promoted through educational training and supervisors’
meetings are held to strengthen its implementation.
D. The Company’s accounting procedures are established
and amended at appropriate times with consideration
for related regulations and actual company operational
requirements. Internal control, internal audit, and
various management procedures and policies have also
been established. The internal audit unit periodically
audits complaints relating to the aforementioned
procedures and submits its audit reports at the board of
directors meetings each quarter. This significantly
reduces the risks of employees contravening the
Company’s policies while performing their duties,
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Deviations from TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies’ Code of
Practice, and Explanation

State of Operation (Note 1)
Evaluated Content
E. Has the company periodically held
internal and external educational training
for Ethics Management?
3. Company Complaints Procedures
A. Has the company established specific
complaints and rewards procedures,
accessible complaints channels, and
assigned
suitable
executives
to
responsibly handle such matters?

B. Has the company established standard
investigation procedures and related
confidentiality measures concerning
complaint issues?

C. Has the company established measures
to protect the complainant to prevent
unjustifiable consequences as a result of
his/her actions?

Yes No


Description
ensuring investor rights and interests are protected.
E. To implement the Ethics Management Principles and
enhance ethical behavior among staff members, the
Company also employs professional lecturers to
organize team-building and external training activities
in addition to regular annual internal training sessions.
A. The Company’s Grievances Policy and Procedures is in







place for handling legal and moral-related issues. It is
available for employees, shareholders, and stakeholders
to identify, report and penalize illegal or unethical
behaviors. In addition to announcements made on its
website, the Company also has a reporting channel on
the website and dedicated personnel have been assigned
to handle such reports. The identity of the
whistleblowers and the contents of their reports are
strictly confidential.
B. The Company attaches great importance to the
confidentiality and careful assessment of matters
brought to its attention by whistleblowers. To ensure
that such reports are clarified and appropriately
processed under the premise of protecting the
whistleblowers, hawse have established the Grievances
Policy and Procedures for handling legal and
moral-related issues as an internal standard operating
procedure and confidentiality mechanism.
C. Regardless of the severity of the complaint, protection
of the complainant is the Company’s responsibility.
With appropriate confidentiality measures in place,
there have never been unjustifiable consequences for
complainants who come forward.
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Deviations from TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies’ Code of
Practice, and Explanation

Complies with
TWSE/TPEx-Listed
Companies’ Code of
Practice.

State of Operation (Note 1)
Evaluated Content
4. Strengthening of Disclosures of
Information
A. Has the company revealed the contents
and implementation results of its Ethics
Management Principles on its website
and on the Market Observation Post
System?

Yes No

Description

Deviations from TWSE/TPEx
Listed Companies’ Code of
Practice, and Explanation



A. A Chinese and English corporate website has been set Complies with
up to provide the public with a clearer understanding of TWSE/TPEx-Listed
the Company. The website also has dedicated channels Companies’ Code of
for making announcements. The implementation of the Practice.
Company’s Ethics Management Principles is disclosed
in the annual report and in other public statements. In
2018, education courses related to the ethical
management (including drug safety, professional ethics
and legal responsibilities, accounting system and
internal control, and other related courses), a total of 20
participants and 88 hours.
5. For companies that have established their Ethics Management Principle in accordance with the “TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies’ Code of Practice”,
please state the differences between the company’s operations and the applied principles.
The Company’s “Ethics Management Principles” was approved at the June 26, 2012 shareholders’ meeting. Subsidiaries have been notified of the
requirement to adhere to these principles. There are no differences in compliance with the “TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies’ Code of Practice”.
6. Other critical information that contributes to understanding the company’s Ethics Management operational status (for example, where the company
has committed to promoting its Ethics Management with cooperating suppliers; policies and invitations to participate in educational training;
revisions and amendments to the company’s Ethics Management Principles):
A. The Company has held educational training and advocacy programs for its chairman, managers and employees. All departmental units promote
their ethical business behavior practices with related parties in order for them to thoroughly understand the Company’s commitment to such
policies, as well as raise awareness of the policies and preventive measures and the consequences of violation.
B. The Company has integrated its Ethics Management policies with its human resources policies which prescribe employee bonuses, thereby clearly
establishing a rewards system.
Note 1: Descriptions must be made for each question regardless of whether the answer to the operational situation is “yes” or “no”.
7.

For companies that have established Company Management Policies and related regulations, its inquiry method must be disclosed:

A. Company Management Principles and related regulations: The Company has established policies and regulations, including: the “Rules of
Procedures for board meetings”, “Rules of Procedure for shareholders meetings”, “Rules and Procedures on Election of Directors”, “Procedures
for Group Companies, Specific Companies and Related Parties Transactions”, “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”, “Code Of Ethics
For Directors And Managerial officer”, “Code of Operation Integrity”, “Procedures for Supervision of Subsidiaries”, “Employee Code of Conduct”,
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“Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information”, “Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles” and “Procedures of
Whistle-blowing System for Illegal Immoral or Dishonest Activities”.
B.

Inquiry Method: Market Observation Post System and the company’s website.
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3.3.7 Regulatory Compliance
Please refer to the Chinese annual report.
3.3.8 Other Important Information Regarding Corporate Governance
Please refer to the Chinese annual report.
3.3.9

Internal Control System Execution Status
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Statement of Internal Control System
Date: January 25, 2019

Based on the findings of a self-assessment, Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. (TLC) states the following with
regard to its internal control system during the year 2018:
1. TLC’s board of directors and management are responsible for establishing, implementing, and
maintaining an adequate internal control system. Our internal control is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance over the effectiveness and efficiency of our operations (including profitability,
performance and safeguarding of assets), reliability, timeliness, transparency of our reporting, and
compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.
2. An internal control system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed, an effective
internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance of accomplishing its stated objectives.
Moreover, the effectiveness of an internal control system may be subject to changes due to
extenuating circumstances beyond our control. Nevertheless, our internal control system contains
self-monitoring mechanisms, and TLC takes immediate remedial actions in response to any identified
deficiencies.
3. TLC evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system based on the criteria
provided in the Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies
(herein below, the Regulations). The criteria adopted by the Regulations identify five key components of
managerial internal control: (1) control environment, (2) risk assessment, (3) control activities, (4)
information and communication, and (5) monitoring activities.
4. TLC has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system according to the
aforesaid Regulations.
5. Based on the findings of such evaluation, TLC believes that, on December 31, 2018, it has maintained,
in all material respects, an effective internal control system (that includes the supervision and
management of our subsidiaries), to provide reasonable assurance over our operational effectiveness and
efficiency, reliability, timeliness, transparency of reporting, and compliance with applicable rulings, laws
and regulations.
6. This Statement is an integral part of TLCs annual report for the year 2018 and prospectus, and will be
made public. Any falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in the content made public will entail legal
liability under Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Law.
7. This statement was passed by the board of directors in their meeting held on January 25, 2019, with 0 of
the 7 attending directors expressing dissenting opinions, and the remainder all affirming the content of
this Statement.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Chairman and of the Board: Keelung Hong
General Manager: George Yeh
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3.3.10 Regulatory Authorities’ Legal Penalties to the Company or Its Employees, and the
Company’s Resulting Punishment on Its Employees for Violations of Internal Control
System Provisions, Principal Deficiencies, and the State of Any Efforts to Make
Improvements in 2018 and as of the Date of this Annual Report：None
3.3.11 Major Resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting and Board Meetings
Item

Date

Major Resolutions

1. Ratification of the 2016 Financial Statements and Business Report.
2. Ratification of the proposal to offset the deficit of 2016.
Annual
3. Approved to issue the “Restricted Employee Stock”.
Shareholders’ 05/31/2017
4. Election of the Directors and Supervisors.
Meeting
5.Approved to release the prohibition on Directors from participation in
competitive business.
1. Approved the Company’s 2017 Financial Statement and Operational Reports.
2. Approved the Company’s 2017 Financial Statements prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Standards.
3. Approved FYE 2017’s Appropriation of Profit & Loss.
4. Approved resolutions presented by members of compensation committee in the last
meeting held in January 2018.
1st Regular
5. Approved Proposal to extend the duration of the E. Sun Bank credit facility.
Board Meeting 01/19/2018 6. Approved Proposal to appoint a Hong Kong subsidiary of the Company, TLC
for FYE 2018
Biopharmaceuticals (H.K.) Limited, which is currently one hundred percent owned
by the Company, to commercialize the drug products (including but not limited to
TLC 166, TLC 177, and TLC 599) that are currently being developed by the
Company in China (including applying for marketing approvals and distributing the
Company’s drugs.)
7. Approved Proposal to dispose of 33.4% of the Company’s shares in the Hong Kong
Subsidiary.
2nd Regular
1. Approved to adjust the number of ordinary shares issued for sponsoring the offering
Board Meeting 03/06/2018
of American Depositary Receipts (“ADRs”).
for FYE 2018
1. Approved the 2017 Internal Control System Declaration.
2. Approved to amend the Procedures of Whistle-blowing System for Illegal, the
Immoral or Dishonest Activities and the Code of Operation Integrity.
3rd Regular
3. Approved the Investment Policy.
Board Meeting 03/20/2018
4. Approved resolutions relevant to the IPO in connection with the Company’s IPO in
for FYE 2018
the United States of its American Depositary Shares.
5. Approved the pricing and final number of shares represented by the ADSs offered
in the Company’s IPO in the United States.
1. Approved the resolutions adopted by the Compensation Committee on March 20,
2018.
2. Approved to engage China tax advisor.
3. Approved to approve (i) amendment to certain articles in the Company’s Articles
4th Regular
of Incorporation, the “Rules and Procedures on Election of Directors and
Board Meeting 04/10/2018
Supervisors,” the “Rules of Procedures for Board Meetings,” the “Rules of
for FYE 2018
Procedure for Shareholders Meetings,” the “Procedures for the Acquisition or
Disposal of Assets,” the “Operating Procedures for Endorsements and
Guarantees,” the “Operating Procedures Governing Lending of Funds,” the
“Procedural Rules for Prevention of Insider Trading,” the “Codes of Ethics for
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Item

Date

Major Resolutions

Directors, Supervisors, and Officers,” the “Rules Governing the Scope of Powers
of Independent Directors,” and the “Procedures of Whistle-blowing System for
Illegal Immoral or Dishonest Activities,” (ii) abrogation and re-adoption of the
“Compensation Committee Charter,” the “Code of Operation Integrity,” and the
“Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles,”(iii) adoption of the “Audit
Committee Charter”, and (iv) abrogation of the “Rules Governing the Scope of
Powers of Statutory Auditors.”
4. Approved matters in relation with accepting shareholders’ motion proposals for
the 2018 regular general meeting.
5. Approved the meeting time, venue, and agenda items of the 2018 regular general
meeting.
1. Approved to change spokesperson and deputy spokesperson.
2. Approved the “2018 Employee Stock Option Issuance and Share Subscription
Plan.”
5th Regular
3. Approved a loan facility from Cathay Bank in the US.
Board Meeting 05/11/2018
4. Approved the issuance of ordinary shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of
for FYE 2018
overseas depositary receipts and/or issuance of domestic ordinary shares for cash.
5. Approved the meeting time, venue, and amended agenda items of the 2018 regular
general meeting.
1. Ratification of the 2017 Financial Statements and Business Report.
2. Ratification of the proposal to offset the deficit of 2017.
3. Adoption to amend the Company's Articles of Incorporation
4. Adoption to amend the Company's "Procedures for the Acquisition
or Disposal of Assets."
5. Adoption to amend the Company's "Operating Procedures for
Endorsements and Guarantees."
6. Adoption to amend the Company's "Operating Procedures Governing
Annual
Lending of Funds."
Shareholders’ 06/26/2018
7. Adoption to amend the Company's "Rules of Procedures for
Meeting
Shareholders Meetings."
8. Adoption to amend the Company's "Rules and Procedures for
Election of Directors and Supervisors."
9. Adoption to abrogate the Company's "Rules Governing the Scope
of Powers of Supervisors."
10.Resolved to approve the issuance of ordinary shares for cash
to sponsor the issuance of overseas depositary receipts and/or
issuance of ordinary shares for cash domestically.
1.
6th Regular
2.
Board Meeting 06/29/2018 3.
for FYE 2018
4.

Approved to grant 2018 Employee Stock Option to full time employees.
Approved to grant Restricted Employee Stock to full time employees.
Approved the adjustment to the investment structure of the Company.
Approved the issuance of ordinary shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of
overseas depositary receipts.

7th Board
Meeting for FYE 07/20/2018 1. Approved the Sale of the shares of TLC Biopharmaceuticals (H.K.) Limited
2018
8th Regular
1. Approved the Company’s cancellation of shares and capital reduction
Board Meeting 08/01/2018
2. Approved to enter into indemnity agreements with directors and managers
for FYE 2018
1. Approved Internal Audit Plan for fiscal year 2019.
9th Regular
2. Approved to adopt the Company’s human rights policy, to amend the “Procedures
Board Meeting 10/31/2018
for Supervision of Subsidiaries”, “Procedures for Group Companies, Specific
for FYE 2018
Companies and Related Parties Transactions”, “Internal Audit System” and “Internal
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Item

Date

Major Resolutions
Control.”
3. Approved the resolutions adopted by the Remuneration Committee on October 31,
2018.
4. Approved the Company’s cancellation of shares and capital reduction.
5. Approved to appoint the director of the Hong Kong Subsidiary.
6. Approved the operational plan and budget for 2019.
7. Approved Audit Committee Member Qualification.
8. Approved Audit Committee Financial Expert

10th Board
Meeting for FYE 12/21/2018 1. Approved a loan facility from Cathay Bank in the US.
2018
1. Approved to amend certain provisions of the Company’s accounting system.
2. Approved the Company’s 2018 Financial Statement and Operational Reports.
3. Approved the Company’s 2018 Financial Statements prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Standards.
4. Approved to offset the deficit of 2018 and the non-distribution of share dividends,
either in shares or in cash.
5. Approved the 2018 Internal Control System Declaration.
6. Approved amendments to the Company’ Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal
of Assets.
1st Regular
7. Approved the resolutions adopted by the Compensation Committee on January 22,
Board Meeting 01/25/2019
2019.
for FYE 2019
8. Approved to grant 2018 Employee Stock Options to employees.
9. Approved matters regarding the employee stock ownership trust
10. Approved amendment to the registered address of the Company’s Hsinchu Branch.
11. Approved the issuance of ordinary shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of
overseas depositary receipts and/or issuance of domestic ordinary shares for cash.
12. Approved matters in relation with accepting shareholders’ motion proposals for the
2019 annual general meeting.
13. Approved the meeting time, venue, and agenda items of the 2019 annual general
meeting.
2nd Board
1. Approved regional commercialization of drugs.
Meeting for FYE 02/22/2019
2. Approved the out-licensing.
2019

3.3.12 In the most recent fiscal year and up to the date of publication of the annual report, a
director or supervisor has expressed a dissenting opinion with respect to a material
resolution passed by the Board of Directors, with recorded material or written
declaration: None
3.3.13 During the most recent fiscal year and up to the date of publication of the annual
report, a summary of resignations and dismissals of the Company's chairman, general
manager, accounting officer, financial officer, chief internal auditor, and research and
development officer: None
3.4

Information on CPA professional fees:
(I) CPA Professional fees
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CPA firms

CPA names

PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Taiwan

Teng,
Sheng-Wei

Auditing period

Hsieh,
Chih-Cheng

Remarks

01/01/2018~12/31/2018
Unit: NT$ thousands

Category of Fees

Range of the amount
1

Below NT$ 2,000 thousands

2

NT$ 2,000 thousand（inclusive）～
NT$ 4,000 thousand
NT$ 4,000 thousand（inclusive）～
NT$ 6,000 thousand
NT$ 6,000 thousand（inclusive）～
NT$ 8,000 thousand
NT$ 8,000 thousand（inclusive）～
NT$ 10,000 thousand
Above NT$ 10,000 thousand
(inclusive)

3
4
5
6

Audit fees

Non-Audit
fees

Total

0

0

0

3,485

0

3,485

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

24,643

24,643

(II) When non-audit fees paid to the CPA, the accounting firm of the CPA, and/or any
affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm are one quarter or more of the audit fees paid
thereto, the amounts of both audit and non-audit fees as well as details of non-audit
services shall be disclosed:
Unit：NT$ thousands

Certified Public
Accountant

Audit
fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Taiwan 3,485
Teng, Sheng-Wei
Hsieh, Chih-Cheng

Non-Audit fees
Internal
system

Business
registration

Human
resources

Others

0

0

0

24,643

Note2

Sub-total

24,643

CPA
Auditing
perioid

Remark

01/01/2018~
12/31/2018

3.5

Information on replacement of certified public accountant: In the last two years and the
period after the report date, the Company changed the CPA in 2017 because of the internal
business adjustment of the CPA firm, one of the CPA was replaced.

3.6

Where the Company's chairman, general manager, or any managerial officer in charge
of finance or accounting matters has held a position at the accounting firm of its
certified public accountant or at an affiliated enterprise in the most recent year: None.
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3.7

Changes in Shareholding of Directors, Supervisors, Managers and Major Shareholders

2018
Title

Name

Chairman
Keelung Hong
Board of Director TBG
Burrill Life Sciences
Board of Director
Capital Fund III, L.P.
Chang Xiang
Board of Director
Investment Company
Board of Director Moun-Rong Lin
Independent
Beatrice Liu
Director
Independent
May Kang
Director
Independent
Shieh-Shung Tom
Director
Chen
Supervisor
Ching-Fen Huang
Supervisor
Matthew Chan
Supervisor
Eric Chu
President
George Yeh
Chief Medical
George
Officer
Spencer-Green
Vice President
Yunlong Tseng
Vice President
Nicole Lin
Vice President
Wenji Chen
Vice President
Hung Wei Chih
Director
Yvonne Shih
Director
Terry Tai
Director
Bella Kuo
Director
MW Kuo
Director
Carl Oscar Brown
Director
Cynthia Lin

Pledged
Holding
Increase
(Decrease)

Holding
Increase
(Decrease)
35,400

Unit: Share
As of Feb. 24, 2019
Pledged
Holding
Holding
Increase
Increase
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
4,000
0

(303,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

117,000

0

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA

6,400

0

0

0

NA

NA

0

0

6,434
6,434
4,800
2,000
4,600
3,200
3,600
0
4,000
4,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3.7.1

Shares Trading with Related Parties: None

3.7.2

Shares Pledge
Unit：NT$ thousands

Name
President
George Yeh

3.8

Reason of
Pledge

Date of
Transaction

Transferee

Relationship between
Transferee and Directors,
Supervisors, Managers and
Major Shareholders

Pledged

No Change

E.Sun Bank

None

Shares
(thousand
shares)
350,000

Shares Shares
Pledged
Loan
holding Pledged (Redeemed)
Balance
%
%
Amount
1.39

39.41

Information Disclosing the Relationship between any of the Company’s Top Ten
Shareholders
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0

12,500

Shareholding

Name

Shares

%

Spouse & Minor

Shareholding
by Nominee
Arrangement

Shares

Shares

%

%

The relationship
between
any of the Company’s
Top Ten Share holders
Name
Relation

ADRS depositary

7,831,100 12.23%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

Burrill Life Sciences
Capital Fund III,
L.P.—trust account in
CTBC Bank

5,187,921 8.10%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

Tsang-Hai Lin

2,646,857 4.13%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

3.94%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

3.88%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

0.00%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

2.96%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

2.65%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

0.00%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

2.62%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

0.00%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

2.55%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

1,330,883 2.08%

0 0.00%

0 0.00%

None

None

Karst Peak Asia Master
2,524,000
Fund
Taiwan Global Biofund 2,487,372
Representative: Hsiu-Ying
Chiu
0
MOEA Trust Account in
1,898,079
CTBC Bank
Marvelex Corporation,
1,697,563
Panama
Representative: Mario
0
Scholz
Nan Shan Life Insurance
1,677,000
Company, Ltd.
Representative: Du,
0
Ying-Zong
Karst Peak Vermilion
1,632,000
Partners Master Fund
Keelung Hong

Note

Note1

Note2

Note2

Note1: Full account name - JPmorgan Chase Bank, N.A. acting in its capacity as depositary and representative of the holders of
American Depositary Receipts (ADRS) pursuant to a depositary agreement amongst JPmorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as depositary,
Taiwan Liposome Company Ltd. and all holders of ADRS
Note2: Karst Peak Capital Limited is the investment manager of these entities.

3.9

The total number of shares and total equity stake held in any single enterprise by the
Company, its directors and supervisors, managers, and any companies controlled either
directly or indirectly by the Company
December 31, 2018

Name of invested company

Investments of Directors,
Supervisors, Managers and
directly or indirectly controlled
businesses

Investments of the
Company
shares

Unit：thousand shares; %

%

shares

%

Total Investment
shares

%

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc

3,100

100%

0

0

3,100

100%

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, B.V.

1,000

100%

0

0

1,000

100%

780

100%

0

0

780

100%

NA

100%

0

0

NA

100%

1,000

100%

0

0

1,000

100%

1

100%

0

0

1

100%

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
(Shanghai) Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Japan Co., Ltd.
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IV. Capital Overview
4.1
4.1.1

Capital and Shares
Source of Capital

A. Type of Stock
Share Type
Common Stock

Authorized Capital
Issued Shares

Private Placement

Un-issued Shares

Total Shares

59,333,709

4,711,425

135,954,866

200,000,000

B. Issued Shares
Unit: thousand shares, NT$ thousands
Month/
Year
11/1997

Par
Value
10

Authorized Capital
Shares
10,000

Amount
100,000

Paid-in Capital
Shares
2,699

Remark

Amount

Sources of Capital

Capital Increased by
Assets Other than Cash

26,995 Initial Investment $26,995,000.

no
Assets Other than Cash

06/2003

22

03/2004

30

15,000

150,000

08/2006

10/13

15,000

01/2007

10/13

03/2007

10,000

100,000

7,249

72,495 Capital increase $20,932,000.

$22,750,000.
Offset creditor’s right
to capital $1,818,000.

12,549

125,495 capital increase $53,000,000

no

150,000

12,598

no

15,000

150,000

13,316

40

30,000

300,000

19,400

125,981 Exercising employee stock option $486,000.
Exercising employee stock option
133,157 $7,176,000.
capital increase
194,000 60,843,000.

02/2008

10/13/18

30,000

300,000

19,445

194,449 Exercising employee stock option $449,000.

no

09/2008

40

30,000

300,000

20,685

206,849 no

no
no

Share exchange for
$12,400,000.
To overwrite treasury

20,054

200,543 no

300,000

20,435

204,354 Exercising employee stock option $3,811,000. no

30,000

300,000

20,462

204,615 Exercising employee stock option $261,000.

no

42.45

60,000

600,000

28,553

285,531 Capital increase 80,916,000.

no

13/18

60,000

600,000

28,719

287,188 Exercising employee stock option $166,000.

no

10/2008

40

11/2008

10/13/18

30,000

05/2009

10/13/18

07/2009
08/2009

30,000

300,000

Exercising employee stock option
$2,253,000.
Exercising employee stock option
$2,740,000.
Private Placement for cash increase
$47,114,000.
Exercising employee stock option
$5,414,000.

stock $6,306,000.

05/2010

13/18

60,000

600,000

28,944

289,440

11/2010

13/18/28

60,000

600,000

29,218

292,180

04/2011

42.45

60,000

600,000

33,929

339,294

08/2011

13/18/28

60,000

600,000

34,471

344,708

10/2011

28

60,000

600,000

34,475

344,745 Exercising employee stock option $38,000.

no

11/2011
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60,000

600,000

38,886

388,863 capital increase $44,118,000.

no

01/2012

18/28

60,000

600,000

39,101

391,006

07/2012

18/28

60,000

600,000

39,292

08/2012

28

60,000

600,000

39,371

Exercising employee stock option
$2,143,000.
Exercising employee stock option
392,920
$1,914,000.
393,710 Exercising employee stock option $790,000.
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no
no
no
no

no
no
no

Other

Month/
Year

Par
Value

Authorized Capital
Shares

Amount

Paid-in Capital
Shares

Remark

Amount

Sources of Capital

Capital Increased by
Assets Other than Cash

01/2013

158

60,000

600,000

43,993

439,930 capital increase $46,220,000.

no

01/2013

28

60,000

600,000

44,070

440,696 Exercising employee stock option $766,000.

no

09/2013

298

60,000

600,000

54,070

540,696 capital increase $100,000,000.

no

10/2014

28/35

60,000

600,000

54,158

541,580 Exercising employee stock option $884,000.

no

01/2014

28/35/69.9

60,000

600,000

54,629

546,288

04/2014

28/35/69.9

60,000

600,000

54,755

60,000

600,000

54,866

548,662 Exercising employee stock option $1,110,000. no

60,000

600,000

55,173

551,732 Issuing Restricted Stock Awards $3,070,000. no

60,000

600,000

55,310

553,099 Exercising employee stock option 1,367,000. no

60,000

600,000

55,353

553,529 Issuing Restricted Stock Awards $430,000.

no

60,000

600,000

55,403

554,033 Exercising employee stock option $504,000.

no

60,000

600,000

55,399

553,993

60,000

600,000

55,474

554,736 Exercising employee stock option $743,000.

no
no

07/2014
09/2014
10/2014
12/2014
01/2015
03/2015
04/2015

28/35/69.9/
117.3
10
28/35/69.9/
117.3
10
28/35/69.9/
117.3
(10)
28/35/69.9/
117.3

Exercising employee stock option
$4,708,000.
Exercising employee stock option
547,552
$1,264,000.

Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$40,000.

no
no

no

07/2015

28/35/69.9

60,000

600,000

55,530

555,295 Exercising employee stock option$559,000

08/2015

(10)

60,000

600,000

55,505

555,045

10/2015

35/69.9

60,000

600,000

55,587

555,866 Exercising employee stock option $821,000

no
no

Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$250,000.

no

11/2015

(10)

60,000

600,000

55,570

Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
555,697
$169,000.

01/2016

35/69.9

60,000

600,000

55,621

556,203 Exercising employee stock option $506,000

no

600,000

55,709

60,000

600,000

55,721

60,000

600,000

55,726

Exercising employee stock option $973,000.
557,088 Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$88,000.
Exercising employee stock option $267,000.
557,214 Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$141,000.
Exercising employee stock option $159,000.
557,256 Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$117,000.

no

60,000

557,306 Exercising employee stock option $55,000.

no

04/2016

07/2016

10/2016

35/69.9
/117.3;(10)
35/69.9
/117.3;(10)
35/69.9
(10)

01/2017

69.9/117.3

60,000

600,000

55,731

06/2017

(10)

60,000

600,000

55,729

09/2017

(10)

60,000

600,000

55,713

12/2017

10；(10)

60,000

600,000

56,199

07/2018

10

60,000

600,000

56,249

08/2019

(10)

60,000

600,000

56,224

01/2019

10 ; (10)

200,000

2,000,000

64,045

Not yet

(10)

200,000

2,000,000

64,037

Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$22,000.
Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
557,131
$153,000.
Issuing Restricted Stock Awards $5M;
561,990 Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$141,000.
557,284

562,490 Issuing Restricted Stock Awards $500,000.
Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
562,240
$250,000.
Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
$100,000.
640,451
Issuing overseas depositary receipts
$78,311,000.
Deregistering Restricted Stock Awards
640,371
$80,000.

Note1: To apply for the registration after it’s approved by the Board.
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Other

no

no

no
no
no
no
no

no

no

Note1

C. Information for Shelf Registration: None.

4.1.2

Status of Shareholders
As of 02/24/2019

Item

Government
Agencies

Financial
Institutions

Other Juridical
Person

Domestic
Natural
Persons

Foreign
Institutions &
Natural Persons

Total

0

2

28

3,550

35

3,615

0

2,076,000

7,641,010

30,765,254

23,562,870

64,045,134

3.24%

11.93%

48.04%

36.79%

100%

Number of
Shareholders
Shareholding
(shares)
Percentage

4.1.3

0%

Shareholding Distribution Status

A. Common Shares (The par value for each share is NT$10)
As of 02/24/2019

Class of Shareholding
(Unit : Share)

Number of
Shareholders

Shareholding (Shares)

Percentage

1 ~ 999

1,166

53,694

0.09%

1,000 ~ 5,000

1,878

3,589,268

5.60%

5,001 ~ 10,000

226

1,764,897

2.76%

10,001 ~ 15,000

95

1,228,363

1.92%

15,001 ~ 20,000

53

948,061

1.48%

20,001 ~ 30,000

49

1,250,489

1.95%

30,001 ~ 50,000

32

1,219,990

1.90%

50,001 ~ 100,000

49

3,374,068

5.27%

100,001 ~ 200,000

24

3,233,988

5.05%

200,001 ~ 400,000

15

4,713,133

7.36%

400,001 ~ 600,000

8

4,042,074

6.31%

600,001 ~ 800,000

2

1,424,359

2.22%

800,001 ~ 1,000,000

4

3,671,278

5.73%

14

33,531,472

52.36%

3,615

64,045,134

100.00%

1,000,001 or over
Total
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4.1.4

List of Major Shareholders
As of 02/24/2019

Shareholding

Shareholder's Name

Shares

Percentage

ADRS depositary(Note1)
Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund III,
L.P.—trust account in CTBC Bank
Tsang-Hai Lin

7,831,100

12.23%

5,187,921

8.10%

2,646,857

4.13%

Karst Peak Asia Master Fund(Note2)

2,524,000

3.94%

Taiwan Global Biofund

2,487,372

3.88%

MOEA Trust Account in CTBC Bank

1,898,079

2.96%

Marvelex Corporation, Panama

1,697,563

2.65%

Nan Shan Life Insurance Company, Ltd.
Karst Peak Vermilion Partners Master
Fund(Note2)
Keelung Hong

1,677,000

2.62%

1,632,000

2.55%

1,330,883

2.08%

Note1: Full account name - JPmorgan Chase Bank, N.A. acting in its capacity as depositary and representative of
the holders of American Depositary Receipts (ADRS) pursuant to a depositary agreement amongst
JPmorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as depositary, Taiwan Liposome Company Ltd. and all holders of ADRS
Note2: Karst Peak Capital Limited is the investment manager of these entities.

4.1.5

Market Price, Net Worth, Earnings, and Dividends per Share
Item

2017

2018

Unit: NT$
As of 02/28/2019

Market Price per Share
Highest Market Price

128.0

130.0

99.5

Lowest Market Price

71.0

84.1

88.5

101.07

107.17

95.36

Before Distribution

17.57

10.45

N/A

After Distribution

17.57

10.45

N/A

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary
Shares Outstanding(1,000 shares)

55,489

62,719

N/A

Basic Earnings(Loss) Per Share

(15.75)

(14.37)

N/A

Average Market Price
Net Worth per Share

Net Loss per Share

Earnings per Share
Cash Dividend

0

0

N/A

Stock Dividend

0

0

N/A

Accumulated Unpaid Dividend

0

0

N/A

Price / Earnings Ratio (Note 1)

N/A

N/A

N/A

Price / Dividend Ratio (Note 2)

N/A

N/A

N/A

0

0

N/A

Return on Investment

Cash Dividend Yield Rate (Note 3)

Note 1: Price / Earnings Ratio = Average Market Price / Earnings per Share
Note 2: Price / Dividend Ratio = Average Market Price / Cash Dividends per Share
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Note 3: Cash Dividend Yield Rate = Cash Dividends per Share / Average Market Price

4.1.6

Dividend Policy and Implementation Status

A. Dividend Policy
The Company is at the stage of development and growth and will expand in future. The earning
distribution shall be appropriated while taking capital expenditure and operation capital into account.
After offsetting any loss of prior year(s) and paying all taxes and dues, 10% of the remaining net
earnings shall be set aside as legal reserve, and appropriation will be made as special reserve in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Law.
The next three years, the Company plans to invest in drug developments and long-term projects. If
any remaining net earnings can be distributed together with prior accumulated un-appropriated
retained earnings, the Board of Directors will consider the factors that were mentioned above when
making the dividend distribution proposal. The dividends will be distributed in accordance with the
resolution that is approved by the Board of Directors and the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.
B. Proposed Distribution of Dividend
The proposal for distribution was passed at the Meeting of the Board of Directors. In this proposal,
due to net losses of 2018, none of cash dividend and none of stock dividend will be discussed at the
annual shareholders’ meeting.
4.1.7

Employee Bonus and Directors' and Supervisors' Remuneration

Information Relating to Employee Bonus and Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration in the
Articles of Incorporation
A maximum of 2% of any available after-tax earnings is allocated as remuneration for the Directors
and Supervisors while between 2% and 8% is allocated as a bonus for employees if there are any
earnings in this fiscal year. However, if there is an accumulated deficit, an equivalent amount shall
be reserved in the first place. The aforesaid employee bonus shall be allocated to employees of the
subordinate companies who meet certain requirements.
Any remaining balance of earnings is distributed as follows:
1. Pay duties and taxes in accordance with the law.
2. Offset losses of the previous years.
3. Allocate 10% as legal reserve, unless such legal reserve has amounted to the total capital.
4. Set aside or allocate special reserves as required by law, as the case may be.
5. The remaining and accumulated undistributed earnings of previous years may then be distributed
or retained after the Board of Directors has made a proposal for such, and the shareholders' meeting
has resolved accordingly.
The Company is in its growth stage and future business expansion is expected. Therefore, the
distribution of dividends shall take into account the budgets, expenditures, and demands of capital
in the future. The cash dividend shall be no less than 10% of the total stock dividend.
4.1.8
4.2
4.3
4.4

Buyback of Treasury Stock: None
Bond: None
Preferred Stock: None
Overseas Depositary Receipts:
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Issue date

November 27, 2018

Item
Record date of cash capital increase

November 27, 2018

Place of Trading

Nasdaq Market

Total dollar amount

USD 22,710,190

Unit price of American depositary receipts

USD 5.8

Total number of units to be issued

3,915,550 units

Source of Securities Represented by the
Depository Receipts

Common Shares

Rights and obligations of holders of
depositary receipts

Total number of units to be issued: 3,915,550
units of overseas depositary receipts (Each
overseas depositary receipt represents 2
ordinary shares of the Company).
Total number of common shares to be issued:
7,831,100 shares.
The holders of Depositary Receipts have the
same rights and obligations as ordinary shares

Trustee

N/A

Depositary

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

Custodian

JPMorgan Chase Bank, Taipei Branch

Unconverted balance

3,915,550 units

Number of Securities Represented by each
Depositary Receipt

Allocation of Expenses Incurred from the
Offering of the Depository Receipts and
Other On-going Expenses
Important stipulations in deposits contract
and custody contract
2018
Market Price
per Unit (US$)

Up to the
fisical year
2/28/2019

4.5
4.5.1

It is borne by the Company.
Please refer to the deposit contract and custody
contract for more detail

Highest Market Price

6.50

Lowest Market Price

5.02

Average Market Price

5.93

Highest Market Price

7.29

Lowest Market Price

5.80

Average Market Price

6.32

Employee Stock Options
Issuance of Employee Stock Options
3/15/2019

Type of Stock Option

1nd Round of 2013

Regulatory approval date

2013/08/26

2ndTranche
2014/03/20

Issue date
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3rd Tranche
2014/08/15

Duration

5 years

Units issued
Option shares to be issued as a percentage of
outstanding shares

250 shares

145 shares

0.39%

0.23%

After two full years of issuance to the date that is after five full years
of issuance.

Exercising Period
Conversion measures

Issuing new shares
Two full years have elapsed: 50%
The 24 months after two full elapsed years: every another full month
to increase 1/48 percentage
Four full years have elapsed: 100%

Conditional conversion periods and
percentages
Converted shares

0 shares

0 shares

Exercised amount

$0

$0

250,000 shares

145,000 shares

NT$249.7 per share

NT$191.7 per share

0.39%

0.23%

Number of shares yet to be converted
Adjusted exercise price for those who have yet
to exercise their rights
Unexercised shares as a percentage of total
issued shares
Impact on possible dilution of shareholdings

In order to attract and sustain human resources for the Company and
to enlarge shareholders’ equity, the Company thus issues employee
stock options.

3/15/2019
Type of Stock Option

1nd Round of 2014

Regulatory approval date

12/1/2014

Issue date

1st Tranche
02/26/2014

2ndTranche
4/30/2014

Duration

3rdTranche
5/4/2014

4thTranche
7/30/2014

5thTranche
10/29/2014

5 years

Units issued

1,463 units

16 units

35 units

70 units

216 units

Option shares to be issued as a percentage
of outstanding shares

2.28%

0.02%

0.05%

0.11%

0.34%

Exercising Period

After two full years of issuance to the date that is after five full years of
issuance.

Conversion measures
Conditional conversion periods and
percentages

Issuing new shares
Two full years have elapsed: 50%
The 24 months after two full elapsed years: every another full month to
increase 1/48 percentage
Four full years have elapsed: 100%
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Converted shares

0 shares

0 shares

0 shares

0 shares

0 shares

Exercised amount

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

Number of shares yet to be converted

1,463,000
shares

Adjusted exercise price for those who have
yet to exercise their rights

NT$227.3
per share

NT$208.4
per share

NT$208.4
per share

NT$140.8
per share

NT$134.7
per share

Unexercised shares as a percentage of total
issued shares

2.28%

0.02%

0.05%

0.11%

0.34%

Impact on possible dilution of
shareholdings

16,000 shares 35,000 shares 70,000 shares

216,000
shares

In order to attract and sustain human resources for the Company and to
enlarge shareholders’ equity, the Company thus issues employee stock
options.

3/15/2019
Type of Stock Option

1st Round of 2015

Regulatory approval date

12/4/2015

Issue date

2/25/2016

Duration

8/11/2016

11/3/2016

5 years

Units issued

1,579 units

148 units

73 units

Option shares to be issued as a percentage of
outstanding shares

2.47%

0.23%

0.11%

Exercising Period

After one full year of issuance to the date that is after five full years
of issuance.

Conversion measures

Issuing new shares

Conditional conversion periods and percentages

Two full years have elapsed: 50%
The 24 months after two full elapsed years: every another full
month to increase 1/48 percentage
Four full years have elapsed: 100%

Converted shares

0 share

0 share

0 share

Exercised amount

$0

$0

$0

Number of shares yet to be converted

1,579,000 shares

148,000 shares

73,000 shares

Adjusted exercise price for those who have yet
to exercise their rights

NT$150.5 per share

NT$123.7 per share

NT$118.0 per share

Unexercised shares as a percentage of total
issued shares

2.47%

0.23%

0.11%
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Impact on possible dilution of shareholdings

In order to attract and sustain human resources for the Company
and to enlarge shareholders’ equity, the Company thus issues
employee stock options.

3/15/2019
Type of Stock Option

1st Round of 2018

Regulatory approval date

5/28/2018

Issue date

6/29/2018

Duration

7/2/2018

3/7/2019

5 years

Units issued

1,320 units

65 units

115 units

Option shares to be issued as a percentage of
outstanding shares

2.06%

0.10%

0.18%

Exercising Period

After one full year of issuance to the date that is after five full years
of issuance.

Conversion measures

Issuing new shares

Conditional conversion periods and percentages

Two full years have elapsed: 50%
The 24 months after two full elapsed years: every another full
month to increase 1/48 percentage
Four full years have elapsed: 100%

Converted shares

0 share

0 share

0 share

Exercised amount

$0

$0

$0

Number of shares yet to be converted

1,320,000 shares

65,000 shares

115,000 shares

Adjusted exercise price for those who have yet
to exercise their rights

NT$99.2 per share

NT$101.2 per share

NT$97.4 per share

Unexercised shares as a percentage of total
issued shares

2.06%

0.10%

0.18%

Impact on possible dilution of shareholdings

In order to attract and sustain human resources for the Company
and to enlarge shareholders’ equity, the Company thus issues
employee stock options.
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4.5.2

List of Executives and the Top 10 Employees Receiving Employee Stock Options
As of 3/15/2019 unit:1,000 shares

Title

Name

Option
Exercised
Shares
Converted
No. of
as a
Amount
No. of Strike
Shares as a
Option Percenta
(NT$
No. of Shares
Shares Price
Percentage
Shares
ge of
thousand
Converted
Converted (NT$)
of Shares
Shares
)
lssued
lssued

Unexercised
Strike
Price
(NT$)

Converted
Amount
Shares as a
(NT$
Percentage of
thousand)
Shares lssued

1,499

28
379
227.3
208.4
150.5
118
99.2
101.2
97.4

243,014

2.34%

687

117.3
379
249.7
227.3
134.7
150.5
99.2

130,151

1.07%

Keelung
Hong
President George Yeh
CEO

Staff

Management

CMO
Vice
President
Vice
President
Vice
President
Vice
President

George
Spencer-Green

Nicole Lin
Hung Wei
Chih
Wenji Chen

Yunlong
Tseng
Carl Oscar
Director
Brown
Director Cynthia Lin
Director Yvonne Shih
Director Bella Kuo
Director MW Kuo
Director Terry Tai
Manager Jeanny Chu
Manager Yi-shi Chiang
Specialist Ahan Hung
Special
Paul Chang
Assistant
Cloud
Chuang
Manager
Manager Vivian Yu
Manager Wayne Liao
Manager Tiffany Liu
Researcher Karen Ou
Specialist Ivy Chiues

4.6
4.6.1

3,235

993

5.05%

1.55%

1,736

306

13/18
41,691
28/35

13
18
28
35
69.9

2.71%

9,448

0.48%

Restricted Stock Awards
Issuance of Restricted Stock Awards

Type of Stock Option
Regulatory approval date
Issue date
Units issued
Strike price
Restricted Stock Awards shares to be
issued as a percentage of outstanding
shares

Conditional conversion periods and
percentages

Restricted Stock Awards in 2017
8/29/2017
11/16/2017

7/2/2018

500,000 shares

50,000 shares
NT$10 per share

0.78%

0.08%

Following the subscription of New Restricted Employee Shares (i.e.,
the “Record Date of Capital Increase”), vesting conditions shall be
fulfilled when employees are in service at the expiration of the
following vesting periods without any violation of the rules set out
in the labor contract during the period.
(a) 20% of New Restricted Employee Shares shall be vested if
employees have served for one year without any violation of the
rules set out in the labor contract during the first year following the
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Type of Stock Option
Regulatory approval date
Issue date

Restricted Stock Awards in 2017
8/29/2017
11/16/2017

7/2/2018

subscription of New Restricted Employee Shares.
(b) 30% of New Restricted Employee Shares shall be vested if
employees have served for two years without any violation of the
rules set out in the labor contract during the second year following
the subscription of New Restricted Employee Shares.
(c) 50% of New Restricted Employee Shares shall be vested if
employees have served for three years without any violation of the
rules set out in the labor contract during the third year following the
subscription of New Restricted Employee Shares.
Employees who have not reached the vesting conditions：
Employees who has subscribed but fail to meet the grant conditions,
the Company shall buy back and the cancel all Restricted Stock
Awards at the issued price in accordance with the laws. The relevant
restrictions, important agreements and any other matters not set forth
shall be dealt with the applicable laws and regulations and the
issuance rules set by the Company.
1. Except for inherence, during the vesting period, an employee may
not sell, pledge, transfer, give to another person, create any
encumbrance on, or otherwise dispose of, new restricted employee
Restricted Conditions
shares.
2. During the vesting period, the new restricted employee shares can
still participate in stock and cash dividends and subscription to cash
rights issues and such cash dividends and subscription is not required
to be deposited in trust and will not be subject to restrictions.
3. The new issued shares of Restricted Stock Awards have the same
shareholding rights as other common shares of the Company.
4. After new shares of Restricted Stock Awards are issued, the shares
shall be in trusted fund. Before the vested conditions complete,
employees shall not request for returning new shares from the trustee.
After issuance, the new restricted employee shares must immediately
Depository methods of new shares
be deposited in trust.
In case of failed to meet the grant conditions:
Voluntary departure from employment: the Company shall buy back
and the cancel all Restricted Stock Awards at the issued price.
2. Dismissal from employment: the Company shall buy back and the
cancel all Restricted Stock Awards at the issued price.
3. Leave without pay: the Company shall buy back and the cancel all
Restricted Stock Awards at the issued price unless the permission by
the Board.
4. Retirement: the Company shall buy back and the cancel all
Restricted Stock Awards at the issued price unless the permission by
the Board.
Handling of an employee's failure to meet 5. Death: the Company shall buy back and the cancel all Restricted
the vesting conditions
Stock Awards at the issued price unless the permission by the Board.
6. Sufferers of disability due to an occupational accident: the Company
shall buy back and the cancel all Restricted Stock Awards at the issued
price unless the permission by the Board.
7. Job position transfer to an affiliate: If due to the Company's
operational needs, the Company decides that it is necessary to transfer
a holder of the Company stock options to a position at an affiliate, the
transfer shall have no effect on the rights and obligations in connection
with the restricted stock awards already allocated.
The Chairman shall decide the schedule and percentage of vested
shares for employee’s transfer due to the Company’s interests.
8. Employees will not have to return the stock dividend or cash
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Type of Stock Option
Regulatory approval date

Restricted Stock Awards in 2017
8/29/2017

Issue date

11/16/2017

7/2/2018

dividend occurred by forfeited restricted stock awards
9. Employees who have not reached the vesting conditions: Employees
who has subscribed but fail to meet the grant conditions, the Company
shall buy back and the cancel all Restricted Stock Awards at the issued
price in accordance with the laws.
Bought-back or canceled new shares of
Restricted Stock Awards
Shares of Unrestricted Stock Awards

43,000 shares

0 shares

93,000 shares

0 shares

New shares of Restricted Stock Awards

364,000 shares

50,000 shares

Percentage of new shares of Restricted
Stock Awards to Total Issued Shares (%)

0.57%

0.08%

Impacts on Shareholders’ Equity

4.6.2

The rights of the new employee shares issued by the Company are
restricted until March 15, 2019. The ratio accounted for by the new
shares with restricted rights that have not yet been lifted is a mere
0.65%. The rights and obligations of the shares acquired by the
employees are identical to those of the general shares issued by the
Company, so there is no major impact to the existing shareholders of
the Company.

List of Executives and the Top 10 Employees Receiving Restricted Stock Awards
As of 3/15/2019 unit:1,000 shares

Title

Name

CEO
President

Management

Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President

Director
Director
Director

Staff

Director
Director
Manager
Assistant
Manager
Manager
Manager
Manager
Manager
Manager
Special
Assistant
Manager
Assistant
Manager

4.7

Keelung Hong
George Yeh
Yunlong
Tseng
Nicole Lin
Wenji Chen
Hung Wei
Chih
Yvonne Shih
Terry Tai
Bella Kuo
Carl Oscar
Brown
Cynthia Lin
Renee Chih

Option
Exercised
Shares as
No. of
a
Converted
No. of
Strike Amount
Option Percentag
Shares as a
Shares
Price
(NT$
Shares
e of
Percentage of
Shares Converted (NT$) thousand) Shares issued
issued

Unexercised
No. of Shares
Converted

Strike Price
(NT$)

Amount
(NT$
thousand)

Converted
Shares as a
Percentage of
Shares issued

253

0.40%

46.6

10

10

0.07%

206.4

10

10

0.33%

152

0.22%

26.4

10

10

0.04%

125.6

10

10

0.20%

Ben Wang
Chrissy Wang
Jeanny Chu
Hazal Lin
Cloud Chuang
Carina Chen
Paul Chang
Wayne Liao
Dawn Chi

Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions：NA
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4.8

Financing Plans and Implementation

4.8.1 Finance Plans - Plan 1
A. For each uncompleted public issue or private placement of securities, and for such issues and
placements that were completed in the most recent three years but have not yet fully yielded the
planned benefits:
Cash increase of $1,980,000,000 in 2013 was aimed at new formulation or new formula;
another cash increase of $1,000,000,000 in 2013 was aimed at machinery purchase; both for
three new projects for drugs.
The total amount of cash increase: NT$2,980,000,000.
B. Source of funds: Cash increase by issuing new shares of 10,000,000 shares, NT$298 per share,
the total raised amount is NT$2,980,000,000.
C. All changes to the plan, the source of funds and the manner of their utilization, the reason(s) for
any changes to the plan, the benefits yielded by the funds before and after any change to the plan,
the date on which the change to the plan was reported at a shareholders' meeting
(1)Date of the report at a shareholders' meeting: October 31, 2017.
(2)Contents of the Change：It is proposed to re-allocate the resources after considering the fact
that such expenses are higher than expected due to the medical and pharmaceutical authority’s
requirements for new form/new formula drugs.
(3)Projects and Associated Costs：
Before Amendment: R&D expense from new dosage/new formulation NT$1,980,000
thousand; procurement of machinery/equipment NT$1,000,000 thousand. Total expense
NT$2,980,000 thousand.
After Amendment: R&D expense from new dosage/new formulation NT$2,417,503 thousand;
procurement of machinery/equipment NT$262,497 thousand; cost of business activities
NT$ 300,000 thousand. Total expense NT$2,980,000 thousand.
Planning schedules before changes
unit：NT$ thousands
Project
TLC599
RD TLC198
TLC178

Scheduled
Budget
360,000

2013
Q3

Q4

2014
Q1

Q2

2015
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

2016
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

6,600 15,600 20,400 20,400 37,200 22,200 22,200 22,200 22,200 22,200 37,200 37,200 37,200 37,200

630,000 13,200 22,800 27,750 27,750 27,750 42,750 84,750 84,750 84,750 84,750 54,750 24,750 24,750 24,750
990,000

4,800

4,500 18,000 23,700 19,500 28,500 40,500 49,500 88,500 118,500 133,500 163,500 163,500 133,500

Subtotal 1,980,000 24,600 42,900 66,150 71,850 84,450 93,450 147,450 156,450 195,450 225,450 225,450 225,450 225,450 195,450
Machinery
Purchase 1,000,000 7,500 70,500 117,000 105,000 215,800 106,800 34,800 37,800 64,800 94,800 67,800 34,800 34,800 7,800
Total

2,980,000 32,100 113,400 183,150 176,850 300,250 200,250 182,250 194,250 260,250 320,250 293,250 260,250 260,250 203,250

Project TLC198 is renamed to TLC590.
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Planning schedules after changes
Accumulated
Scheduled
Amount before
Budget
2017’Q2

Project

2017

unit：NT$ thousands
2019

2018

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

TLC599

687,660

318,629

57,929

78,330

51,396

43,109

56,530

42,028

19,179

20,530

RD TLC590

834,896

502,136

26,638

20,332

19,658

74,322

68,017

50,002

27,663

46,128

TLC178

894,947

733,491

22,415

26,018

18,579

17,678

23,082

17,678

18,003

18,003

Subtotal
Machinery
Purchase
Business
operation

2,417,503

1,554,256

106,982

124,680

89,633

135,109

147,629

109,708

64,845

84,661

262,497

212,497

0

7,500

13,000

9,500

15,000

2,000

3,000

0

300,000

0

300,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

2,980,000

1,766,753

406,982

132,180

102,633

144,609

162,629

111,708

67,845

84,661

(4) Cause of Change：R&D expenses and purchases of machinery/equipment are all resources
needed for carrying out the R&D of new dosage and new formula of drugs. R&D expenses
have been higher than forecast due to current requirements for new dosage/formulation from
medical regulatory bodies. Hence, it was necessary to evaluate the overall resource allocation,
reduce the procurement cost of processing improvement and outsourced production, and to
allocate the cost toward investments on toxicological and clinical design, as part of the
additional requirement from the regulatory bodies. The cost would also be used toward R&D
expenses that encompass development of new dosages more conducive toward market
expansion, and adjustments on effective formulation to mitigate side effects, as well as for
new business activities to strengthen the Company’s liquidity.
(5) Anticipated benefits：
Anticipated benefits before changes
1. TLC599, a new dosage/new formula non-cancer drug: applied for new drug application (NDA)
in the United States.
2. TLC198 (TLC590) a new dosage/new formula non-cancer drug: applied for new drug
application in the United States.
3. TLC178, a new dosage/new formula cancer drug: completed Phase 2 clinical trials in the United
States.
Please refer to the Chinese annual report in detail.
Anticipated benefits after changes
1. TLC599, a new dosage/new formula non-cancer drug: completed Phase 2 clinical trials in the
United States.
2. TLC198 (TLC590) a new dosage/new formula non-cancer drug: confirmed Phase 1 and Phase 2
clinical maximum tolerated dosage.
3. TLC178, a new dosage/new formula cancer drug: confirmed Phase 1 and Phase 2(a) clinical
maximum tolerated injection dosage.
Please refer to the Chinese annual report in detail.
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4.8.2 Implementation - Plan 1
A. Planning schedules:
Project

Accumulated
Scheduled
Amount before
Budget
2017’Q2

2017

Unit: NT$ thousands
2019

2018

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

TLC599

687,660

318,629

57,929

78,330

51,396

43,109

56,530

42,028

19,179

20,530

RD TLC590

834,896

502,136

26,638

20,332

19,658

74,322

68,017

50,002

27,663

46,128

TLC178

894,947

733,491

22,415

26,018

18,579

17,678

23,082

17,678

18,003

18,003

Subtotal
Machinery
Purchase
Business
opr.

2,417,503

1,554,256

106,982

124,680

89,633

135,109

147,629

109,708

64,845

84,661

262,497

212,497

0

7,500

13,000

9,500

15,000

2,000

3,000

0

300,000

0

300,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

2,980,000

1,766,753

406,982

132,180

102,633

144,609

162,629

111,708

67,845

84,661

B. Implementation
Unit: NT$ thousands
Project

Advance or delay of projects and the reasons

Updated to Q4 2018
Expenses

R&D Expenditure
Schedule (%)
Expenses
Machinery Purchase
Schedule (%)
Expenses
Business Operation
Schedule (%)
Expenses
Total
Schedule (%)

Planned

2,332,842

Actual

2,279,468

Planned

96.50%

Actual

94.29%

Planned

259,497

Actual

262,497

Planned

98.86%

Actual

100.00%

Planned

300,000

Actual

300,000

Planned

100.00%

Actual

100.00%

Planned

2,889,339

Actual

2,841,965

Planned

96.96%

Actual

95.37%
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As expected.

N/A

C. Performance analysis
Project/Performance

Updated to Q4 2018

TLC599 new formulation for small joints
infection

1. Completed clinical I/II Study in Taiwan
2. Completed clinical II Study in Taiwan and
Australia
3. Performing Osteoarthritis (OA)
pharmacokinetics (PK) study in USA

TLC590 new formulation for enabling the
sustained release of a constant amount of local
anesthetic

1. Ready for formulation re-design
2. Completed toxicity testing for soft-tissue surgery
under the animal model.
3. Performing soft-tissue surgery local anesthesia
clinical Phase1/2 study

TLC178 new formulation for effectively
reducing the toxicity of existing Vinorelbine
drugs

1. Approved USA Orphan Drug
2. Completed consultation for new indication in
accordance with US laws.
3. Performing clinical phase I/ 2(a) study

4.8.3

Finance Plans - Plan 2

The issuance of ordinary shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of overseas
depository receipts and/or issuance of domestic ordinary shares for cash.
A. Descriptions of the plan
To issue new shares for cash capital increase to sponsor American
Depositary Receipts in 2018 in order to invest NT$1,440,000 thousand in R&D
expenditure of new dosage/formula of medicine and ensure competitive edge.
(1) Capital increase approval date and Letter ref. no.: The application was
registered and became effective via the Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No. 1070327328
Official Letter dated August 8, 2018; the application was approved for reference
via the Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No. 1070338741 Official Letter dated October 22,
2018.
(2) Total capital required for the plan: NT$1,440,000 thousand.
B. Source of funds: The initial public offering of 3,915,550 American Depositary
Shares (ADSs) is at a public offering price of $5.80 per ADS raising gross
proceeds of approximately $22.71 million.
C. All changes to the plan, the source of funds and the manner of their utilization, the
reason(s) for any changes to the plan, the benefits yielded by the funds before and
after any change to the plan, the date on which the change to the plan was reported
at a shareholders' meeting: N/A
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4.8.4 Implementation - Plan 2
A. Planning schedules:
Unit: NT$ thousands
Accumu
Sche
lated
duled Amount

Project

2018
Q3

2019

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

2020
Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

2021
Q4

Q1

Q2

RD

TLC590

2021’
783,580 59,460 65,460 71,583 66,400 76,155 64,988 75,366 70,877 69,918 57,382 55,846
Q2

50,145

TLC178

2021’
656,420 59,952 57,001 51,470 47,616 45,470 55,804 58,439 66,629 58,467 56,915 49,364
Q2

49,293

1,440,000 119412 122461 123053 114016 121625 120792 133805 137506 128385 114297 105210

99,438

Total

B. Implementation
Unit: NT$ thousands
Project

Advance or delay of projects and the reasons

Updated to Q4 2018
Expenses

R&D Expenditure
Schedule (%)

Expenses
Total
Schedule (%)

Planned

241,873 Due to the completion of fundraising is

Actual

104,294 delayed,

Planned

16.80%

Actual

7.24%

Planned

241,873

Actual

104,294

Planned

16.80%

Actual

7.24%

the actual progress is behind
the schedule.

C. Performance analysis
The fundraising of completion and estimation times are different. However, in the
actual progress of the R&D project as of the fourth quarter of 2018, the R&D
project TLC590 has completed the second batch of drugs and completed the
toxicological study in animal model. The test was in line with expectations and
TLC178 achieved partial performance.
Performance

Q4 2018

Project

TLC590

TLC178

1. Completed the second batch manufacturing drug
for the second clinical study
2. Completing the toxicological study in animal
model for hard-tissue resection
1. Obtained the phase1/2 clinical study permission
for rare pediatric disease, Rhabdomyosarcoma
(RMS)
83

V. Operational Highlights
5.1

Business Activities

5.1.1

Business Scope

A. Main areas of business operations：
F108021 Wholesale of Drugs and Medicines;
F107070 Wholesale of Animal Medicines;
F107080 Wholesale of Environment Medicines;
F108031 Wholesale of Drugs, Medical Goods;
F208021 Retail Sale of Drugs and Medicines;
F207070 Retail Sale of Animal Medicines;
F207080 Retail Sale of Environment Medicine;
F208031 Retail Sale of Medical Equipments;
F401010 International Trades;
F203010 Retail Sale of Food and Grocery;
C802060 Animal Use Medicine man;
C802080 Pesticides Manufacturing;
C802100 Cosmetics Manufacturing;
F601010 Intellectual Property;
I103060 Management Consulting Services;
IC01010 Pharmaceuticals Examining Services;
IG01010 Biotechnology Services;
ZZ99999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except
those that are subject to special approval.

B. Revenue distribution
Unit；NT$ thousands

2016

2017

2018

Major
Divisions

Total Sales

Milestone

1,103

2.65%

0

0.00%

10,224

16.40%

Royalty

40,571

97.35%

49,635

100.00%

52,100

83.60%

Total

41,674

100.00%

49,635

100.00%

62,324

100.00%

(%) of total
sales

Total Sales

(%) of total
sales

Total Sales

(%) of total
sales

C. Main products
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. (TLC) is a biopharmaceutical company focused on
the research, development and commercialization of innovative pharmaceutical
products based on its proprietary drug delivery technologies. Lipo-Dox® has been
approved by the Department of Health (DOH) in Taiwan in 2002 for the treatment of
breast cancer ovarian cancer, and AIDS-related Kaposi’s sarcoma. The market share in
Taiwan is 100%. Ampholipad has gained market approval in Taiwan and covered in
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National Health Insurance in July 2013; currently, market share in 2017 is over 30%
in Taiwan. From 2010, the Company has worked with international pharmas for
co-development and authorization; from 2014, the Company has started to
collaboration with other pharmas for technology synergy.

D. New products development
Due to the long cycle of drug development, the company has focused on the
development of special generic drugs, new dosage/new formula, and new drugs in the
recent years, and the timing of the development of new drugs.
5.1.2 Industry Overview
A. Macroeconomic Environment: Please refer to the Chinese annual report.
a. Continuing growth in pharmaceuticals
b. Rapid growth in Pharmerging countries
c. Dramatical raise of R&D expenditure
d. Booming market of generic products and specialty Pharma
e. Medical-reform in China
B. Current Status and Future Development of biopharmaceuticals
According to a Ministry of Economic Affairs white paper on the biotechnology
industry and its related operations, the value of the sector in Taiwan in 2015 was
NT$298.6 billion, representing growth of 6% from 2014.
C. Relationship with Up-, Middle- and Downstream Companies
The Company’s up-, middle-, downstream relations are listed below:

D. Product Trends and Competition
(1) Product Trends
a. Lower costs of drug development
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A successful new drug might take billions of US dollars and 12 to 15 years. Only 1
to 8,000 or 10,000 compounds will get market approval. These exhibit the
difficulty of drug developments. Currently, drug delivery system might be the
solution to overcome the development hurdles; thus the associated cost and time
length might also decrease.
Investing in new formulation is another method to decrease development costs. A
new formulation drug has a known structure, other than from middle of the woods.
The medication application of a new formulation drug is also well presented;
therefore the investigation costs would be lower.
b. Extended life-cycle of existing product
New formulation drugs will have larger opportunities t to obtain patens to protect
generic’s competition.
c. Niche market for generic producer
Even after the patent expires, some drugs are still difficult to produce. Once a
generic producer breaks through the technology requirement, the margin will be
large for the market invader. Below shows the margin distribution with the number
of competitors. The first generic product can sell at 94% of original drug.

(2) Product competition
a. Information regarding to the Company’s super generic products, Ampholipad and
Doxisome, is highly confidential.
b. The Company registers global patents for its new formulation products.
c. Company profile is valuable. The Company has extensive experiences in drug
development.

5.1.3 Research and Development
A. The Company focuses on the research, development and commercialization of
innovative pharmaceutical products based on its proprietary drug delivery
technologies. Our strengths lie in lipid-based formulation and scale-up for
parenteral drugs using micelles and nanoparticles to optimize the pharmacokinetics
of drugs for better efficacy and lower toxicity, and thus prolong the product
lifecycle of branded drugs.
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Technology

General Application

Advantages
Solubilize water-insoluble drugForm narrow
sized nano-particles

Polymeric Micelle

NanoEmulsion

NanoX™

Immunoliposome
BioSeizer™

Solubilize water insoluble High drug loading (>30% of drug content)
drug for Injectable dosage Use biocompatible and EU, JP and
FDA-approved lipid-based excipients
Know-how for scale up to commercial
production
Encapsulating water
Lyophilized or liquid emulsion dosage form
insoluble drug for oral or
Protect drug from rapid degradation in blood
injectable dosage
Efficiently encapsulate various drug in
liposomes e.g. weak base drug, adriamycins,
vinca alkaloids, camptothecins
Change PK and increase circulation time
Encapsulate the drugs in
(T1/2)
liposome as an injectable
Decrease side effect
dosage
Passive target to tumor and inflammatory
sites
Protect the fragile drug from enzyme or pH
impact
Enhancement permeability and retention
Active targeting to disease
Active targeting
site
Internalization of target liposome
Sustained-release drug delivery
Reduce the frequency of Offers versatility for delivering drugs such as
drug administration
antibody, Fab, scFv, peptide, aptamer, DNA,
siRNA and small molecules

B. R&D team profile
a. Until 28 February 2019, the research team employs 92 scientists. Here presents the
academic and length of working statistics:
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Nr. of years working in the industry

PhD

Master

Bachelor

Total

Less than 2 years

0

0

1

1

2-5 years

5

7

2

14

6-10 years

8

33

4

45

More than 10 years

1

24

7

32

Total

14

64

14

92

b. Research profile of key scientists
Name

Title

42

Dr. Spencer-Green
received his BA
from Oberlin
College, his MD
from Columbia
University College
of Physicians and
Surgeons, and his
MS in Clinical
Evaluative Science
from Dartmouth
College.

∞

Vice President

Ph.D. in
biochemistry on
immunoliposome
research, National
Taiwan University

20

Vice President

Ph.D. University of
Texas
Southwestern
Medical Center at
Dallas
MBA, University of
North Carolina at
Chapel Hill, North
Carolina

27

Vice President

PhD in Chemistry
from the University
of Michigan, where
he received an
Outstanding
Graduate Research

Chairman and

Hong

CEO

Chief Medical

Spencer-Green Officer

Yunlong
Tseng

Wenji Chen

Hung Wei
Chih

Working
years

Ph.D. in Chemistry
at the University of
California at
Berkeley

Keelung

George

Highest Education

25
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Main Research experiences
Research scientist of Liposome Research Laboratory
(LRL).
Specializing in membrane fusion.
Pioneered the study of the structure and function of
biomembranes.
Key research in neuroglial membrane chemistry.
1. Dr. Spencer-Green brings with him experience as
the prior Vice President and clinical head of Pfizer’s
biosimilars development program. He was the
Global Medical Director at Abbott Laboratories,
and was the clinical lead for the rheumatoid arthritis
registration and long-term extension programs for
Humira.
2. Dr. Spencer-Green is a leading board-certified
figure in the fields of internal medicine,
rheumatology, and allergy and immunology. He has
authored over 43 publications, 2 book capters and
96 abstracts. Dr. Spencer-Green received the
Morely Award for Scientific Achievement in 2018
and the Immunex Emerald Award in 2000.
Developing and manufacturing liposomal products
(including Lipo-Dox® and Lipo-AB®)
19 Scientific journal papers on liposome
Specializing in liposome technology and targeted
delivery
1. Built BD capabilities in GSK (Shanghai) and led
evaluation, due diligence and execution of deals
for collaboration, co-development, in-license, or
out- license in the area of neuroscience, oncology,
and traditional Chinese medicines.
2. Led evaluation, due diligence and execution of
deals at GSK (U.S.) for collaboration or licensing
relating to technology platform or preclinical
assets.
3.Led evaluation, due diligence and execution of
deals at Norak (U.S.) for partnering and divesting
Norak’s proprietary technologies in U.S. and Japan.

1. Dr. Chih has several patents.
2. Dr. Chih has ample experience from his
tenure at Genentech/Roche in South San
Francisco across departments including
product quality, early and late stage
pharmaceutical development, and technical

Name

Title

Highest Education

Working
years

regulatory. Dr. Chih's leadership and operation
excellence has won him a Great Manager
Award, a PR&D Process Improvement Award,
and three Key Contributor Awards while at
Genentech/Roche.

Award

Yvonne
Shih

Terry Tai

Bella Kuo

Carl Oscar
Brown

Cynthia Lin

Main Research experiences

Director

PhD and
postdoctoral
research in
Biochemistry,
College of
Medicine, National
Taiwan University

19

Director

M.D. in Taipei
Medical College

18

Director

M.A in Engineering
and Technology
Management,
George Washington
University

24

Director

PhD, Molecular
and Cellular
Biology, Baylor
College of
Medicine (Houston,
TX)

15

Director

Master,
National Taiwan
University,
Agriculture
Chemistry,
Microbiology

22
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3.Prior to joining TLC, Dr. Chih served as the
Director of IMP Product Quality at
Genentech/Roche. Before Genentech/Roche, Dr.
Chih was a Scientist at ImmunoGen and
Investigator at ArQule, both in Massachusetts.
1. Research focuses on the development of protein
drug delivery, antibody discovery and targeted drug
delivery with immunoliposomes.
2.Join TLC in 2002 leading various research and
development programs in the areas of retinal diseases
and arthritis
3. Authore in a number of scientific publications and is
the inventor of novel anti-VEGF antibody and
several drug delivery patents
1. 10 years in Center of Drug Evaluation Taiwan for
IND, TFDA regulation.
2. Comprehensive strategy consultation, along with
legal experience for CMC/PT/PK/Clinical/Stat.
3. Cooperated with China for drug development.
1. Mrs. Kuo assisted government-sponsored projects
for pharmaceutical facility audit, cGMP guideline
drafting and training program during the period of
working in Pharmaceutical Industry Technology
Development Center (PITDC) and Taiwan
Parenteral Drug Association.
2. Project manager in TTY Biopharm Co., Ltd.
3. Associated head of project managements in
PharmaEngine Inc.
1. Clinical trial design and oversight of numerous
Phase 1 and 2 clinical studies.
2. Writing or oversight of numerous protocols,
investigator brochures, informed consent forms,
and clinical study reports; clinical trial data review
and analysis.
3. Medical writing of clinical sections of regulatory
submission documents, including IND, NDA,
sNDA, BLA, and safety updates.
4. Medical science and medical writing leadership
including management, mentoring, hiring, and
training, and creation of SOPs, templates, work
instructions, and guidelines.
1. Extracellular protease separation and
characterization, Vibrio parahaemolyticus.
2. HPLC analysis
3. Toxic protein purification and characterization
4. Marketing strategy planning and execution for
OTC products, including respiratory,
gastro-intestinal, oral anti-inflammatory, and
vitamins field / Marketing Product Manager,
Self-Medication, Boehringer Ingelheim Taiwan

Name

Title

Highest Education

Working
years

Main Research experiences
5.

Exchange Scholarship, Children Hospital of
University of South California, USA
Regional clinical project manager for global
multi-national, multi-center project / Regional
Clinical Monitor, Boehringer Ingelheim Taiwan,
Asia-Pacific
Global Clinical Project Manager handling
Oncology, Cardiovascular disease, Neurology,
Respiratory, Endocrine/Metabolism, and
Infectious disease projects / Director, Project
Leader Department, Quintiles Taiwan

6.

7.

c. R&D expenses in the most recent 5 years
Unit: NT$ thousands
Year

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

R&D Expense

664,449

634,845

736,878

813,252

832,575

Revenues

95,922

59,771

41,674

49,635

62,324

% of Revenues

693%

1062%

1768%

1638%

1336%

d. Developed Products and Technology in the most recent 5 years
Product

Status

Results
NCE

TLC388
(Lipotecan)

Phase II

Has been granted orphan drug status by US FDA and EU EMA for
the treatment of hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC).
Patented in US, New Zealand, Canada.
Received Golden Award at Innovation Prize, 6th Taipei Bio Driven
Prize.
Received subsidy of NT$30,000,000 for pre-clinical study.
Received subsidy of NT$23,450,000 for Phase I study, the total
amount is 67,000,000.
Received special-rate loan from Economic Affairs of
NT$31,090,000 for Phase I study.

New Formulation
TLC399
(ProDex)

Phase II(a) study

TLC599

Phase II study

TLC178

Phase I/II(a)
study

TLC590

Phase I/II study

Patented in Taiwan and US.
Received subsidy of NT$12,800,000 for pre-clinical study.
Granted for subsidy of NT$17,590,000 for combined Phase I/II.
Granted for subsidy of NT$30,900,000 for combined Phase II.
Approved for human clinical study by TFDA. Phase II study
currently.
Approved for human clinical study by TFDA and FDA.
Approved for Orphan Drug Designation indication of cutaneous
T-cell lymphoma by FDA.
Approved for human clinical study by FDA.

Super Generics
Doxisome

Complete
Bioequivelance

Encapsulate the drugs in liposome as an injectable dosage

In addition, Ampholipad and Proflow obtained Taiwan New Drug Certificate before
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the most recent five years.
5.2 Market and Sales Overview
5.2.1
Market Analysis
A. Sales (Service) Region
In view of the different market characteristics, the products of the Company meet the
different target markets: the major sales markets for new drug and new dosage/new
formulas such as ProDex, TLC599, TLC590, TLC178 are US and Europe. Special
generic drug such as Ampholipad and Doxisome can be marketed worldwide.

B. Market Share (%) of Major Product Categories in Last Two Years:
Lipo-Dox enjoys 100% market share in Taiwan. Ampholipad, the super generic drug
for treatment of systemic fungal infection, has been on the market for six years.
Although the latest market share has not been counted as of the annual report
publication date, it can be referenced to 30% of market share of drug listing in Taiwan
within the five years. The Company’s other products are still developing and can’t be
sold on market. Thus there is no available data for market share.
C. Favorable and Unfavorable Factors in the Long-range Future
The Company’s strengths lie in lipid-based formulation and scale-up for parenteral
drugs using micelles and nanoparticles to optimize the pharmacokinetics of drugs for
better efficacy and lower toxicity, and thus prolong the product lifecycle of branded
drugs.

5.2.2

The Production Procedures of Main Products

A. Major Products and Their Main Uses
Product

Indications

Developing Status
Arthritis

TLC599

Arthritis

Corticosteroid encapsulated in lipid based drug
delivery system for the treatment of inflammation
91

Product

Indications

Developing Status
caused by arthritis. Whereas the existing
corticosteroid drugs are generally crystallized for
sustainability, TLC599 maintains its sustainability
by using the slow release BioSeizer platform. Its
lipid formulation allows for injection with 30
gauge needles, extending the applicable disease
sites to small joints such as fingers, and reduce the
risk of infection by minimizing the wound size at
the applied area.
Ophthalmology
Indicated for the treatment of macular edema
characterized by vein occlusion of blood vessels

ProDex

within the eye and the subsequent swelling and

Macular Edema

thickening of the macula, ProDex provides a
sustaining release of a consistent low level of
dexamethasone to maintain edema control.
Fungal Infection
Ampholipad

Systemic fungal

Liposomal encapsulated formulation of

infection

Amphotericin B, allowing patients to receive
highly effective doses.
Anesthetic
Liposomal encapsulated bupivacaine, enabling the
sustained release of a constant amount of local

TLC590

Local anesthesia

anesthetic. This would effectively reduce the
repeated administration of anesthetics, and
resultant side effects, as well as eliminating the use
of post-surgical painkillers.
Oncology
Liposomal encapsulated formulation of
Vinorelbine, effectively reducing the toxicity of

TLC178

Non-Hodgkin lymphoma

existing Vinorelbine drugs, not only does it
improves efficacy, but it extends the indication
beyond solid tumors into Non-Hodgkin
lymphoma.

Lipotecan

Hepatocellular Carcinoma
(HCC)

By modifying the E-ring structure, the novel anti-cancer
camptothecin drug Lipotecan not only increases the PR
rate, but also functions as a strong radio-sensitizer to
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Product

Indications

Developing Status
overcome radio- and chemo-resistance that is frequently
encountered during treatment. Lipotecan has been
granted orphan drug status by US FDA and EU EMA
for the treatment of hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC).

Liposomal encapsulated formulation of

Doxisome

metastasis carcinoma of

Doxorubicin, effectively reducing the side effects

the ovary, metastatic

of doxorubicin and broadening indication.

breast cancer

Doxisome is looking at targeting the following
indications as previously approved by FDA/EMA
for Doxil / Caelyx.

5.2.3

Supply Status of Main Materials: The Company is at development stage;
therefore, none of the clause.

5.2.4

Major Suppliers and Clients

A. Major Suppliers Information for the Last Two Calendar Years
Unit：NT$ thousands
2017
Item

1

2018

Company
Name

Amoun
t

Percent

Relation
with
Issuer

None

None

None

None

Company
Name

Amount

Percent

Relation
with Issuer

None

None

None

None

Note 1: Major suppliers mean each commanding 10%-plus share of annual order volume.

B. Major Clients (each commanding 10%-plus share of annual order volume)
Information for the Last Two Calendar Years
Unit：NT$ thousands ; %
2018

2017
Company
Name

AMT

%

Relation
with
TLC

Company
Name

1

TTY

40,385

81.36

No

TTY

2

YSP

9,250

18,64

No

Net Sales

49,635

100.00

%

Relation
with
TLC

40,765

65.41

No

YSP

11,335

18.19

No

Others

10,224

16.40

No

Net Sales

62,324

100.00

AMT

5.2.5
Production over the Last Two Years: Not Applicable.
5.2.6
Shipments and Sales over the Last Two Years: Not Applicable.
5.3 Employee Information
Employee information from the recent two years as of the publishing date of the annual report:
Unit: person, age
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Year

Feb. 28, 2019
10

11

Technician and researcher

106

100

92

Management and others

43

42

38

Average age

38.1

37.9

38.7

Average years of service

4.5

5.2

5.3

Ph.D.

15

14

16

Master’s

53

58

58

College

32

28

26

Manager

Breakdown of
educational level (%)

5.5

2018
9

Number of
employees

5.4

2017

Information for environmental protection
In the most recent two years and up to the publication date of the annual report ,
the Company has not suffered losses and punishment for environmental
pollution.
Labor Relations:
1. Insurance: According to the labor and health insurance law and regulation, all
employees are entitled to the benefits, such as labor insurance, health
insurance and labor pension benefits, and employees can enjoy life insurance,
accident insurance, hospitalization and other group insurances that are fully
covered by the Company.
2. Annual bonus: three bonuses, birthdays, marriages, maternity gifts, funeral and
hospitalization condolences, and annual salary adjustment according to
individual performance.
Employee education and training: In 2018, the Company conducted professional
education and training for employees, which amounted to a total of 84 shifts,
which was equal to 948 hours.
Since the establishment of the Company, employees have been the Company's
most valuable assets. The Company attaches great importance to the future
development of employees, and the relationship between labor and capital is
harmonious. There have been no major labor disputes.
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5.6
Agreement

Important Contracts

Counterparty
California Pacific Medical
Center & Catholic
Healthcare West

Period
2005.6 limited to the
longest patent periods

License out

TTY Biopharm Company
Ltd.

Service

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.

Service

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
B.V.

License in

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.

2011.6- 2016.5
automatically extended
upon expiration
2012.1-2014.12
automatically extended
upon expiration
2012.1-2014.12
automatically extended
upon expiration
2012.1- limited to the
longest patent periods

License out

Yung Shin Pharm. Ind. Co.,
Ltd.

2013.2-2023.2

License out

SciClone Pharmaceuticals
International China Holding
Ltd.
SamChunDang Pharm Co.,
Ltd.

2013.6- Ten years after ProFlow® cooperation and authorization.
product has reached the
market
2013.8-2023.8
Ampholipad drug sales authorization.

Confidential Clause

License out

Sandoz AG

2014.3- Five years after Ampholipad drug cooperative development,
product has reached the
authorization, and sales.
market

Confidential Clause
and Competition
Prohibition

Service

TLC Biopharmaceuticals 2014.6-2016.6
Contract Research
(Shanghai) Limited
automatically extended

Service

TLC Biopharmaceuticals 2014.7-2016.7
Contract Research
(H.K.) Limited
automatically extended

Service

TLC Biopharmaceuticals 2015.1-2017.1
Contract Research
Japan Co., Ltd
automatically extended

Long Term
Loan

Taiwan Cooperative Bank
Minsheng Brach

Service

TLC Biopharmaceuticals
PTY LTD

Long Term
Loan

Cathay Bank

License out

License out

Major Contents
Restrictions
The global exclusive patent license for “Using
Confidential Clause
Camptothecin Derivative as the Chemical
Radiation Sensitizer” has been transferred to the
subsidiary company of Taiwan Liposome Co.,
Ltd. in the United States so that the relevant
drugs can be developed and sold.
Lipo-Dox® technology licensing
Confidential Clause

Contract Research

Confidential Clause

Contract Research

Confidential Clause

Confidential Clause
Obtain the exclusive patent license for “Using
Camptothecin Derivative as the Chemical
Radiation Sensitizer,” then transfer the exclusive
authorization to Taiwan Liposome Co., Ltd.
Confidential Clause
Authorize sales for the Ampholipad drug.
Confidential Clause

None

upon expiration
None

upon expiration

Commerciali Hongkong Sansheng
Medical Limited
zation

upon expiration
2015.9-2035.9

Long-term loans for housing and land.

2017.02- automatically Contract Research
extended upon
expiration
2018.12-2020.6
Mid-term loans

2019.3- product in the
market

Commercialization of drugs
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None

None
None

Distribution of surplus
limits and financial
conditions
Confidential Clause
and exclusive terms

VI. Financial Information
6.1

Five-Year Financial Summary

6.1.1

Condensed Balance Sheet—IFRS

1. Stand-Alone Reports
Unit：NT$ thousands

Stand-Alone

FYE
Account

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2,987,765

2,438,435

1,847,272

1,015,163

1,164,851

203,274

216,638

173,059

149,964

150,752

Intangible Assets

4,449

5,783

5,374

5,840

4,030

Other assets, non-current

44,457

48,361

42,353

46,739

65,774

3,287,317

2,760,581

2,120,812

1,293,660

1,479,161

Before Allocation

136,896

188,925

211,169

224,175

405,528

After Allocation

136,896

188,925

211,169

224,175

405,528

79,217

86,186

106,101

82,201

404,437

Before Allocation

216,113

275,111

317,270

306,376

809,965

After Allocation

216,113

275,111

317,270

306,376

809,965

3,071,204

2,485,470

1,803,542

987,284

669,196

554,033

556,203

557,306

561,990

640,451

3,194,719

2,652,969

2,078,908

1,322,625

952,364

Before Allocation

(638,726)

(673,562)

(824,662)

(874,086)

(910,042)

After Allocation

(638,726)

(673,562)

(824,662)

(874,086)

(910,042)

(38,822)

(13,247)

(8,010)

(23,245)

(13,577)

Treasury Stocks

0

(36,893)

0

0

0

Non-controlling Equities

0

0

0

0

0

Before Allocation

3,071,204

2,485,470

1,803,542

987,284

669,196

After Allocation

3,071,204

2,485,470

1,803,542

987,284

669,196

Current Asset
Property, Plant, and Equipment

Total Assets
Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity Attributable to Owners of Parent
Capital
Paid-in-Capital
Retained Earnings

Other Equities

Total Owners’
Equity

Note 1: The data listed here was audited by certified public accountant.
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2. Consolidated Reports
Unit：NT$ thousands

Consolidated

FYE
Account

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2,998,406

2,455,099

1,863,813

1,051,875

1,188,695

Property, Plant, and Equipment

207,335

222,113

178,943

153,835

158,245

Intangible Assets

22,622

18,875

13,313

8,637

4,030

Other assets, non-current

44,763

48,709

42,673

48,111

66,872

3,273,126

2,744,871

2,098,906

1,262,539

1,417,921

Before Allocation

122,705

173,215

189,263

193,054

344,288

After Allocation

122,705

173,215

189,263

193,054

344,288

79,217

86,186

106,101

82,201

404,437

Before Allocation

201,922

259,401

295,364

275,255

748,725

After Allocation

201,922

259,401

295,364

275,255

748,725

3,071,204

2,485,470

1,803,542

987,284

669,196

554,033

556,203

557,306

561,990

640,451

3,194,719

2,652,969

2,078,908

1,322,625

952,364

Before Allocation

(638,726)

(673,562)

(824,662)

(874,086)

(910,042)

After Allocation

(638,726)

(673,562)

(824,662)

(874,086)

(910,042)

(38,822)

(13,247)

(8,010)

(23,245)

(13,577)

Treasury Stocks

0

(36,893)

0

0

0

Non-controlling Equities

0

0

0

0

0

Before Allocation

3,071,204

2,485,470

1,803,542

987,284

669,196

After Allocation

3,071,204

2,485,470

1,803,542

987,284

669,196

Current Asset

Total Assets
Current
Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Total
Liabilities

Equity Attributable to Owners of Parent
Capital
Paid-in-Capital
Retained
Earnings

Other Equities

Total
Owners’
Equity

Note 1: The data listed here was audited by certified public accountant.
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6.1.2

Condensed Statement of Income--IFRS

1. Stand-Alone Reports
Unit: NT$ thousands
Stand-Alone

FYE
Account

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating Revenues

95,922

59,771

41,674

49,635

62,324

Gross Profits

95,922

59,771

41,674

49,635

62,324

(670,746)

(713,837)

(839,380)

(902,571)

(923,949)

37,886

38,152

15,064

28,609

22,375

Income before income taxes

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

Gain/(Loss) from continuing operation

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

0

0

0

0

0

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

(4,228)

3,240

(1,203)

(3,520)

(1,254)

(637,088)

(672,445)

(825,519)

(877,482)

(902,828)

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

0

0

0

0

0

(637,088)

(672,445)

(825,519)

(877,482)

(902,828)

0

0

0

0

0

(11.54)

(12.25)

(14.89)

(15.75)

(14.37)

Operating Profits
Non-operating income and expenses

Gain/(Loss) from non-continuing
operation
Net Income (Loss)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(After taxes)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Net income attributed to Owners of
Parent
Net income attributed to
non-controlling owners
Comprehensive income attributed to
owners of Parent
Comprehensive income attributed to
non-controlling owners
Earnings per share (Note 1)

Note 1: The calculation was based on the year’s average out-standing shares.
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2. Consolidated Reports
Unit: NT$ thousands
Consolidated

FYE
Account

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating Revenues

95,922

59,771

41,674

49,635

62,324

Gross Profits

95,922

59,771

41,674

49,635

62,324

(671,512)

(713,398)

(836,698)

(898,486)

(917,994)

38,944

38,163

12,945

25,475

17,287

Income before income taxes

(632,568)

(675,235)

(823,753)

(873,011)

(900,707)

Gain/(Loss) from continuing operation

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

0

0

0

0

0

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

(4,228)

3,240

(1,203)

(3,520)

(1,254)

(637,088)

(672,445)

(825,519)

(877,482)

(902,828)

(632,860)

(675,685)

(824,316)

(873,962)

(901,574)

0

0

0

0

0

(637,088)

(672,445)

(825,519)

(877,482)

(902,828)

0

0

0

0

0

(11.54)

(12.25)

(14.89)

(15.75)

(14.37)

Operating Profits
Non-operating income and expenses

Gain/(Loss) from non-continuing
operation
Net Income (Loss)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(After taxes)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Net income attributed to Owners of
Parent
Net income attributed to non-controlling
owners
Comprehensive income attributed to
owners of Parent
Comprehensive income attributed to
non-controlling owners
Earnings per share (Note 1)

Note 1: The calculation was based on the year’s average out-standing shares.

6.1.3
FYE

Auditor’s Opinion in the most recent 5 years
Accounting Firm

Name of Auditor

Opinion

2014 PricewaterhouseCoopers

Teng, Sheng-Wei and Tzeng, Huei-Chin

Unqualified Opinion

2015 PricewaterhouseCoopers

Teng, Sheng-Wei and Tzeng, Huei-Chin

Unqualified Opinion

2016 PricewaterhouseCoopers

Teng, Sheng-Wei and Liang, Hua-Ling (Note 1)

Unqualified Opinion

2017 PricewaterhouseCoopers

Teng, Sheng-Wei and Hsieh, Chih-Cheng(Note 1)

Unqualified Opinion

Teng, Sheng-Wei and Hsieh, Chih-Cheng
Unqualified Opinion
2018 PricewaterhouseCoopers
Note 1: The reason of change of auditor was due to PricewaterhouseCooper’s internal adjustment.
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6.2

Five-Year Financial Analysis

1. Financial Analysis—IFRS
(1)Stand-alone financial analysis under IFRS
FYE
Analysis Items
Financial

Debt-to-Asset Ratio (%)

Structure

Liquidity

Performance

2015

2016

2017

2018

9.97%

14.96%

23.68%

54.75%

Long-term fund to PPE Ratio (%)

1,542.20%

1,181.57%

1,096.50%

705.14%

703.94%

Current Ratio (%)

2,182.51%

1,290.69%

874.78%

452.84%

287.24%

Quick Ratio (%)

2,165.18%

1,272.30%

855.51%

421.27%

273.41%

(478.62)

(266.93)

(280.90)

(261.04)

(91.84)

Account Receivables Turnover (Times)

16.28

3.81

1.62

1.88

2.29

Average day of Receivables (Days)

22.42

95.80

225.30

194.14

159.38

Inventory Turnover (Times)

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Account Payable Turnover (Times)

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Average Day of Sales (Days)

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

PPE Turnover (Times)

0.47

0.28

0.24

0.33

0.41

Total assets turnover (Times)

0.03

0.02

0.02

0.04

0.04

Return on Assets (%)

(17.95%)

(22.27%)

(33.67%)

(51.03%)

(64.45%)

Return on Equity (%)

(19.01%)

(24.32%)

(38.44%)

(62.63%)

(108.85%)

(114.23%)

(121.48%)

(147.91%)

(155.51%)

(140.77%)

Profitability Profit Before Tax to Capital Stock (%)
Profit Margin (%）
EPS (Dollars)

(659.77%) (1,130.46%) (1,978.01%) (1,760.78%) (1,446.59%)
(11.54)

(12.25)

(14.89)

(15.75)

(14.37)

(342.06%)

(283.66%)

(289.27%)

(364.80%)

(167.55%)

(622.76%)

(640.16%)

(767.56%) (1,124.08%) (1,290.85%)

(14.54%)

(20.07%)

(30.29%)

(69.61%)

(57.92%)

Operating Leverage

0.53

0.44

0.52

0.60

0.61

Financial Leverage

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.98

Cash Flow Ratio (%)
Cash Flow Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%)
Cash Reinvest Ratio (%)
Leverage

2014
6.57%

Interest Protection Multiples

Operating

The most recent 5-yr stand-alone financial data (Note 1)

Note 1: The financial data was excerpted from audited financial reports.
Note 2: No inventory; inventory turnover and average day of sales are thus not calculated.
Note 3: No cost of goods sold; account payable turnover is thus not calculated.
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(2) Consolidated financial analysis (IFRS)
FYE
Analysis Items

The most recent 5-yr consolidated financial data
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

6.17%

9.45%

14.07%

21.80%

52.80%

Financial

Debt-to-Asset Ratio (%)

Structure

Long-term fund to PPE Ratio (%)

1,512.00%

1,152.44%

1,060.44%

687.40%

670.60%

Current Ratio (%)

2,443.59%

1,417.37%

984.77%

544.86%

345.26%

Quick Ratio (%)

2,424.13%

1,397.01%

963.03%

507.88%

328.84%

(478.40)

(266.76)

(280.71)

(258.74)

(89.76 )

16.28

3.81

1.62

1.88

2.29

22.42

95.80

225.30

194.14

159.38

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 4

Note 4

Note 4

Note 4

Note 4

Liquidity

Interest Protection Multiples
Account Receivables Turnover
(Times)
Average day of Receivables
(Days)
Operating

Inventory Turnover (Times)
Performance Account Payable Turnover (Times

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

Note 3

PPE Turnover (Times)

0.46

0.27

0.23

0.32

0.39

Total assets turnover (Times)

0.03

0.02

0.02

0.04

0.04

Return on Assets (%)

(18.01%)

(22.38%)

(33.94%)

(51.83%)

(66.67%)

Return on Equity (%)

(19.01%)

(24.32%)

(38.44%)

(62.63%)

(108.85%)

(114.18%)

(121.40%)

(147.81%)

(155.34%)

(140.63%)

Average Day of Sales (Days)

Profitability

Profit Before Tax to Capital
Stock (%)
Profit Margin (%）

(11.54)

(12.25)

(14.89)

(15.75)

(14.37)

(380.24%)

(306.36%)

(321.10%)

(424.31%)

(199.26%)

(597.30%)

(604.52%)

(725.26%) (1,076.77%) (1,219.89%)

(14.53%)

(19.93%)

(30.13%)

(69.32%)

(57.87%)

Operating Leverage

0.54

0.46

0.54

0.66

0.68

Financial Leverage

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.98

EPS (Dollars)
Cash Flow Ratio (%)
Cash Flow Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%)
Cash Reinvest Ratio (%)
Leverage

(659.77%) (1,130.46%) (1,978.01%) (1,760.78%) (1,446.59%)
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6.3

Audit Committees’ Review Report in the Most Recent Year

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Audit Committee’s Review Report
To All Shareholders of Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.:
The Board of Directors has prepared and submitted the Company’s 2018
business report, standalone financial statements, consolidated financial
statements and proposal to offset the deficit of 2018 to the Company’s audit
committee for review, of which the standalone financial statements and
consolidated financial statements were audited by independent certified
public accountants, Teng, Sheng-Wei and Hsieh, Chih- Cheng, of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, pursuant to which an audit report has been
prepared. According to such audit report, the abovementioned documents
present fairly, in all material respects, the Company’s financial position,
financial performance and the cash flows. The audit committee has reviewed
each of the aforementioned documents and has not found any inaccuracies.
Therefore, we hereby submit this report in accordance with Article 14 of the
Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of The Company Act.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

Title: Chairman of the Audit Committee
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6.4

Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
and Independent Auditors’ Report: Please refer to page 117.

6.5

Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, and Independent Auditors’ Report: Please refer to page
187.

6.6

If the company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties in
the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date
of publication of the annual report, the annual report shall explain how
said difficulties will affect the company's financial situation: Not
applicable.
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VII. Review of Financial Conditions, Operating Results, and Risk Management
7.1

Analysis of Financial Status
Unit: NT$ thousands

FYE
Item
Current Assets

2018

Difference

2017

Amount

%

1,188,695

1,051,875

136,820

13%

158,245

153,835

4,410

3%

4,030

8,637

(4,607)

(53%)

Other Assets

66,872

48,111

18,761

39%

Total Assets

1,417,921

1,262,539

155,382

12%

Current Liabilities

344,288

193,054

151,234

78%

Non-current Liabilities

404,437

82,201

322,236

392%

Total Liabilities

748,725

275,255

473,470

172%

Common stock

640,451

561,990

78,461

14%

Capital surplus

952,364

1,322,625

(370,261)

(28%)

Retained Earnings

(910,042)

(874,086)

(35,956)

4%

Other Adjustments

Fixed Assets
Intangible Assets

(13,577)

(23,245)

9,668

(42%)

Treasury Shares

0

0

0

0%

Non-controlling Equity

0

0

0

0%

669,196

987,284

(318,088)

(32%)

Total Stockholders' Equity

‧

Effect of change on financial condition:
(1) Other non-current assets: Due to the increased payment for the prepaid
equipment of R&D in 2018.
(2) Current liabilities, non-current liabilities and total liabilities: Due to the
increase of bank loans in 2018.
(3) Capital surplus and total shareholders' equity: Due to capital surplus that was
mad up for the deficiency of 2017 in 2018.

‧ Future response actions: Not applicable
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7.2

Analysis of Operating Results
Unit: NT$1000; %
FYE

Item

2018

Difference

2017

Amount

%

Net Sales

62,324

49,635

12,689

26%

Gross Profit

62,324

49,635

12,689

26%

(917,994)

(898,486)

(19,508)

2%

17,287

25,475

(8,188)

(32%)

Income Before Income Tax

(900,707)

(873,011)

(27,696)

3%

Income from Continuing Operating

(901,574)

(873,962)

(27,612)

3%

0

0

0

0%

(901,574)

(873,962)

(27,612)

3%

(1,254)

(3,520)

2,266

(64%)

Net Comprehensive Income

(902,828)

(877,482)

(25,346)

3%

Net Income attributed to owner’s of Parent

(901,574)

(873,962)

(27,612)

3%

0

0

0

0%

(902,828)

(877,482)

(25,346)

3%

0

0

0

0%

(14.37)

(15.75)

1.38

(9%)

Operating Income
Non-operating Income and Expenses

Losses from Discontinuing Operating
Net Income
Other Comprehensive Income

Net Income attributed to owner’s of
Non-controlling shares
Comprehensive Income attributed to owner’s of
Parent
Comprehensive Income attributed to owner’s of
Non-controlling shares
EPS
Analysis of changes in financial ratios:

1. Net Sales and Gross Profit: Due to the income of the IFRS15 recognition contract increased from
2018

‧ Effect of change on the company’s future business:
Based on the financial reports of the most recent two years and the information
announced most recently, the Company will make its financial planning in
accordance with the resolutions reached at the shareholders’ meeting and Board
meetings.
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7.3

Analysis of Cash Flow

7.3.1

Cash Flow Analysis for the Current Year
Unit: NT$ thousands

Cash
Cash and Cash Net Cash Flow Net Cash
Net Cash Surplus(Deficit)
Leverage of Cash Deficit
Equivalents,
from
flow from
flow from (1)+(2)+(3)+(4)
Beginning of Year
Operating
Investing
(1)
Activities (2) Activities(3) fund-raising
Investment
(4)
Financing Plans
Plans
951,713

(687,178)

(368,764)

911,713

807,484

Analysis 2

Analysis 2

Analysis of change 1. Changes of cash flow:
in cash flow in the Operating activities: the cash outflow $0.69 billion resulted from the continuous R&D projects
current year

and net loss of operating.
Investment activities: the cash outflow $0.37 billion resulted from the acquisition of current
financial assets.
Fund-raising activities: the cash inflow $0.91 billion resulted from the issuance of ordinary
shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of overseas depositary receipts and bank loan.
2. Cash flow analysis and future plan for liquidity:
Liquidity: the liquidity ratio is 345.26% in 2018, which was financially normal.
Investment Plan: It is for operation.
Fund-raising Plan: The shareholders meeting will resolve to issue ADR.

7.3.2

Cash Flow Analysis for the Coming Year
Unit: NT$ thousands

Estimated Estimated Net
Cash and Cash Cash Flow Estimated Cash Estimated Cash Cash Surplus
(Deficit)
Equivalents,
from
Outflow
flow from
Beginning of
Operating
(Inflow)(3)
fund-raising (1)+(2)+(3)+(4)
Year(1)
Activities(2)
(4)

Leverage of Cash Surplus
(Deficit)
Investment Plans Financing Plans

807,484

(620,998)

272,183

1,460,684

1,919,353

Analysis 2

Analysis 2

Analysis of

1. Changes of cash flow:

changes in

Operating activities: the cash outflow will result from the continuous R&D projects and net loss of

cash flow in

operating.

the current
year

Investment activities: the cash inflow will be injected and transferred from the financial assets.
Fund-raising activities: the cash inflow will result from fund raising.
2. Cash flow analysis and future plan for liquidity:
Liquidity: the liquidity ratio was 345.26% in 2018.
Investment Plan: Proposed to realize financial assets
Fund-raising Plan: the issuance of ordinary shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of overseas
depository receipts and bank loan.
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7.4

7.4.1

Major Capital Expenditure Items

Major Capital Expenditure Items and Source of Capital

A. Major Capital Expenditure Items and Source of Capital:
a. Major Capital Expenditure Items: Acquisition of land, buildings, plants, and
facilities cost NT$66,709,000. The major item is for laboratory (including
advanced payments).
b. Source of Capital: Specific items were paid by projected capital, increased by
issuing new shares; the rest was from the Company.
B. Expected Benefits: Milestone payments would come from capital expenditures.
C. Impacts on financials: the increasing short-term expenses and assets would
increase the revenues in long-run.

7.5

Investment Policy in Last Year, Main Causes for Profit or Losses,
Improvement Plans and the Investment Plans for the Coming Year

(1) Investment Policy:
The investment policies shall follow internal control’s regulation on “Investment
Cycle”, “Regulation on Acquisition and Disposal Assets” and “Investment Policy.”
The regulations are resolute by board or general shareholders’ meetings.
(2) Reasons of Investment Gain/Loss and its improving plan
Unit: NT$ Thousands
Year

Item
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
B.V.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
(H.K.) Limited

2018

TLC Biopharmaceuticals
(Shanghai) Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd

Recognized
investment
Gain/(Loss)

Investment Policy

Cancer drug research and
development
Technology authorization
216
and product development
Biotechnology transfer
274
and reinvestment
Biomedicine technology
263 consult and technology
service
Technology authorization
15,086
and product development

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals
Japan Co., Ltd

2,812

139

Technology authorization
and product development

Reasons of Loss
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

(3) The investment plans for the coming year: To execute cash increase plan.

7.6

Analysis of Risk Management
107

Improving
Plan

7.6.1

Effects of Changes in Interest Rates, Foreign Exchange Rates and
Inflation on Corporate Finance, and Future Response Measures
(1) Interest rate
The major interest rate risk results from long-term debt, but most of the debts are
underwritten by fixed rate; therefore, the impact of interest rate fluctuation will not be
substantial. In the future, while the movement of interest rate is forecasted to climb,
the company will carefully monitor interest rate movements and adopt proper hedging
strategies and other capital markets financing instruments to ensure that our financing
costs are at a comparatively low level.
FYE 2018
Financial Cost (A)
Operating Revenue (B)
Operating Income (Loss) (C)
(A)/(B)
(A)/(C)

Amount (NT$ thousands)
(9,886)
62,324
(917,994)
(15.86%)
1.08%

(2) Foreign exchange rates
The company engages in new drug research and development. The international
purchases account little percentage of total purchases; hence, the company affects less
by exchange rate risks. The company has a clear operating strategy and risk control
procedure to respond to changes in the spot exchange rate, stays in close contact with
financial institutions, and adjusts its foreign exchange strategy to minimize exchange
risk.
FYE 2018
Income from Exchange Rate (A)
Operating Income(B)
Operating Profit (Loss) (C)
(A)/(B)
(A)/(C)

Amount (NT$ thousands)
(2,986)
62,324
(917,994)
(4.84%)
0.33%

(3) Inflation
The impact of inflation does not currently have a significant impact on the company’s
profits and business operations.
7.6.2

Policies, Main Causes of Gain or Loss and Future Response Measures
with Respect to High-risk, High-leveraged Investments, Lending or
Endorsement Guarantees, and Derivatives Transactions
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The company did not engage in any high-risk or high-leveraged investments. The
transactions and procedures related to lending and endorsement are based on the
Company’s “Procedures of Lending to Others” and “Procedures of Endorsement
Guarantee.”. Furthermore, derivative transactions follow the “Procedures for
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”.
7.6.3 Future Research & Development Projects and Corresponding Budget
(1) Upcoming Research Plans:
The company focuses on research and development of drug delivery system. By
patented drug delivery system reduces toxicity and improves drug efficacy, so as to
new drug, new formulation, and super generics. In the future, the projected plans will
be as follows:
NT$ thousands
R&D result and future plan
R&D project

Recent 2 years expenses and results

Future expenses and plans

2017

2018

2019

after 2020

813,252

832,575

735,940

~

1. TLC599

TLC599 clinical phase II study
results, successfully reached
evaluation indicators

Clinical study, Registration of product

2. TLC590

Phase I/II clinical study in USA

Clinical study, Registration of product

3. TLC178

After receiving the FDA approval
in 2017 as a rare pediatric disease
for the treatment of
rhabdomyosarcoma, in 2018, the
company got the clinical Phase1/2
study approval for pediatric
rhabdomyosarcoma patients in
USA

Take advantage of orphan drug to
accelerate Phase I/II, II/III, registration
of product

4. ProDex

Phase II clinical study in USA

Clinical study, Registration of product

7.6.4

Effects of and Response to Changes in Policies and Regulations Relating
to Corporate Finance and Sales
The Company always pays close attention to any changes in local and foreign policies
and makes appropriate amendments to our systems when necessary. During 2017 and
as of the date of publication of this annual report, changes in related laws had not had
a significant impact on our operations.
7.6.5

Effects of and Response to Changes in Technology and in Industry
Relating to Corporate Finance and Sales
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(1)The Company’s expertise lies on research and development of anticancer new drug,
new formulation and super generics; in these specialized fields, entry barrier is
high and value-added potential would surge. The Company attaches great
importance to improvements in technology, and carefully monitors market trends
and assesses the impact they may have on the company’s operations.
(2) Regarding the information security risk assessment, the Company has established
Computerized Information System Procedures to implement the internal control
system and maintain the information security policy. Annual review has been
carried out to ensure its appropriateness and effectiveness and evaluate the safety
regulations and procedures.
7.6.6

The Impact of Changes in Corporate Image on Corporate Risk
Management, and the Company’s Response Measures
Since the establishment of the Company, it has consistently maintained an ethical
business philosophy, and has fulfilled its social responsibilities. Besides working to
strengthen internal management and conforming to all relevant corporate governance
requirements, the Company has also organized many public welfare activities.
7.6.7

Expected Benefits from, Risks Relating to and Response to Merger and
Acquisition Plans
The Company has no ongoing merger and acquisition activities. In considering future
M&As, the Company will evaluate their efficiency, risks, vertical integration and
other factors in accordance with its internal control system.
7.6.8

Expected Benefits from, Risks Relating to and Response to Factory
Expansion Plans

N/A.
7.6.9

Risks Relating to and Response to Excessive Concentration of Purchasing
Sources and Excessive Customer Concentration
The Company has consistently focused on identifying alternative sources for
purchasing, and has worked to diversify its customer base in order to reduce the
concentration of sales.
The Company specialized in developing anticancer new drugs. Currently, the team
has launched the first liposomal anticancer drug, Lipo-Dox, in Taiwan. It has acquired
market approval from TW FDA and been covered by National Health System from
March, 2002. Today, Lipo-Dox authorized TTY Biopharm to manufacture and sell.
Therefore, the Company’s sales revenues would be royalty; from 2010, the Company
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increased other royalties and has little sales risks. Until year 2013, the Company has 8
royalty income sources. As for inventory purchase, the Company majorly purchases
for drug substances for research and development purposes; the transaction amounts
are not substantial, so the risks from purchase are thus little to count.
7.6.10 Effects of, Risks Relating to and Response to Large Share Transfers or
Changes in Shareholdings by Directors, Supervisors, or Shareholders
with Shareholdings of over 10%
The shareholdings of the Company’s directors and supervisors have been stable
during the last few years.
7.6.11 Effects of, Risks Relating to and Response to Changes in Control over the
Company
The structure of our principal shareholders is solid, and we have a strong professional
management team, so there is no risk that a change in control would cause damage to
the Company.
7.6.12 Litigation or Non-litigation Matters
(1) Major ongoing lawsuits, non-lawsuits or administrative lawsuit: None.
(2) Major ongoing lawsuits, non-lawsuits or administrative lawsuits caused by
directors, supervisors or shareholders with over 10% shareholdings: None.
(3) In the most recent two years and up to the publication date of the annual report,
the Company's Directors, Supervisors, Managerial Officers, and shareholders who
hold more than 10% of the shares have conducted the matters stipulated in the Article
157 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the Company's current implementation
statys: None.
7.6.13 Other Major Risks
Please kindly be advised to consult Chinese annual report.
(1) Market risk
(2) Credit risk
(3) Liquidity risk
7.7

Other important matters: succession planning for board members and
important management

The company's succession planning for the Board of Directors and the key senior
management team can be divided into short-term development and long-term key
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cultivation programs. This is to maintain the professionalism and experience of the
Board of Directors and senior management. In the short-term development, qualified
faculty members will conduct corporate governance and professional education
training for the Board of Directors and the senior management team; regularly hold
meetings to discuss the Company's operation; establish agency and job rotation
system; invite the senior management team to serve as Board of Directors in
long-term key cultivation programs. When attending the Board of Directors, the
Directors will be supplemented by professional inheritance, and it is the cultivation of
decision-making and judgment for the management. In each term of the Board of
Directors, one-third of Board members successfully took over seat transition, and the
key senior management team trained four vice presidents to take on the major
responsibility. The Board and management succession planning operations were
gradual.
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VIII. Special Disclosure

8.1

Summary of Affiliated Companies

8.1.1

Investment Structure
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
100%

100%
TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.

100%

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
B.V.

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited

100%

100%

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals
Japan Co., Ltd

100%
TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(Shanghai) Limited

8.1.2

Basic information on affiliated enterprises:
Unit：NT$ 1,000

Name of Subsidiary

Date of
registration

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals, B.V.

Main Business Activity

55,433 Research on new

02/10/2010

3,023

06/10/2013

31F Tower Two, Times
Square, 1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Shanghai, China

2,236 Technical authorization

01/11/2005

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,

Capital

432 North Canal Street, #20
South San Francisco, CA
94080
J.H.Oortweg 19, 2333 CH,
Leiden, The Netherlands

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.

Address

anti-cancer drugs and
biotechnology services

4,410 Technical authorization
and product
development
Biotechnology services
and reinvestment

(H.K.) Limited
TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,

and product
development

02/26/2014

(Shanghai) Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Japan Co., Ltd.

10/29/2014

22 Hawker AV Preston VIC
3072, Australia
Tokyo, Japan

23,399 Technical authorization

and product development

2,670 Technical authorization

and product development

01/20/2015
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8.1.3

Directors, Supervisors and President information on affiliated enterprises:
Unit：1,000 shares

Name of Subsidiary

Title

TLC

Name

Chairman&CEO Keelung Hong

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, B.V.

President

George Yeh

President

George Yeh

Shares

%

3,100

100%

1,000

100%

780

100%

N/A

100%

George Yeh

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, (H.K.)
Limited

Director

Chan Chi Keung
Matthew

President &
Director

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
(Shanghai) Limited

George Yeh

Supervisor

Yunlong Tseng

TLC Biopharmaceuticals Pty Ltd

Director

George Yeh

1,000

100%

TLC Biopharmaceuticals Japan
Co., Ltd

Director

George Yeh

1

100%

8.1.4

Operational information on affiliated enterprises:
Name

Capital

Asset

Liability Net worth

As of 12/31/2018 NT$ 1,000
Operating
Net Gain
Revenue
income
after tax

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.

55,433

49,068

2,105

46,963

74,298

5,993

5,504

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, B.V.

4,410

1,672

73

1,599

920

216

216

3,023

3,792

79

3,713

159

12

274

2,236

3,125

51

3,074

4,235

250

263

23,399

49,867

11,872

37,995

41,148

1,959

15,086

2,670

3,694

210

3,484

2,927

217

139

TLC Biopharmaceuticals
(H.K.)Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
(Shanghai)Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Japan Co., Ltd
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8.2

Private Placement Securities in the Most Recent Years:
(Year) (Number of Times) Private PlacementDate of issuance: 04/13/2011

Item
Securities under private placement

4,711,425 shares

Date of resolution and approved quantity
Basis and rationality of price setting

03/10/2011
The issued price was 42.45/share, based on the book value per share presented on the most recent audited financial reports and not lower than 100% of private placement. The
price also reflected operating performances and future prospects.
The private placement was governed by Article 43-6 of Securities and Exchange Act:
1.Banks, bills finance enterprises, trust enterprises, insurance enterprises, securities enterprises, or other juristic persons or institutions approved by the Competent Authority.

Method of selection of specified parties

2.Natural persons, juristic persons, or funds meeting the conditions prescribed by the Competent Authority.
3.Directors, supervisors, and managerial officers of the company or its affiliated enterprises.
The total number of placees under subparagraphs 2 and 3 of the preceding paragraph shall not exceed 35 persons.

The reasons for private placement

In order to expand business activities, to sustain operating cash flows, and to improve financial structure, the Company proposed the general meeting to authorize board of
directors for private placement.

03/24/2011

Date of payment and completion

Information of contributing parties

Target

Eligibility

Quantity purchased

Burrill Life Sciences Capital Fund III, L.P.

Item 3 of Article 1.

1,769,911

Board of Director

Board of Director

YFY Biotech Management Company

Item 3 of Article 1.

588,928

Board of Director

Board of Director

Eminent Venture Capital Fund

Item 2 of Article 1.

426,855

shareholder

None

Boston Life Science Venture Corp.

Item 2 of Article 1.

441,932

shareholder

None

Mega International Commercial Bank Trust Item 2 of Article 1.
Fund

955,247

shareholder

None

Lin, Mao Zhong

Item 2 of Article 1.

278,101

shareholder

None

Yu, Long Zhu

Item 2 of Article 1.

67,000

shareholder

None

Zhang, Min

Item 2 of Article 1.

50,000

shareholder

None

Zhang, Xiang Zhong

Item 2 of Article 1.

10,000

shareholder

None

Chen, Zhi Shang

Item 2 of Article 1.

25,000

shareholder

None
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Relationship with the company

Participation in company operations

(Year) (Number of Times) Private PlacementDate of issuance: 04/13/2011

Item

Actual purchase (or conversion) price
Difference between the actual purchase
(or conversion) price and the reference
price
Impact of private placement on
shareholder's equity (e.g. causing an
increase in accumulated losses)

Lo, Min Yuan

Item 2 of Article 1.

16,000

shareholder

None

Yuan-He Management Co., Ltd.

Item 2 of Article 1.

48,000

shareholder

None

Yang, Jia Hua

Item 2 of Article 1.

23,558

None

None

Zhang, Qi Wan

Item 2 of Article 1.

10,893

None

None

$42.45/share
No difference between actual price and reference price.

Shareholders’ equity would be enlarged by expanding business activities, sustaining operating cash flows, and improving financial structure.

Use of funds from private placement and
The private placement was reported on MOPS in accordance with the laws.
the progress of proposed plans
Effectiveness of private placement

8.3

A. To improve financial structure: capital increased NT$47,114 thousand, paid-in-capital increased NT$152,886 thousand, debt ratio
decreased from 79.96% to 41.94%.
B. To increase operating capital: operating capital has increased to NT$199,001 thousand.

The Shares in the Company Held or Disposed of by Subsidiaries in the Most Recent Years: None
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TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Assets

December 31, 2018
AMOUNT
%

Notes

December 31, 2017
AMOUNT
%

Current assets
1100

Cash and cash equivalents

6(1)

1136

Current financial assets at

6(2)

$

amortized cost

807,484

57

307,150

$

951,713

75

22

-

-

1140

Current contract assets

6(18)

2,283

-

-

-

1170

Accounts receivable, net

6(3)

9,343

1

8,622

1

1200

Other receivables

6(19)

5,811

-

19,726

1

1220

Current income tax assets

113

-

414

-

1410

Prepayments

56,511

4

71,400

6

1,188,695

84

1,051,875

83

158,245

11

153,835

12

4,030

-

8,637

1

79

-

81

-

66,872

5

48,111

4

229,226

16

210,664

17

1,417,921

100

1,262,539

100

11XX

6(4)

Total current assets
Non-current assets

1600

Property, plant and equipment

6(5) and 8

1780

Intangible assets

6(6)

1840

Deferred income tax assets

6(24)

1900

Other non-current assets

6(7)

15XX

Total non-current assets

1XXX Total assets

$

(Continued)
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$

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Liabilities and equity

December 31, 2018
AMOUNT
%

Notes

December 31, 2017
AMOUNT
%

Current liabilities
46,000

3

6(9)(26)

206,268

6(10)(11)

2100

Short-term borrowings

6(8)

2200

Other payables

2300

Other current liabilities

21XX

46,000

4

15

93,541

7

92,020

6

53,513

4

344,288

24

193,054

15

368,010

26

66,177

5

6,922

1

6,922

1

29,505

2

9,102

1

404,437

29

82,201

7

748,725

53

275,255

22

640,451

45

561,990

44

952,364

67

1,322,625

105

(

910,042) (

64) (

874,086) (

69)

(

13,577) (

1) (

23,245) (

2)

$

Total current liabilities

$

Non-current liabilities
2540

Long-term borrowings

6(10)

2550

Provisions for liabilities - non-

6(14)

current
2600
25XX

Other non-current liabilities

6(11)(12)

Total non-current liabilities

2XXX Total liabilities
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
6(15)

Share capital
3110

Common shares
6(16)

Capital surplus
3200

Capital surplus
Retained earnings

3350

Accumulated deficit

6(17)

Other equity
3400
31XX

3XXX

Other equity interest
Equity attributable to owners

of parent

669,196

47

987,284

78

Total equity

669,196

47

987,284

78

1,417,921

100

1,262,539

100

Significant contingent liabilities

9

and unrecognized contract
commitments
Significant events after reporting

11

period
3X2X

Total liabilities and equity

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT LOSS PER SHARE AMOUNT)

4000
6200

6300
6000
6900
7010
7020
7050
7000
7900
7950
8200

8311

8361
8300
8500
8610

8710

9750

9850

Items
Operating revenue
Operating expenses
General and administrative
expenses
Research and development
expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Non-operating income and
expenses
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Total non-operating
income and expenses
Loss before income tax
Income tax expense
Net loss
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement arising on
defined benefit plans
Items that may be
subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Financial statement
translation differences of
foreign operations
Total other comprehensive
loss, net
Total comprehensive loss
Loss attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Loss per share of common
share
Basic loss per share (in
dollars)
Diluted loss per share (in
dollars)

Notes
6(18) and 12(5) $
6(12)(13)(22)(23
)

6(19)
6(20)
6(21)

6(24)

6(12)

Year ended December 31
2018
2017
AMOUNT
%
AMOUNT
62,324
100 $
49,635

(

147,743) (

(
(
(

832,575) ( 1336) (
980,318) ( 1573) (
917,994) ( 1473) (
28,990
1,817) (
9,886) (

(
(
(
(
($

237) (

47
3)
16) (

17,287
28
900,707) ( 1445) (
867) (
2) (
901,574) ( 1447) ($

134,869) (

%
100

272)

813,252) ( 1638)
948,121) ( 1910)
898,486) ( 1810)
26,250
2,610
3,385) (

53
5
7)

25,475
51
873,011) ( 1759)
951) (
2)
873,962) ( 1761)

($

527) (

1) ($

124)

-

(

727) (

1) (

3,396) (

7)

($
($

1,254) (
2) ($
902,828) ( 1449) ($

3,520) (
7)
877,482) ( 1768)

($

901,574) ( 1447) ($

873,962) ( 1761)

($

902,828) ( 1449) ($

877,482) ( 1768)

($

14.37) ($

15.75)

($

14.37) ($

15.75)

6(25)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

124

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Capital surplus

Notes

2017
Balance at January 1, 2017
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss
Issuance of restricted stocks to employees
Share-based payments
Share options forfeited
Cancellation of restricted stocks
Restricted stocks vested
Capital surplus used to cover accumulated deficit
Balance at December 31, 2017
2018
Balance at January 1, 2018
Effects of retrospective application of new standards
Balance at January 1, 2018 after adjustments
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss
Issuance of new share capital, net of issuance costs of
$100,499
Issuance of restricted stocks to employees
Share-based payments
Share options forfeited
Cancellation of restricted stocks
Restricted stocks vested
Capital surplus used to cover accumulated deficit
Balance at December 31, 2018

Common shares

$

6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(17)

(

$
$
3

6(15)
6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(17)

(

$

Additional paidin capital
Treasury stocks

557,306
$ 1,835,958
5,000
37,000
316 )
10,312
- (
824,662 )
561,990
$ 1,058,608
561,990
561,990
-

$ 1,058,608
1,058,608
-

78,311
500
350 )
- (
640,451
$

472,546
69,935
5,813
874,086 )
732,816

$

$
$

$

7,009
7,009
7,009
7,009
7,009

Restricted
stocks

Share options

$

(

$
$

(

$

213,379
$
52,835
37,000 )
- (
229,214
$

22,562
22,489
16
17,273 )
27,794

($
(
(
(

229,214
229,214
-

27,794
27,794
-

$

27,570
69,935 )
- (
186,849
$

Total equity

($

824,662 ) $
873,962 )
124 ) (
874,086 ) (
824,662
874,086 ) ($

1,684 ($
3,396 )
3,396 )
- (
1,712 ) ($

9,694 )
23,114 )
4,314
6,961
21,533 )

$ 1,803,542
(
873,962 )
(
3,520 )
(
877,482 )
4,375
57,149
(
300 )
$
987,284

($
(
(
(
(
(

874,086 )
7,941 )
882,027 )
901,574 )
527 )
902,101 )

1,712 ) ($
1,712 ) (
727 )
727 )

21,533 )
21,533 )
-

$
(

- (
2,439 ) ($

3,421 )
13,816
11,138 )

3,359
350
5,813 )
25,690 ($

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
deficit

Other equity interest
Exchange
difference on
translation of
foreign financial
Unearned
statements
compensation

($
(
(
(

874,086
910,042 ) ($

(
(
(

$

987,284
7,941 )
979,343
901,574 )
1,254 )
902,828 )
550,857
438
41,386
669,196

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Years ended December 31
2018
2017

Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Provision for doubtful accounts
Share-based payments
Depreciation
Amortization
Interest expense
Interest income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Prepayments for equipment being transferred to other expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Accounts receivable, net
Current contract assets
Other receivables
Prepayments
Changes in operating liabilities
Notes payable
Current contract liabilities
Other payables
Other current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities - non-current
Other non-current liabilities
Cash outflow generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Tax refunds received
Net cash flows used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of current financial assets at amortized cost
Decrease in other financial assets
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Payments of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payments of long-term borrowings
Proceeds from financial lease liabilities
Payments of financial lease liabilities
Issuance of restricted stocks to employees
Cancellation of restricted stocks
Proceeds from issuance of new share capital, net of issuance costs of
$100,499
Net cash flows from financing activities
Effect from foreign currency exchange
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

($

12(4)
6(13)
6(5)(22)
6(6)(22)
6(21)
6(19)
6(20)
6(26)

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

6(26)

(

873,011 )

41,386
39,315
8,144
9,886
2,453 ) (
1,478 ) (
780

9,065
57,149
41,926
10,570
3,385
5,060 )
20 )
-

721 ) (
2,283 )
14,158
(
17,475
(

701 )
19,546 )
24,501 )

7,941
106,776
366
124
678,153
2,210
9,924
488
316
686,039

(

6(26)

900,707 ) ( $

307,150
66,709
3,163
8,258
368,764

(

46,000
46,000
731,580
366,874
40,000
44,000
500
350

(
(
(
(

)
)

(
(

(
)
) (
) (
) (
) (
)
) (
) (
(
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(
(
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550,857
911,713
1,139 ) (
144,229 ) (
951,713
807,484
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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4,484
2,941 )
847,087 )
1,798,800
951,713

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)
1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated as a company limited by shares
under the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China (R.O.C.) and was listed on the Taipei
Exchange on December 21, 2012. In November 2018, the Company’s American Depositary Shares
(“ADSs”) was listed on the Nasdaq Global Market. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred herein as the “Group”) are mainly engaged in the development and commercialization of
pharmaceutical products based on its proprietary lipid-assembled drug delivery platform technologies.
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and
commitments in the normal course of business. The Company has financed its operations to date
primarily through the issuance of common stock. The Company has incurred net losses of $901,574 for
the year ended December 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit
of $910,042 after taking into account of capital surplus to cover accumulated deficit amounted to
$874,086. The Company has reported a net loss in all fiscal periods since inception and expects to incur
substantial and increased expenses to expand its development activities and advance its clinical programs.
The Company expects to continue to generate operating losses in the foreseeable future.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $807,484 and a time deposit
with maturity over three months of $307,150 (shown as “Current financial assets at amortized cost”).
The above time deposits include the funding from a loan and security agreement of $368,580 (US$12,000
thousand) that has a maturity date in 2020. As disclosed in Note 6(10), the Group is required to maintain
certain financial covenants quarterly and annually as agreed by both parties.
As the Company is in the research and development phase, the Company may seek future funding based
on the need of capital. The Company is able to exercise discretion and flexibility to deploy its capital
resources in the progress of the research and development according to the schedule of fund raising.
Based on the Company’s business plans, management believes that this is sufficient to fund its operating
expenses and capital expenditure requirements and meet its obligations for at least the next twelve
months from December 31, 2018. However, the future viability of the Company beyond that date is
dependent on its ability to raise additional capital to finance its operations. The Company will seek
additional funding through public offerings. If the Company is unable to obtain sufficient funds on
acceptable terms when needed, the Company could be required to delay, limit or reduce certain of its
research and development programs, which could have effects on the Company’s business prospects.
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The Company’s business plans, consider, among others, the cost management, the issuance of its
common stock, and renewal of its banking facilities with the financial institutions. Although management
continues to pursue these plans, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in
obtaining sufficient funding on terms acceptable to the Company to fund continuing operations.
2. THE DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORIZATION
These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on
January 25, 2019.
3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by FSC effective from 2018 are as follows:

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Amendments to IFRS 2, ‘Classification and measurement of share-based
payment transactions’
Amendments to IFRS 4, ‘Applying IFRS 9, Financial instruments with
IFRS 4, Insurance contracts’
IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
Amendments to IFRS 15, ‘Clarifications to IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers’
Amendments to IAS 7, ‘Disclosure initiative’
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealized losses’
Amendments to IAS 40, ‘Transfers of investment property’
IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IFRS 1,
‘First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IFRS 12,
‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IAS 28,
‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’
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Effective date by
International
Accounting
Standards Board
("IASB")
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018

January 1, 2017
January 1, 2018

Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the
Group’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
A. IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
(a) IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ replaces IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’,
IAS 18, ‘Revenue’ and relevant interpretations. According to IFRS 15, revenue is recognized
when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. A customer obtains control
of goods or services when a customer has the ability to direct the use of, and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from, the asset.
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognizes
revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:
Step 1: Identify contracts with customer.
Step 2: Identify separate performance obligations in the contract(s).
Step 3: Determine the transaction price.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied.
Further, IFRS 15 includes a set of comprehensive disclosure requirements that requires an
entity to disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.
(b) The Group has elected not to restate prior period financial statements and recognized the
cumulative effect of initial application as retained earnings at January 1, 2018, using the
modified retrospective approach under IFRS 15. The Group applied retrospectively IFRS 15
only to incomplete contracts as of January 1, 2018, by adopting an optional transition
expedient. The significant cumulative effects of adopting the modified transition as of
January 1, 2018 are summarised below:
Consolidated balance sheet
Book value
Adjustment for Adjustment amount
under previous
intial application
after IFRS 15
Affected items
revenue standard
of IFRS 15
application
January 1, 2018
$
- $
7,941 $
7,941
Contract liabilities
7,941
7,941
Total affected liabilities
(
874,086) (
7,941) (
882,027)
Accumulated deficit
7,941) (
882,027)
(
874,086) (
Total affected equity
Total affected liabilities
($
874,086) $
- ($
874,086)
and equity
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The Group’s authorization collaboration and development transactions generally authorizes
intellectual property rights of the drug products to pharmaceutical companies. Though the
Group will continuously provide research and development services on the drug products,
pharmaceutical companies could make use of the research and development outcome at any
time. Pharmaceutical companies pay a non-refundable up-front payment upon the signing of
the contracts, and make milestone payments upon each milestone achieved. Pharmaceutical
companies would have difficulty finding another service provider who offers the same
services in terms of continuing research and development on the authorized drug products.
Under the previous accounting policy, the Group recognized milestone payment revenue
upon each milestone achieved, without distinguishing between authorization and continuing
research and development services. After adopting IFRS 15, due to the authorization and
following milestones of research and development being not able to meet the criteria of
distinction, therefore, the Group shall account for all the authorization and continuing
research and development services as a single performance obligation and recognizes the
transaction price according to the progress of performance obligations satisfied.
(c) Please refer to Note 12(5) for other disclosures in relation to the first adoption of IFRS 15.
B. Amendments to IAS 7, ‘Disclosure initiative’
This amendment requires that an entity shall provide more disclosures related to changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes.
Please refer to Note 6(27) for additional disclosures to explain the changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities.
(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by
the Group
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2019 are as
follows:
Effective date by
IASB
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Prepayment features with negative
January 1, 2019
compensation’
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’
January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’
January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint
January 1, 2019
ventures’
IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’
January 1, 2019
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
January 1, 2019
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Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the
Group’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and related interpretations and SICs. The standard
requires lessees to recognize a 'right-of-use asset' and a lease liability (except for those leases with
terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets). The accounting stays the same for lessors,
which is to classify their leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two
types of leases differently. IFRS 16 only requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors.
In the first quarter of 2018, the Group reported to the Board of Directors that IFRS 16 has a material
impact to the Group.
The Group expects to recognize the lease contract of lessees in line with IFRS 16. However, the
Group does not intend to restate the financial statements of prior period (collectively referred herein
as the “modified retrospective approach”). It is expected that ‘right-of-use asset’ and lease liability
will be increased by approximately $73,021, and no significant impact to the Group’s retained
earnings as of January 1, 2019.
(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs as
endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Amendment to IAS 1 and IAS 8, ‘Disclosure Initiative-Definition of
Material’
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Definition of a business’
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’

Effective date by
IASB
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2020
To be determined by
IASB
January 1, 2021

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.
(1) Compliance statement
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”, International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”).
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(2) Basis of preparation
A. Except for defined benefit liabilities recognized based on the net amount of pension fund assets
less present value of defined benefit obligation, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.
B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.
C. In adopting IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 effective January 1, 2018, the Group has elected to apply
modified retrospective approach whereby the cumulative impact of the adoption was recognized
as retained earnings or other equity as of January 1, 2018 and the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017 were not restated. The financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 were prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standard 39
(‘IAS 39’), International Accounting Standard 11 (‘IAS 11’), International Accounting Standard
18 (‘IAS 18’) and related financial reporting interpretations. Please refer to Notes 12(4) and (5)
for details of significant accounting policies and related footnotes.
(3) Basis of consolidation
A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:
(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Consolidation of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.
(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on transactions between
companies within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:
Ownership (%)
Name of
Investor

Name of
Subsidiary

Main Business
Activities

December 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Taiwan
Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.

Research on new anti-cancer
drugs and biotechnology
services

100

100

Taiwan
Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals
B.V.

Technical authorization
and product development

100

100

Taiwan
Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited

Biotechnology services and
reinvestment

100

100

Taiwan
Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd.

Technical authorization
and product development

100

100

Taiwan
Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
Japan Co., Ltd.

Technical authorization
and product development

100

100

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited

TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(Shanghai) Limited

Consulting and technical
service of medication

100

100

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.
D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.
E. Significant restrictions: None.
F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group: None.
(4) Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
A. Foreign currency transactions and balances
(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are retranslated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss.
(c) All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive
income within other gains and losses.
B. Translation of foreign operations
The operating results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
(a) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;
(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and
(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
(5) Classification of current and non-current items
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets:
(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(c) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to
be exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.
B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities:
(a) Liabilities that are expected to be paid off within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(c) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are non-current assets and liabilities,
respectively.
(6) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that meet the
definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments in operations
are classified as cash equivalents.

134

(7) Accounts receivable
A. In accordance with contracts, accounts receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive
consideration in exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.
B. The short-term accounts receivable not bearing interest are measured at initial invoice amount as
the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(8) Impairment of financial assets
For financial assets at amortized cost, at each reporting date, the Group recognizes the impairment
provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or recognizes the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking into
consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other hand, for
accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group recognizes the
impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.
(9) Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met:
A. The contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire.
B. The contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.
C. The contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred and the
Group has not retained control of the financial asset.
(10) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period are capitalized.
B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss as incurred.
C. Land is not depreciated. The cost model is applied to other property, plant and equipment which
is depreciated on a straight-line basis. Each component of an item of property, plant, and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.
D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end or earlier if events and circumstances warrant. If
expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful lives differ from previous estimates or the
patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic benefits embodied in the assets have
changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a change in estimate under IAS 8,
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‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, from the date of the change.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Buildings
44 years
Testing equipment
3 years ~ 8 years
Office equipment
3 years ~ 5 years
Leasehold assets
5 years ~ 10 years
Leasehold improvements
1 years ~ 5 years
(11) Leased assets/ lessee
A. Based on the terms of a lease contract, a lease is classified as a finance lease if the Group assumes
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset.
(a) A finance lease is recognized as an asset and a liability at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
(b) The minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charges are allocated to each period over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.
(c) Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the
end of the lease, the asset shall be depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful
life.
B. Payments made under an operating lease (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(12) Intangible assets
A. Professional technology, mainly patents and technology knowledge, which the Group acquired
from third parties, is stated at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years.
B. Computer software is stated at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over its contract terms
of 1 to 4 years.
(13) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where there
is an indication of impairment. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or reasons for recognizing
impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is
reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the
depreciated or amortized historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been recognized.
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(14) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.
(15) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is removed (or a part of a financial liability) when the obligation specified in the
contract is either discharged or cancelled or expires.
(16) Provisions
Decommissioning provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation on the balance sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
(17) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognized as
expenses in that period when the employees render service.
B. Pensions
(a) Defined contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognized as pension expensen on an
accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent of a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments.
(b) Defined benefit plans
i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Group in current period or prior periods. The liability recognized is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit net obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest
rates of government bonds (at the balance sheet date) of a currency and term consistent
with those of the employment benefit obligations.
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ii. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.
(18) Employee share-based payment
A. (a) For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are
recognized as compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity. The fair value of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market
vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service
conditions that are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest at each balance sheet date. Ultimately, the amount of
compensation cost recognized is based on the number of equity instruments that eventually
vest.
(b) Whenever share options expire, the previous compensation costs recognized in “Capital
surplus – Share options” are reclassified as “Capital surplus – Additional paid-in capital”.
B. Restricted stocks:
(a) Restricted stocks issued to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted at the grant date subtracting the subscription price of NT$10 (in dollars), and are
recognized as compensation cost over the vesting period. The Group has set the date when
employees signed the agreement as the grant date of restricted stocks.
(b) For restricted stocks where those stocks do not restrict distribution of dividends to employees
and employees are not required to return the dividends received if they resign during the
vesting period, the Group recognizes the fair value of the dividends received by the
employees who are expected to resign during the vesting period as compensation cost at the
date of dividend declaration.
(c) For restricted stocks where employees have to pay to acquire those stocks, if employees resign
during the vesting period, they must return the stocks to the Group and the Group must refund
their payments on the stocks based on the original subscription price, the Group recognizes
the payments from the employees who are expected to resign during the vesting period as
liabilities at the grant date, and recognizes the payments from the employees who are
expected to be eventually vested with the stocks in “Capital surplus – restricted stocks”.
(19) Income tax
A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
items recognized directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity, respectively.
B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
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and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
C. Deferred tax is recognized, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
D. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance sheet
date, unrecognized and recognized deferred tax assets are reassessed.
E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on
a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognized for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting from
research and development expenditures and employees’ training costs to the extent that it is
possible that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilized.
(20) Common shares
A. Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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(21) Revenue recognition
The Group’s revenue is comprised of up-front payments and milestone payments under
authorization collaboration and development contracts, and sales-based royalty payment under
royalty contract.
A. The Group’s authorization collaboration and development transactions generally authorizes
intellectual property rights of the drug products to pharmaceutical companies. Though the Group
will continuously provide research and development services on the drug products,
pharmaceutical companies could make use of the research and development outcome at any time.
Pharmaceutical companies pay a non-refundable up-front payment upon signing of the contracts,
and make milestone payments upon each milestone achieved. Based on the Group’s assessment,
the Group uses its proprietary drug delivery technologies to continue the research and
development related services, which are unique such that pharmaceutical companies would have
difficulty finding another service provider who offers the same services in terms of continuing
research and development on the authorized drug products. The authorization and subsequent
research and development services provided by the Group are bonded and highly interrelated
and therefore not distinct and as such are accounted for as one performance obligation to be
delivered over time. The revenue is recognized based on the transaction price, excluding variable
considerations considered not achievable, and the stage of completion, which is measured by the
proportion of contract costs incurred for research and development services as of the financial
reporting date to the estimated total research and development costs for the authorization
collaboration and development contracts. As the Group’s inputs, including costs of Contract
Research Organizations, Contract Manufacture Organizations, and medicines, which have direct
relationship with the transfer of control of services to customers, the Group uses the cost incurred
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation. The
revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal of
the cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The customer pays at the time specified in the
payment schedule. If the services rendered exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized.
If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognized. A contract
liability is recognized as revenue through the performance obligation is satisfied over time.
B. The Group also entered into contracts with customers, where the Group is entitled to a salesbased royalty in exchange for a license of manufacturing and the right to sell pharmaceutical
products. In accordance with the contracts, the Group will not undertake any activities that will
significantly affect the intellectual property to which the customer has rights. The nature of the
Group’s promise in granting a license is a promise to provide a right to use the Group’s
intellectual property and therefore the revenue is recognized when transferring the license to a
customer at a point in time. The Group recognizes revenue when the performance obligation has
been satisfied and the subsequent sale occurs.

140

C. Given that the period between the transfer of promised services to customers and payment by
customers exceed one year for authorization collaboration and development contracts, the
transaction price is adjusted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customers at contract inception. The discount rate would
reflect the credit characteristics of the Group receiving funding from financial institution.
(22) Research and development costs
Research and development costs that do not meet the criteria of internally generated intangible assets
of IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” are expensed in the period in which it is incurred.
(23) Government grants
Government grants are recognized at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with any conditions attached to the grants and the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognizes expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
(24) Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The Group’s chief operating decision-maker is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:
(1) Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies:
The Group provides authorization collaboration and development services to its customers, which
generally includes authorization of intellectual property rights of drug products to pharmaceutical
companies together with continuing research and development services, which pharmaceutical
companies can access and make use of the research outcome at any time. In determining the
performance obligations under authorization collaboration and development contracts, the Group
takes into account the guidance IFRS 15 par. 29:
Factors that indicate that an entity’s promise to transfer a good or service to a customer is separately
identifiable (in accordance with paragraph 27(b)) include, but are not limited to, the following:
a. The entity does not provide a significant service of integrating the good or service with other
goods or services promised in the contract into a bundle of goods or services that represent the
combined output for which the customer has contracted. In other words, the entity is not using
the good or service as an input to produce or deliver the combined output specified by the
customer.
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b. The good or service does not significantly modify or customize another good or service promised
in the contract.
c. The good or service is not highly dependent on, or highly interrelated with, other goods or
services promised in the contract. For example, the fact that a customer could decide to not
purchase the good or service without significantly affecting the other promised goods or services
in the contract might indicate that the good or service is not highly dependent on, or highly
interrelated with, those other promised goods or services.
Based on the Group’s assessment, the Group uses its proprietary drug delivery technologies to
continue the research and development related services, which are unique, and based on the
intellectual property rights authorized and therefore, pharmaceutical companies would have difficulty
finding alternative service provider in offering the same services. In addition, the authorization and
subsequent research and development services provided by the Group are bonded and highly
interrelated and therefore not distinct and are identified as one performance obligation to be delivered
over time.
(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Revenue recognition
The Group accounts for all the authorization and subsequent research and development services as
one performance obligation and recognizes revenue based on the transaction price and the stage of
completion, which is measured by the proportion of contract costs incurred for research and
development services as of the financial reporting date to the estimated total research and
development costs for the authorization collaboration and development contracts. The estimated total
research and development costs would be affected by the progress of research and development,
development of pharmaceutical products, collaboration with pharmaceutical companies, clinical
trials, etc. The Group reassesses the reasonableness of estimates periodically.
6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
December 31, 2018
Cash on hand
Checking and demand deposits
Time deposits

$

56
807,428
807,484

$

December 31, 2017
$

$

81
547,232
404,400
951,713

The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions with good credit quality to disperse credit
risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.
(2) Financial assets at amortized cost

Items
Current items:
Time deposits with
maturity over three months

December 31, 2018

$

307,150 $
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December 31, 2017

-

Amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortized cost are listed below:

$

Interest income

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
380 $

-

(3) Accounts receivable
December 31, 2018
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for
doubtful accounts

$

December 31, 2017

27,475

(
$

$

18,132) (
9,343 $

26,754
18,132)
8,622

A. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
B. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2018
Not past due
Up to 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 181 days

$

9,343 $
18,132
27,475 $

$

8,622
18,132
26,754

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.
C. Information relating to credit risk is provided in Note 12(2).
(4) Prepayments
December 31, 2018
Net input VAT
Prepaid repair expense
Prepaid insurance expenses
Prepaid handling charges
Prepaid rent
Prepaid expense for medical
research
Prepaid service charges
Others

$

December 31, 2017

40,614
1,580
1,568
1,294
487

$

3
10,965
56,511 $

$
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36,103
7,042
1,068
1,352
301
1,850
15,742
7,942
71,400

(5) Property, plant and equipment
A. The details of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land

Buildings

Testing
equipment

Office
equipment

Leasehold
assets

Leasehold
improvements

Total

At January 1, 2018
Cost

$

14,962 $
- (

29,532 $
5,360) (

40,708 $
25,771) (

18,329 $
12,277) (

98,170 $
23,681) (

73,014 $
53,791) (

274,715
120,880)

$

14,962 $

24,172 $

14,937 $

6,052 $

74,489 $

19,223 $

153,835

$

14,962 $

24,172 $

14,937 $

6,052 $

74,489 $

19,223 $

153,835

34,802
9)
9,114
143
6,143) (
87 (

1,318
1,847 (
3,157) (
4)

7,679) (
19,840) (
-

5,950
- (
1,847)
9,519) (
3

Accumulated depreciation
2018
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification
Transfers (Note)
Depreciation charges

- (
-

Net exchange differences
Closing net book amount

- (
656) (
-

42,070
9)
1,435
143
39,315)
86

$

14,962 $

23,516 $

52,931 $

6,056 $

46,970 $

13,810 $

158,245

$

14,962 $
- (

29,532 $
6,016) (

82,584 $
29,653) (

19,878 $
13,822) (

50,013 $
3,043) (

77,208 $
63,398) (

274,177
115,932)

$

14,962 $

23,516 $

52,931 $

6,056 $

46,970 $

13,810 $

158,245

At December 31, 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
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Buildings

Land
At January 1, 2017
Cost

Leasehold

Leasehold

equipment

equipment

assets

improvements

Total

14,962 $
- (

29,532 $
4,703) (

66,266 $
34,843) (

16,235 $
9,458) (

100,070 $
30,239) (

72,504 $
41,383) (

299,569
120,626)

$

14,962 $

24,829 $

31,423 $

6,777 $

69,831 $

31,121 $

178,943

$

14,962 $

24,829 $

31,423 $

6,777 $

69,831 $

31,121 $

178,943

12,069

2,840

Additions

-

-

Disposals

-

-

Reclassifications

-

- (

Transfers (note)

-

-

Depreciation charges

- (
-

Net exchange differences
Closing net book amount

Office

$

Accumulated depreciation
2017
Opening net book amount

Testing

- (

657) (
- (

4)

25,390)

-

1,256

-

25,642 (
-

1,072
- (

15,981
4)

252)

-

-

1,256

4,045) (
376)

3,581) (
20 (

20,983) (
1) (

12,660) (
58) (

41,926)
415)

$

14,962 $

24,172 $

14,937 $

6,052 $

74,489 $

19,223 $

153,835

$

14,962 $
- (

29,532 $
5,360) (

40,708 $
25,771) (

18,329 $
12,277) (

98,170 $
23,681) (

73,014 $
53,791) (

274,715
120,880)

$

14,962 $

24,172 $

14,937 $

6,052 $

74,489 $

19,223 $

153,835

At December 31, 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Note: Transferred from prepayments for equipment (shown as “Other non-current assets”).
B. Information about the investing activities that were partially paid by cash is provided in Note 6(26).
C. Information about the leasehold assets is provided in Note 6(11).
D. Information about the property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral is provided in Note 8.
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(6) Intangible assets
A. The details of intangible assets are as follows:
Professional
technology
At January 1, 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortization
2018
Opening net book amount
Additions
Amortization charges
Closing net book amount

Computer
software

Total

$
(
$

49,114 $
46,315) (
2,799 $

23,522 $
17,684) (
5,838 $

72,636
63,999)
8,637

$
(
$

2,799 $
2,799) (
- $

5,838 $
3,537
5,345) (
4,030 $

8,637
3,537
8,144)
4,030

$
(
$

49,290 $
49,290) (
- $

27,058 $
23,028) (
4,030 $

76,348
72,318)
4,030

At December 31, 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Professional
technology

Computer
software

Total

At January 1, 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortization
2017
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfer (Note)
Amortization charges
Net exchange differences
Closing net book amount
At Dectember 31, 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortization

$
(
$

49,239 $
41,299) (
7,940 $

$

(
(
$

7,940 $
5,102) (
39)
2,799 $

$
(
$

49,114 $
46,315) (
2,799 $

17,589 $
12,216) (
5,373 $
5,373
5,706
227
5,468)
5,838

$

66,828
53,515)
13,313

(
(
$

13,313
5,706
227
10,570)
39)
8,637

23,522 $
17,684) (
5,838 $

72,636
63,999)
8,637

(Note): Transferred from prepayments for equipment (shown as “Other non-current assets”).
B. Information about the investing activities that were partially paid by cash is provided in Note
6(26).
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C. The details of the amortization charges of intangible assets (recorded in “Operating expenses”)
are as follows:

General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses

$
$

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
2,983 $
3,001
7,569
5,161
8,144 $
10,570

(7) Other non-current assets

Refundable deposits
Prepaid expense for medical
research - non-current
Prepayments for equipment

$

December 31, 2018
18,930

$

20,000
27,942
66,872

$

December 31, 2017
27,188

$

20,000
923
48,111

(8) Short-term borrowings
Type of borrowings
Bank unsecured borrowings
Interest rate
Credit line

$
$

December 31, 2018
46,000
1.95%~2.10%
-

$
$

December 31, 2017
46,000
1.95%~2.10%
-

Interest expense recognized in profit or loss amounted to $942 and $942 for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
(9) Other payables
December 31, 2018
Research expenses
Service expenses
Salaries and bonuses
Payables on machinery, equipment
and intangible assets
Medical research expenses
Labor and health insurance
Repair expenses
Other accrued expenses

$

97,930 $
48,137
31,049
3,677
2,707
2,191
676
19,901
206,268 $

$
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December 31, 2017
33,742
9,825
30,539
4,697
2,218
6,668
5,852
93,541

(10) Long-term borrowings

Type of loans
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Cathay Bank
-secured borrowings
Less: Current portion (Shown as
“Other current liabilities”)

Type of loans
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Less: Current portion (Shown as
“Other current liabilities”)

Borrowing
period and
repayment term
Note 1

Interest
rate
1.85%

Collateral
Note 5

Note 2

1.85%

Note 5

Note 3 and 4

5.25%

Note 5

December 31,
2018
$
37,277

28,900

(
$
Borrowing
period and
repayment term
Note 1

Interest
rate
1.85%

Collateral
Note 4

Note 2

1.85%

Note 4

368,580
434,757
66,747)
368,010

December 31,
2017
$
37,750

(
$

32,300
70,050
3,873)
66,177

Note 1: The Company entered into a long-term loan contract with Taiwan Cooperative Bank on
September 1, 2015 in the amount of $37,750. The contract period is from September 2015 to
September 2035. The interest is payable monthly for the first 3 years and payable monthly
along with the same amount of principal starting from the fourth year.
Note 2: The Company entered into a mid-term loan contract with Taiwan Cooperative Bank on
September 4, 2015 in the amount of $34,000. The contract period is from September 2015 to
September 2022. The interest is payable monthly for the first 2 years and payable semiannually along with 5% of the principal starting from September 2017. The remaining 50%
of principal is required to be repaid in September 2022.
Note 3: The Company and its subsidiary, TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc. (“TLC US”) entered into a
mid-term loan contract with Cathay Bank on June 14, 2018 in the amount of US$12 million.
The contract period is from June 2018 to December 2020. The interest is payable monthly for
the first six months and payable monthly along with the same amount of principal starting
from January 2019. The Company had repaid the loan in full amount in November 2018.
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Note 4: The Company and its subsidiary, TLC US entered into a mid-term loan contract with Cathay
Bank on December 27, 2018 in the amount of US$12 million. The contract period is from
December 2018 to June 2020. The interest is payable monthly for the first six months and
payable monthly along with the same amount of principal starting from July 2019.
Note 5: Information about the collateral provided for the loans is provide in Note 8.
A. According to the above two bank loan contracts with Taiwan Cooperative Bank, the Company is
restricted from paying cash dividends or other distributions on the common shares and Taiwan
Cooperative Bank retains the right in requesting the Company to raise paid-in capital or to
improve financial structure if certain conditions are met.
B. According to the above bank loan contract with Cathay Bank, if the Company and its subsidiary
violate any of the following covenants, Cathay Bank has the right to ask the Company and its
subsidiary to repay early the outstanding loan:
The Group fails to maintain a quick ratio of at least a minimum of 2.25 to 1.00 and adjusted
tangible net worth of not less than US$12 million as per its quarterly and yearly consolidated
financial statements.Quick ratio is a ratio of cash and cash equivalents plus net trade receivables
to the amount of principal payments owing to Cathay Bank under this contract for the next 12
months plus all other current liabilities.
The Company was in compliance with all of the loan covenants as of December 31, 2018.
Accordingly, the entire debt balance for this loan has been classified as non-current liability at
December 31, 2018.
The bank loan contract with Cathay Bank also prohibits the Company from paying cash dividends
or making distributions on account of the Company’s capital stock without the consent of Cathay
Bank, subject to certain exceptions.
C. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the undrawn loan facilities amounted to $6,623 and $2,750,
respectively. The information about the Group’s liquidity risk is provided in Note 12(2)C(c).
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(11) Finance lease liabilities
The Group leases testing equipment under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and their
present values as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, 2018
Future finance
charges

Total finance
lease liabilities
Current
Not later than one year (Note)
Non-current
Later than one year but not later
than two years (Note)

Present value of
finance lease
liabilities

$

24,583 ($

583) $

24,000

$

24,198 (
48,781 ($

198)
781) $

24,000
48,000

December 31, 2017
Total finance
lease liabilities
Current
Not later than one year (Note)
Non-current
Later than one year but not later
than two years (Note)

Future finance
charges

Present value of
finance lease
liabilities

$

48,466 ($

466) $

48,000

$

4,008 (
52,474 ($

8)
474) $

4,000
52,000

Note: Shown as “Other current liabilities” and “Other non-current liabilities”, respectively.
(12) Pensions
A. Defined benefit plan
(a) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards
Act, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor
Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to continue
to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Labor Standards Act. Under the defined
benefit pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and
one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension
benefits are based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and
wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount
equal to 2% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited
with Bank of Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund
committee. Also, the Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor
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pension reserve account by December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient
to pay the pension calculated by the aforementioned methods to the employees expected to
qualify for retirement in the following year, the Company will make contributions to cover
for the deficit by next March.
(b) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2017
December 31, 2018
7,064 $
6,421
Present value of defined benefit obligations $
1,319)
(
1,560) (
Fair value of plan assets
5,102
$
5,504 $
Net defined benefit liability
(c) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Present value of
defined benefit
obligations

Year ended December 31, 2018
Balance at January 1
Interest expense / income

$

Remeasurements:
Change in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments
Pension fund contribution
Balance at December 31

$

Fair value of
plan assets

6,421 ($
83 (
6,504 (

1,319) $
17)
1,336)

5,102
66
5,168

162
398
560
7,064

33)
33)
191) (
1,560) $

162
365
527
191)
5,504

(
(
(
($

Present value of
defined benefit
obligations

Year ended December 31, 2017
Balance at January 1
Current service cost

$

Interest expense / income
Remeasurements:
Change in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

(

Pension fund contribution
Balance at December 31

$
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Net defined
benefit liability

Fair value of
plan assets

Net defined
benefit liability

6,141 ($

1,086) $

5,055

59
105 (
6,305 (

18)
1,104)

59
87
5,201

312
196)
116
- (
6,421 ($

8 (
8
223) (
1,319) $

312
188)
124
223)
5,102

(d) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilization plan and the
“Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement
Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilization for the Fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign
financial institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private
placement equity securities, and investment in domestic or foreign real estate securitization
products, etc.). With regard to the utilization of the Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual
distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings attainable
from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local
banks. If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government shall make payment for
the deficit after being authorized by the Regulator. The Company has no right to participate
in managing and operating that fund and hence the Company is unable to disclose the
classification of plan asset fair value in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142. The
composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is given in the
Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilization Report announced by the government.
(e) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Years ended December 31,
2018
2017

1.10%
2.00%

Discount rate
Future salary increases

1.30%
2.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial valuation in
accordance with the 5th version of Taiwan Standard Ordinary Experience Mortality Tables.
The present value of defined benefit obligation is affected whenever there is change in main
actuarial assumption. The sensitivity analysis is as follows:

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2018
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation ($

201) $
209 $
189 ($
183)
Discount rate
Future salary increases
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2017
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation ($

197) $
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205 $

186 ($

181)

The sensitivity analysis above was arrived at based on the assumption that other conditions
remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once. The
method of analyzing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the
balance sheet are the same.
(f) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Company for the year
ending December 31, 2019 is $194.
(g) As of December 31, 2018, the weighted average duration of the retirement plan is 15 years.
The analysis of timing of the future pension payment is as follows:

$

Within 1 year
1-2 year(s)
2-5 years
6-10 years

$

462
2,753
3,215

B. Defined contribution plans
Effective July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution pension plan (the
“New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering all regular employees with
R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount based on
6% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts
at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon
termination of employment. The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plan of
the Company for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are $8,843 and $8,676,
respectively.
C. The subsidiaries have defined contribution plans in accordance with the local regulations, and
contributions are based on a certain percentage of employees’ salaries and wages. Other than
the yearly contributions, the subsidiaries have no further obligations. The pension costs of the
subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $1,487 and $1,423,
respectively.
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(13) Share-based payment
A. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s equity-settled share-based
payment arrangements are as follows:

Type of
arrangement
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Employee stock
options
Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

Quantity
granted
Contract
Grant date (in thousands) period
2012.05.08
2013.11.14
2014.03.20
2014.08.15
2015.02.26
2015.04.30
2015.05.04
2015.07.30
2015.10.29
2016.02.25
2016.08.11
2016.11.03
2018.06.29
2018.07.02
2014.08.15

Vesting conditions

62.8 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
883.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
153.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
82.3 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
1,102.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
16.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
35.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
50.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
180.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
1,391.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
140.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
73.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
1,320.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
65.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years service
(Note 1)
307.0 3 years
Service and performance (Note 3)

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

2014.11.14

43.0 3 years

Service and performance (Note 3)

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

2017.11.16

500.0 3 years

(Note 4)

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

2018.07.02

50.0 3 years

(Note 4)
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(Note 1) Employees with 2 year service are entitled to 50%; after the 2 year service, the ratio will
increase by 1/48 every month for the following 24 months; and employees with 4 year
service are entitled to 100%.
(Note 2) The restricted stocks issued by the Company cannot be transferred within the vesting
period, but voting rights and dividend rights are not restricted on these stocks.
Employees are required to return the stocks but not required to return the dividends
received if they resign during the vesting period.
(Note 3) For the employees who are currently working in the Company and whose services have
reached 1 year, 2 years and 3 years while achieving targeted performance, which are
mainly based on the progress of research and development projects, and they have made
certain contribution. The applicable accumulated maximum vested share ratio is 30%,
60% and 100%, respectively.
(Note 4) For the employees who are currently working in the Company and whose services have
reached 1 year, 2 years and 3 years without violating the terms of employment
agreements entered between the Company and employees, they are entitled to 20%, 30%
and 50%, respectively.
B. Details of the share-based payment arrangements are as follows:
(a) Employee stock options

2018

Stock options
Options outstanding at
beginning of the year
Options granted
Options expired
Options forfeited
Options outstanding at end
of the year
Options exercisable at end
of the year
Options permitted but not yet
granted at end of the year

2017

WeightedWeightedaverage
average
No. of units exercise price No. of units exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
3,513 $
239
4,168 $
231

(
(

1,385
831)
338)

101
379
196 (

3,729

152

3,513

239

1,957

188

1,844

301

415
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655)

-
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(b) Restricted stocks to employees

2017
2018
Shares (in thousands)
Shares (in thousands)
500
111
50
500
(
35) (
31)

At January 1
Granted for the year (Note 1)
Expired for the year (Note 2)
Vested/restrictions removed
for the year
At December 31

(

93) (
422

80)
500

(Note 1): For the restricted stocks granted with the compensation cost accounted for using
the fair value method, the fair values on the grant date are calculated based on the
closing price on the grant date subtracting the subscription price of $10 (in dollars).
(Note 2): Please refer to Note 6(15)D.
C. No employee stock options were exercised for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
D. The expiry date and exercise price of stock options outstanding at the balance sheet dates are as
follows:

Exercise price
Quantity
(in dollars) (in thousands)
$
249.7
119.0
191.7
52.0
227.3
820.0
208.4
15.0
208.4
35.0
140.8
38.0
134.7
138.0
150.5
1,063.0
123.7
28.0
118.0
61.0
99.2
1,295.0
65.0
101.2
3,729.0

December 31, 2018
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
at end of year
at end of year
Remaining
contractual Exercise price
Quantity
Exercise price
life (years)
(in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
0.22 $
249.7
119.0 $
249.7
0.62
191.7
52.0
191.7
1.16
227.3
787.0
227.3
1.33
208.4
14.0
208.4
1.34
208.4
31.0
208.4
1.58
140.8
33.0
140.8
1.83
134.7
109.0
134.7
2.15
150.5
758.0
150.5
2.61
123.7
16.0
123.7
2.84
118.0
38.0
118.0
4.49
99.2
4.50
101.2
1,957.0
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December 31, 2017
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
at end of year
at end of year

Exercise price
Quantity
(in dollars) (in thousands)
$
379
831.4
272
150.2
206
59.7
246.5
954.7
225
16.0
225
35.0
148
38.0
141
138.0
159
1,148.0
128.5
69.0
73.0
122
3,513.0

Remaining
contractual Exercise price
Quantity
Exercise price
life (years)
(in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
0.87 $
379
831.4 $
379
1.22
272
142.0
272
1.62
206
51.0
206
2.16
246.5
688.3
246.5
2.33
225
10.7
225
2.34
225
22.6
225
2.58
148
23.0
148
2.83
141
75.0
141
3.15
159
3.61
128.5
3.84
122
1,844.0

E. The fair value of stock options granted on grant date is measured using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Relevant information is as follows:

Employee stock options
Grant date
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life (years)
Per share exercise
price (in dollars)
Weighted average stock options
fair value (in dollars)

June 29, 2018
43.59%~44.04%
0.65%~0.69%
3.5~4.5

July 2, 2018
43.60%~44.03%
0.65%~0.70%
3.5~4.5

$100.5

$102.5

$33~$37

$33~$38

F. Expenses incurred on share-based payment transactions are shown below:

Equity-settled

$
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Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
41,386 $

57,149

(14) Provisions (decommissioning liabilities)

2018
At January 1
Used during the year
At December 31

$

2017
6,922 $
- (
6,922 $

$

6,996
74)
6,922

Analysis of total provisions are shown below:

December 31, 2018
December 31, 2017
$
6,922 $
6,922

Non-current

In accordance with the requirements specified in the agreements, the Group bears the obligation for
the costs of dismantling, removing the asset and restoring the site of its rented office in the future.
A provision is recognized for the present value of costs to be incurred for dismantling, removing the
asset and restoring the site. It is expected that the provision will be used in 1 to 4 years.
(15) Common shares
A. As of December 31, 2018, the Company’s authorized capital was $2,000,000, and the paid-in
capital was $640,451 with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds from shares
issued have been collected.
Movements in the number of the Company’s common shares outstanding are as follows (Unit:
thousand shares):

2017

2018
At January 1
Cash capital increase - issuance of
American Depositary Shares
Issuance of employee restricted stocks
Cancellation of employee restricted stocks
At December 31

(

56,199

55,730

7,831

-

50
35) (
64,045

500
31)
56,199

B. To increase the Company’s working capital, the shareholders at their extraordinary stockholders’
meeting on March 10, 2011 adopted a resolution to raise additional cash through private
placement with the effective date set on March 25, 2011. The maximum number of shares to be
issued through the private placement was 4,711 thousand shares at a subscription price of $42.45
(in dollars) per share. The amount of capital raised through the private placement was $200,000
which had been registered. Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of the ROC, the common
shares raised through the private placement are subject to certain transfer restrictions and cannot
be listed on the stock exchange until three years after they have been issued and have applied for
retroactive handling of public issuance procedures. Other than these restrictions, the rights and
obligations of the common shares raised through the private placement are the same as other
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issued common shares.
C. On February 17, 2018 (February 16, 2018 Eastern time in the United States), the Company filed
the registration statement, Form F-1, with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
for the initial public offering in the United States of its American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”)
representing shares of ordinary shares. The registration statement for listing its ADSs in the
Nasdaq Global Market was declared effective by the SEC, and the Company held the initial
public offering of its ADSs on November 21, 2018.
The actual units of ADSs for this offering were 3,915,550 and each ADS represents 2 of the
Company's ordinary shares, which in total represents 7,831,100 ordinary shares. The offering
price per ADS was US$5.8 (in dollar), equivalent to a price per ordinary share of $89.32 (in
dollar). The payment of this fundraising was fully collected as of November 27, 2018, and the
record date for this capital increase was November 27, 2018.
The terms of ADS are as follows:
(a) Voting rights
ADSs holders may, pursuant to the Depositary Agreement and the relevant laws and
regulations of the R.O.C., exercise the voting rights pertaining to the underlying common
shares represented by the ADSs.
(b) Dividends, stock warrants and other rights
ADSs holders and common shareholders are all entitled to receive dividends. The Depositary
may issue new ADSs in proportion to ADSs holding ratios or raise the number of shares of
common stock represented by each unit of ADSs or sell stock dividends on behalf of ADSs
holders and distribute proceeds to them in proportion to their ADSs holding ratios.
D. Employee restricted stocks
(a) The Board of Directors during its meeting on June 18, 2014 adopted a resolution to issue
employee restricted stocks (see Note 6(13)) with the effective date set on August 21, 2014
and November 20, 2014, respectively. The subscription price was $10 (in dollars) per share.
The employee restricted stocks issued are subject to certain restrictions on selling, pledging
as collateral, transfer, donation or other methods to dispose before their vesting conditions
are met. Other than these restrictions, the rights and obligations of these shares issued are the
same as other issued common shares.
(b) As 2,000 shares of employee restricted stocks granted to certain employees in March 2017
did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted stocks, the
Board of Directors has resolved on May 11, 2017 to buy back the restricted stocks to retire
for capital reduction. The registration was completed on June 23, 2017.
(c) As 15,000 shares of employee restricted stocks granted to certain employees in July and
August 2017 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted
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stocks, the Board of Directors has resolved on August 10, 2017 to buy back the restricted
stocks to retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on September 7, 2017.
(d) As 14,000 shares of employee restricted stocks granted to certain employees in September
and November 2017 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of
restricted stocks, the Board of Directors has resolved on November 1, 2017 to buy back the
restricted stocks to retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on December
8, 2017.
(e) As 25,000 shares of employee restricted stocks granted to certain employees in June and
July 2018 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted
stocks, the Board of Director has resolved on August 1, 2018 to buy back the restricted
stocks to retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on August 29, 2018.
(f) As 10,000 shares of employee restricted stocks granted to certain employees in November
2018 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted stocks,
the Board of Directors has resolved on October 31, 2018 to buy back the restricted stocks to
retire for capital reduction. The registration was complete on January 3, 2019.
(g) The stockholders at their annually stockholders’ meeting on May 31, 2017 adopted a
resolution to issue employee restricted stocks (see Note 6(13)) with the effective date set on
November 16, 2017 and July 2, 2018. The subscription price is $10 (in dollars) per share.
The employee restricted stocks issued are subject to certain restrictions on selling, pledging
as collateral, transfer, donation or other methods to dispose before their vesting conditions
are met. Other than these restrictions, the rights and obligations of these shares issued are
the same as other issued common shares.
(16) Capital surplus
Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par
value on issuance of common shares and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the
Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act requires that
the amount of capital surplus to be capitalized mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the paidin capital each year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless the legal
reserve is insufficient.
(17) Accumulated deficit
A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current earnings, if any, shall be distributed
in the following order:
(a) Payment of taxes and duties;
(b) Cover prior years’ accumulated deficit, if any;
(c) After deducting items a and b, set aside 10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve;
(d) Appropriate or reverse special reserve in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations,

if necessary; and

160

(e) After deducting items a to d, the remainder, if any, to be retained or to be appropriated shall
be resolved by the shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting.
B. The Company’s dividend policy is summarized below:
As the Company operates in a volatile business environment and is in the growth stage, the
residual dividend policy is adopted taking into consideration the Company’s financial structure,
operating results and future expansion plans. According to the dividend policy adopted by the
Board of Directors, cash dividends shall account for at least 10% of the total dividends
distributed.
C. Under the R.O.C. Company Act, when the accumulated deficit exceeds 50% of the capital, the
directors should convene a meeting of the shareholders and report the situation.
D. The shareholders during their meetings on June 26, 2018 and May 31, 2017 adopted a
resolution to use capital surplus amounting to $874,086 and $824,662 to cover accumulated
deficit, respectively.
Information on the above as proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the shareholders
will be posted in the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock
Exchange.
E. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit. Therefore, the earnings
distribution information disclosure is not applicable.
F. For the information relating to employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration, please
refer to Note 6(23).
(18) Operating revenue

$

Revenue from contracts with customers

Year ended
December 31, 2018
62,324

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in
time in the following types:

Year ended December 31, 2018
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time
Total

Royalty
revenue
$

Authorization
collaboration and
development revenue

52,100 $
52,100 $

$
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- $
10,224
10,224 $

Total
52,100
10,224
62,324

B. Contract assets and liabilities
The Group has recognized the following revenue-related contract assets:
December 31, 2018
Contract assets – authorization collaboration
and development revenue

$

2,283

(a) Revenue recognized that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the
year:

Year ended
December 31, 2018
Revenue recognized that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year
Authorization collaboration and
development contracts

$

7,941

(b) Unfulfilled long-term authorization collaboration and development contracts
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-term authorization collaboration
and development contracts that are partially unsatisfied as of December 31, 2018 amounted
to $37,716. Considering the progress of research and development, management expects that
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts amounting to $37,716 as of
December 31, 2018 will be recognized as revenue in the next three years.
C. Related disclosures in relation to operating revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 are
provided in Note 12(5)B.
D. Authorization collaboration and development revenue is the revenue arising from authorization
collaboration and development of generic drugs. The details are as follows:
In December 2013, the Company entered into a license and collaboration agreement with
Sandoz AG. (“Sandoz”) for the development and commercialization of products in Europe and
in the USA. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company received an upfront, nonrefundable payment of US$100 thousand in January 2014, and aggregated milestone payments
of US$2,275 thousand related to the Europe submission in March and April 2014, and January
2015, respectively.
Under IFRS 15, the revenue, based on the proportion of transaction price, is recognized on the
basis of costs incurred relative to the total expected costs of the performance obligation. Once
the new drug is launched in the market, a royalty fee will be received by the Company, which is
equal to an agreed upon percentage of net sales. The Company will recognize performancebased milestone payment revenue upon entering the local market in Europe and in the USA, and
upon achieving a certain net sales volume and market position within five years.
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E. The details of royalty revenue are as follows:
(a) The Company granted TTY Biopharm Company Limited (“TTY”) the exclusive right in
Taiwan to produce and promote LIPO-DOX, a medicinal product developed by the
Company. Under the contract, royalty payments are based on 12% of the net product sales.
(b) The Company authorizes Yung Shin Pharm. Ind. Co., Ltd. (“YSP”) the exclusive right in
Taiwan to produce and promote generic drugs. Under the contract, the Company will receive
a royalty payment based on a certain percentage of the net sales.
(19) Other income

Interest income
$
Government subsidy income (Notes 1 and 2)
Others
$

Years ended December 31,
2017
2018
2,453 $
21,100
5,437
28,990 $

5,060
14,206
6,984
26,250

Note 1: The Company has entered into contracts of “A phase IIa trial of lipid-based investigational
drug TLC399 in the subjects with macular edema due to retinal vein occlusion in the United
States” and “A phase I/II trial of lipid-based, sustained release investigational drug TLC399
(ProDex®) for treating macular edema due to retinal vein occlusion” with the Institute for
Information Industry in 2017 and 2014, respectively. The Company has accrued
government subsidy income in accordance with the progress of the plan. The aforesaid
subsidy plan has recognized income of $7,615 and $14,206 for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has not received
government subsidy of $2,661 (shown as “Other receivables”).
Note 2: The Company’s subsidiary, TLC Biopharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. received the financial
incentives from Australian government in August 2018 of $13,485 for its research and
development activities.
(20) Other gains and losses

Years ended December 31,
2018
Net currency exchange (loss) gain
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Other losses

2017

($

2,986) $

2,632

(
($

1,478
309) (
1,817) $

20
42)
2,610
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(21) Finance costs

Bank borrowings
Finance lease liabilities

$
$

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
9,379 $
507
9,886 $

2,255
1,130
3,385

(22) Expenses by nature (Shown as “Operating expenses”)

Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation charges
Amortization charges

$
$
$

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
314,655 $
323,991
39,315 $
41,926
8,144 $
10,570

(23) Employee benefit expenses

Years ended December 31,
2018
Wages and salaries
Share-based payment compensation costs
Labor and health insurance fees
Pension costs
Other personnel expenses

$

$

2017
234,735 $
41,386
19,026
10,396
9,112
314,655 $

225,633
57,149
19,117
10,245
11,847
323,991

A. According to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit of the
current year, after covering accumulated deficit, shall be distributed as employees’ compensation
and directors’ remuneration. The ratio shall be 2%~8% for employees’ compensation and shall
not be higher than 2% for directors’ remuneration.
B. Through December 31, 2018, the Company had accumulated deficits and did not accrue
employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration.
Information about the appropriation of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration by
the Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation
Post System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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(24) Income tax
A. Components of income tax expense:

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017

Current income tax:
Current income tax on profits for the year
Prior year income tax underestimation

$

538 $
329

735
133

Total current income tax

867

868

Deferred income tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences
Total deferred income tax
Income tax expense

867 $

83
83
951

$

B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit:

Years ended December 31,

2018
Tax calculated based on profit (loss)
before tax and statutory tax rate (Note)
Effect of different tax rates in countries
in which the Group operates
Tax effect of amounts which are not
(taxable) deductible in calculating
taxable income
Taxable loss not recognized as deferred
tax assets
Prior year income tax underestimation
Income tax expense

($

$

2017
180,141) ($

148,412)

300

573

-

83

180,379
329
867

148,574
133
951

$

Note: The basis for computing the applicable tax rate is the rate applicable of 20% and 17% in
the parent company’s country in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:
2018

January 1

Recognized
in profit or
loss

Recognized
in other
comprehensive
income

Recognized
in equity

December 31

Temporary differences:

－Deferred tax assets:
Unrealized expenses

$

81

$

- ($

2) $

-

$

79

2017

January 1

Recognized
in profit or
loss

Recognized
in other
comprehensive
income

Recognized
in equity

December 31

Temporary differences:

－Deferred tax assets:
Unrealized expenses

$

164 ($

83) $

-

$

-

$

81

D. Details of investment tax credit and unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

Qualifying items
Research and development expenditure
Employees' development and training

December 31, 2018
Unrecognized
deferred
Unused tax
Final year tax
income tax
credits
assets
credits are due
$
358,394 $
358,394
Note
72
72
Note

Qualifying items
Research and development expenditure
Employees' development and training

December 31, 2017
Unrecognized
deferred
Unused tax
Final year tax
income tax
credits
credits are due
assets
$
307,403 $
307,403
Note
72
72
Note

Note: In accordance with the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) Jing-Shou-Gong-Zi Letter
No. 10020409420 dated June 10, 2011 and Letter No. 10320407210 dated April 3, 2014,
the Company was approved as a biotech pharmaceuticals company. Accordingly, the
Company and its shareholders are eligible for investment tax credits under the Statute for
Development of Biotech New Pharmaceuticals Industry. Relevant investment tax credits
can be used to offset against the Company’s income tax within five years from the year in
which the Company starts to have income tax payable.
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E. Expiration dates of unused tax losses and amounts of unrecognized deductible amounts of the
Company are as follows:

December 31, 2018

Year incurred
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Amount filed/
Unrecognized
assessed
Unused amount amount (Note)
$
136,642 $
136,642 $
136,642
196,215
196,215
196,215
212,903
212,903
212,903
187,946
187,946
187,946
407,816
407,816
407,816
632,283
632,283
632,283
649,799
649,799
649,799
792,388
792,388
792,388
832,622
832,622
832,622
918,113
918,113
918,113
$
4,966,727 $
4,966,727 $
4,966,727

Expiry year
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

Note: Unrecognized amount represents unused tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset
has been recognized.

December 31, 2017

Year incurred
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

Amount filed/
Unrecognized
assessed
Unused amount amount (Note)
$
200,442 $
200,442 $
200,442
136,642
136,642
136,642
196,215
196,215
196,215
212,903
212,903
212,903
187,946
187,946
187,946
407,816
407,816
407,816
632,283
632,283
632,283
649,799
649,799
649,799
792,388
792,388
792,388
869,479
869,479
869,479
$
4,285,913 $
4,285,913 $
4,285,913

Expiry year
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Note: Unrecognized amount represents unused tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset
has been recognized.
F. The U.S. subsidiary, TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc., has not recognized unused tax losses as
deferred income tax assets. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounts of unused tax losses
not recognized as deferred income tax assets are $1,968 and $48,732, respectively.
G. The amounts of deductible temporary difference that are not recognized as deferred tax assets
are as follows:
Deductible temporary differences

$
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2018
85,337

$

2017
104,865

H. The Company’s income tax returns through 2016 have been assessed and approved by the Tax
Authority.
(25) Loss per share

Year ended December 31, 2018
Weighted average
number of common
Amount
shares outstanding
Loss per share
(in thousands of shares) (in dollars)
after tax

Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company
Dilutive effect of common shares
equivalents:
Employees’ stock options
Restricted stocks
Diluted loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential common shares

($

901,574)

-

($

62,719 ($

14.37)

62,719 ($

14.37)

(Note)
(Note)

901,574)

Year ended December 31, 2017
Weighted average
number of common
Amount
shares outstanding
Loss per share
(in thousands of shares) (in dollars)
after tax

Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company
Dilutive effect of common shares
equivalents:
Employees’ stock options
Restricted stocks
Diluted loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential common shares

($

873,962)

-

($

873,962)

55,489 ($

15.75)

55,489 ($

15.75)

(Note)
(Note)

Note: Employee stock options and employee restricted stocks have no dilutive effect for any period
due to the fact that the Company was in loss position for both periods presented.
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(26) Supplemental cash flow information
Investing activities with partial cash payments:

Years ended December 31,
2017
2018
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(including transfers)
Add: Opening balance of payables on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Ending balance of prepayments for equipment
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
being transferred to other expenses
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
being transferred to intangible assets
Less: Ending balance of payables on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Opening balance of prepayments for
equipment
Cash paid

$

42,213

(

$

17,237

27,942

1,229
923

780

-

-

227

3,303)

-

923) (
66,709 $

(
$

1,483)
18,133

Years ended December 31,
2018
Acquisition of intangible assets
(including transfers)
Add: Opening balance of payables on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Less: Ending balance of payables on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
Cash paid

$

(
$

2017
3,537

$

5,933

-

1,495

374)
- (
3,163 $

227)
7,201

(27) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

At January 1, 2018
Changes in cash flow
from financing activities
Net exchange differences
At December 31, 2018

Short-term
borrowings
$
46,000

$

Long-term
Finance lease
borrowings
liabilities
Liabilities from
(including
(including
financing
current portion) current portion)
activities
$
70,050 $
52,000 $
168,050

46,000 $

169

364,107 (
600
434,757 $

4,000)
48,000 $

360,107
600
528,757

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names of related parties and relationship
Names of related parties
Keelung Hong
George Yeh

Relationship with the Group
The Group’s Chairman
The Group’s General Manager

(2) Significant transactions and balances with related parties
A. The Company’s Chairman provided guarantees for the Company’s long-term and short-term
borrowings with Taiwan Cooperative Bank.
B. The Company’s Chairman and General Manager provided guarantees for the Company’s shortterm borrowings with E.SUN Commercial Bank.
C. The Company’s Chairman provided guarantees to Taiwan Cooperative Bank for the Company’s
government grant in relation to the research and development program from the Institute of
Information Industry.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, details of loans are described in Notes 6(8) and 6(10).
(3) Key management personnel compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

$

$

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
38,227 $
33,072
486
432
8,120
9,366
48,079 $
41,624

8. PLEDGED ASSETS
(1)

Assets pledged
Shown as “Property, plant and
equipment”
Land
Buildings

December 31, 2018

$

14,962 $
23,516
38,478 $

$

December 31, 2017

Pledge purpose

14,962
24,172
39,134

Note
Note

Note: Provided as collateral for long-term borrowings with Taiwan Cooperative Bank.
(2) Pursuant to the bank loan contract entered between Cathay Bank and the Company and its subsidiary,
TLC US, on December 27, 2018, except for the Intellectual Property, including trademarks, patents,
copyrights, servicemarks, technology, trade secret, and etc., defined in the loan contract, all other
personal property, including tangible and intangible assets, of the Company and its subsidiary, TLC
US are pledged as collateral for borrowings. Cathay Bank constitutes a first priority security interest
in the personal property of the Company and its subsidiary, TLC US located in the United States and
does not constitute a first priority security interest in the personal property of the Company located
outside of the United States.
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9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS
(1) Contingencies
Under certain special generic product agreements, the Company is required to have a certain market
supply capacity before the launch of the products in the market. Otherwise, the Company is
obligated to pay a certain amount as compensation.
(2) Commitments
In addition to the commitments mentioned in Note 6(10)A and B, the Group’s significant
commitments are as follows:
A. Capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred and are
cancelable without cause are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2018
December 31, 2017
$
11,037 $
1,781

B. Operating lease commitments
The Group leases offices with lease terms between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease terms at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not
later than five years

December 31, 2018
December 31, 2017
$
31,787 $
32,999
46,315
78,102 $

$

75,450
108,449

C. The Company has outstanding commitments on purchase contracts for the research and
manufacturing of medicines which are cancelable without cause as follows:
December 31, 2017
December 31, 2018
$
120,707 $
31,577
D. The Company has outstanding commitments on research and development which are cancelable
without cause as follows:

December 31, 2018
$
603,178

December 31, 2017
$
478,977

E. The Company has signed a licensing agreement for technology transition with TWI
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. with maximum royalty charges of US$5,000 thousand according to the
R&D achievement. Once the new drug is launched in the market, the Company will pay a royalty
fee based on a certain percentage of the net product sales.
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F. The Company’s subsidiary entered into a synthesis technology of novel camptothecin derivative
transfer agreement with Sutter West Bay Hospitals (SWBH, formerly, California Pacific Medical
Center). Under the agreement, SWBH charges the Company’s subsidiary a patent usage fee of
US$10 thousand per annum, royalty fees up to US$300 thousand according to the R&D
achievement and royalty fees to a certain percentage of relevant product sales volume. Through
December 31, 2018, the Company’s subsidiary had paid US$100 thousand.
10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS
None.
11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
None.
12. OTHERS
(1) Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to improve the Group’s capital structure, the Group
may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt ratio. The Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s gearing ratios are as follows:
December 31, 2018
December 31, 2017
$
748,725 $
275,255
Total debt
561,990
$
640,451 $
Total capital
116.91%
48.98%
Debt ratio
(2) Financial instruments
A. Financial instruments by category
December 31, 2018
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost/loans and
receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current financial assets at amortized cost
Accounts receivable, net
Other receivables
Refundable deposits

$

$
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807,484
307,150
9,343
5,811
18,930
1,148,718

December 31, 2017

$

$

951,713
8,622
19,726
27,188
1,007,249

December 31, 2018
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Short-term borrowings
Other payables
Finance lease liabilities
(including current portion)
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion)

$

$

46,000
206,268

December 31, 2017

$

46,000
93,541

48,000

52,000

434,757
735,025

70,050
261,591

$

B. Financial risk management policies
(a) The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group adopts overall risk management
program and control system to identify all financial risks and seeks to control and balance
potential adverse effects from those aforesaid financial risks.
(b) The goal of market risk management is to appropriately consider the impacts of economic
environment, competition and market value risk, in order to achieve the best risk position,
to maintain appropriate liquidity position and to centrally manage all market risks.
(c) To meet its risk management objectives, the Group’s procedures of hedge focus on market
risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
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C. Significant financial risks and degree of financial risks
(a) Market risk
i. Foreign exchange risk
(i) The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s functional currency: NTD; the subsidiaries’ functional currencies: USD,
EUR, HKD, RMB, AUD and JPY). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the
exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

December 31, 2018
(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Foreign currency
amount
(in thousands)

$

29,933

Exchange
rate

30.715 $

Book value
(NTD)
(in thousands)

919,392

1,529
1,754

30.715
21.665

46,963
38,000

17,886
2,544

30.715
21.665

549,368
55,116

December 31, 2017
(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Foreign currency
amount
(in thousands)

$

575
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Exchange
rate

29.76 $

Book value
(NTD)
(in thousands)

17,112

1,437
1,084

29.76
23.705

42,762
25,135

741
1,466

29.76
23.705

22,052
34,752

(ii) Analysis of foreign currency market risk arising from significant foreign exchange
variation:

(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Extent of
variation

1%

Year ended December 31, 2018
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on other
Effect on profit
comprehensive
or loss
income
(in thousands)
(in thousands)

$

9,194

$

-

1%
1%

-

470
380

1%
1%

5,494
551

-

Extent of
variation

1%

Year ended December 31, 2017
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on other
Effect on profit
comprehensive
or loss
income
(in thousands)
(in thousands)

$
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$

-

1%
1%

-

428
251

1%
1%

221
348

-

(iii) The unrealized exchange gain arising from significant foreign exchange variation on
the monetary items held by the Group for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 are $24 and $329, respectively.
ii. Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at floating interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings at
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floating interest rate were denominated in the NT dollars.
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, if interest rate had been 0.2% higher/lower with all other
conditions held constant, net loss for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 would
have been by $653 and $232 higher/lower, respectively. The main factor is that the
floating-rate borrowings resulted in changes in interest expense.
(b) Credit risk
i. Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from cash and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as default by the customers on the contract
obligations. The main factor is that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts
receivable based on the agreed terms.
ii. The Group manages their credit risk taking into consideration the entire group’s concern.
For banks and financial institutions, only financial institutions with a good credit rating
are accepted. According to the Group’s credit policy, each entity in the Group is
responsible for managing and analyzing the credit risk for each of their new customers
before entering into license contracts. Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of
the customers, taking into account their financial positions, past experience and other
factors.
iii. The default occurs when the contract payments are past due based on the agreed terms.
iv. The Group classifies customers’ accounts receivable in accordance with credit rating of
customers. The Group applies the simplified approach to estimate expected credit loss
under the provision matrix basis.
v.

The Group wrote off the financial assets, which cannot be reasonably expected to be
recovered, after initiating recourse procedures. However, the Group will continue
executing the recourse procedures to secure their rights.

vi. The Group assesses the expected credit losses based on the payment terms stipulated in
the contracts with the customers. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. Except for loss
allowance of $18,132 established based on the delay payment of the balances due from
one customer, the Group has not identified impairments on the trade receivables. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables and
contract assets is very low, and the loss allowance for the trade receivables and contract
assets recognized is immaterial as of December 31, 2018.
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vii. Movements in relation to the Group applying the simplified approach to provide loss
allowance for accounts receivable and contract assets are as follows:

2018
Accounts receivable
Contract assets
$
18,132 $
18,132
$
18,132 $

At January 1_IAS 39
Adjustments under new standards
At January 1_IFRS 9
Provision for impairment
At December 31

-

viii. Credit risk information for the year ended December 31, 2017 is provided in Note 12(4).
(c) Liquidity risk
i. Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregated
by Group treasury. Group treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.
ii. The table below analyzes the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

December 31, 2018

Short-term borrowings
Other payables
Finance lease liabilities
(including current portion)
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion)

Within Between 1 Between 2 Between 3
Over
1 year
and 2 years and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
$ 46,761 $
- $
- $
- $
206,268
24,583

24,198

-

-

-

82,864

322,928

8,351

24,210

30,429

December 31, 2017

Short-term borrowings
Other payables
Finance lease liabilities
(including current portion)
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion)

Within Between 1 Between 2 Between 3
Over
1 year
and 2 years and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
$ 46,062 $
- $
- $
- $
93,541
48,466

4,008

-

-

-

5,137

6,493

6,430

27,901

33,019

177

(3) Fair value information
A. The Group had no financial instruments measured at fair value, by valuation method, as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.
B. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are approximate to their fair values, including cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at amortized cost, receivables, refundable deposits, short-term borrowings,
long-term borrowings (including current portion), payables, and finance lease liabilities
(including current portion).
(4) Effects on initial application of IFRS 9 and information in relation to the application of IAS 39 for
the year ended December 31, 2017
A. The significant accounting policies of accounts receivable, other receivables, and impairment of
financial assets adopted in the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(a) Accounts receivable and other receivables
Accounts receivable are claims resulting from the sale of goods or services. Other
receivables are those arising from transactions other than the sale of goods or services.
Accounts receivable and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. However, short-term accounts receivable without bearing interest are
subsequently measured at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(b) Impairment of financial assets
i. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
ii. The criteria that the Group uses to determine whether there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss is as follows:

(a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
(c) The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granted the borrower a concession that a lender would not otherwise
consider;
(d) It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;
(e) Information about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place
in the technology, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer

178

operates, and indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may
not be recovered.
iii. When the Group assesses that there has been objective evidence of impairment and an
impairment loss has occurred on financial assets measured at amortized cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted using the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate, and is recognized in profit or loss. If, in
a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost that would have
been at the date of reversal had the impairment loss not been recognized previously.
Impairment loss is recognized and reversed by adjusting the carrying amount of the
asset through the use of an impairment allowance account.
B. The reconciliation of allowance for impairment and provision from December 31, 2017, as these
are impaired under IAS 39, to January 1, 2018, as these are expected to be impaired under IFRS
9, are as follows:

Accounts receivable
$
18,132
$
18,132

IAS 39
Impairment loss adjustment
IFRS 9

C. Credit risk information for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(a) Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from default by the
customers on the contract obligations. According to the Group’s credit policy, each entity in
the Group is responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new
customers before signing the license agreement. Internal risk control assesses the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. Credit risk arises from cash and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
as well as credit exposures to corporate pharmaceutical companies, including outstanding
receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only financial institutions with a good
credit rating are accepted.
(b) For the year ended December 31, 2017, no credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.
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(c) The Group’s accounts receivable that were neither past due nor impaired were fully
performing in line with the credit standards prescribed based on counterparties’ industrial
characteristics, scale of business and profitability. As of December 31, 2017, the Group’s
accounts receivable that were neither past due nor impaired amounted to $8,622. The Group
deals with counterparties with good credit reputation and has policies in place to ensure that
customers have an appropriate credit history when signing the contracts.
(d) The ageing analysis of financial assets that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

December 31, 2017
$
$
-

Up to 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 181 days
The above ageing analysis were based on past due date.

D. Movement analysis of accounts receivable that were impaired is as follows:
(a) As of December 31, 2017, the Group’s accounts receivable that were individually
determined to be impaired amounted to $18,132.
(b) Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of accounts receivable for the year
ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:

At January 1
Provision for impairment
At December 31

Individually assessed
for impairment
$
9,067
9,065
$
18,132

Collectively assessed
for impairment
$
- $
$
- $

Total
9,067
9,065
18,132

(5) Effects of initial application of IFRS 15 and information in relation to the application of IAS 18 for
the year ended December 31, 2017
A. The significant accounting policies of revenue recognition for the year ended December 31,
2017 are as follows:
(a) Out-licensing development collaboration revenue includes up-front fees and milestone
payments. Upfront fees are recognized in a reasonable and systematic approach over the
development period, and is not recognized in full, if the authorization contract of the
Company does not meet all of the following criteria:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

The amount of royalty is fixed or non-refundable.
The contract is irrevocable.
Relevant rights may be at the authorized party’s own disposition.
The party granting authority has no further obligations after passing on the rights to the
authorized party.
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Milestone payments are contractual payments due to the Company upon the achievement
of certain additional events. The entire milestone payment due is recognized as revenue, in
full, at the time the milestone set forth in the respective agreements has been achieved and
the amount is reasonably assured of collection.
(b) Royalty revenues are recognized based on the substance of contracts when the earning
process is substantially completed and are realized or realizable, which is in the same
period that the licensee makes a qualifying sale of licensed products.
B. The revenue recognized by using previous accounting policies for the year ended December 31,
2017 are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2017
$
49,635

Royalty revenue

C. The effects and description of current balance sheet and comprehensive income statement items
if the Company continued adopting previous accounting policies as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Items
Contract assets
Operating revenue
Retained earnings

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2018
Balance by using Effects from changes
Balance by using previous accounting
in accounting
Description
IFRS 15
policies
policies
$
2,283 $
- $
2,283
Note
$
10,224 $
- $
10,224
Note
$
7,941 $
- $
7,941
Note

Note: The Group accounts for all the authorization and subsequent research and development
services provided by the Group as one performance obligation, and recognizes revenue
based on the transaction price, and the stage of completion, which is measured by the
proportion of contract costs incurred for research and development services performed as
of the financial reporting date to the estimated total research and development costs for
the authorization collaboration and development contracts.
13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
(1) Significant transactions information
A. Loans to others: None.
B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: None.
C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): None.
D. Aggregate purchases or sales of the same securities reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more: None.
E. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
F. Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
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G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paidin capital or more: None.
H. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more:
None.
I. Derivative financial instruments undertaken during the year ended December 31, 2018: None.
J. Significant inter-company transactions during the year ended December 31, 2018: Please refer
to table 1.
(2) Information on investees
Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
China): Please refer to table 2.
(3) Information on investments in Mainland China
A. Basic information: Please refer to table 3.
B. Significant transactions conducted with investees in Mainland China directly or indirectly
through other companies in the third areas: Please refer to table 1.
14. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(1) General information
The Group’s major business is research and development for new medicine and operates only in
one single industry. The Chief Operating Decision-Maker, who allocates resources and assesses
performance of the Group as a whole, has identified that the Group has only one reportable operating
segment.
(2) Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
The Group has only one reportable operating segment, and therefore, the reportable segment
information is the same as the financial statements.
(3) Reconciliation for segment income (loss)
The segment income (loss) reported to the chief operating decision-maker is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the statement of comprehensive income. There is no reconciliation because
the report provided to the chief operating decision-maker for business decisions has no difference
to the segment income (loss) information.
(4) Information on products and services
Please refer to Note 6 (18) for the related information.
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(5) Geographical information
Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Taiwan
Europe
China
Others

Year ended December 31, 2018 Year ended December 31, 2017
Non-current
Non-current
assets (Note)
Revenue
assets (Note)
Revenue
$
52,100 $
202,724 $
49,635 $
176,727
10,224
11
23
7,482
6,645
$
62,324 $
210,217 $
49,635 $
183,395

Note: Deferred tax assets and refundable deposits are excluded from non-current assets.
(6) Major customer information
Details of sales to individual customers exceeding 10% of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

A
B
F

Year ended December 31, 2018
Revenue
$
40,765
11,335
10,224
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Year ended December 31, 2017
Revenue
$
40,385
9,250
-

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Significant inter-company transactions
Year ended December 31, 2018

Table 1

Expressed in thousands of NTD
Transaction

Number
(Note 1)

Company name

1
2
3
4

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Japan Co., Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, (Shanghai) Limitd
TLC Biopharmaceuticals Pty Ltd.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2
2
2
2

General ledger account
Operating revenue
Operating revenue
Operating revenue
Operating revenue

1
4

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals Pty Ltd.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2
2

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable

Counterparty

Relationship
(Note 2)

$

Amount
(Note 5)
Transaction terms
74,586
(Note 4)
2,961
(Note 4)
4,370
(Note 4)
40,245
(Note 4)
34,070
38,347

(Note 4)
(Note 4)

Percentage of consolidated total
operating
revenues or total assets (Note 3)
119.67%
4.75%
7.01%
64.57%
2.40%
2.70%

Note 1: The numbers filled in for the transaction company in respect of inter-company transactions are as follows:
(1) Parent company is ‘0’.
(2) The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from ‘1’.
Note 2: Relationship between transaction company and counterparty is classified into the following three categories:
(1) Parent company to subsidiary.
(2) Subsidiary to parent company.
(3) Subsidiary to subsidiary.
Note 3: Regarding percentage of transaction amount to consolidated total operating revenues or total assets, it is computed based on period-end balance of transaction to consolidated
total assets for balance sheet accounts and based on accumulated transaction amount for the period to consolidated total operating revenues for income statement accounts.
Note 4: Transaction items follow the agreement.
Note 5: Only related party transactions in excess of NT$1 million are disclosed.
Note 6: The above transactions between the parent company and its subsidiaries had been eliminated when preparing consolidated financial statements. The disclosure information is for reference only.
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Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investee in Mainland China)
Year ended December 31, 2018

Table 2

Initial investment amount

Investor
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

Investee
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
B.V.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Pty Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Japan Co., Ltd.

Location

Main business activities

USA

Research on new anti-cancer
drugs and biotechnology services
Netherlands Technical authorization and
product development
Hong Kong Biotechnology service and
reinvestment
Australia Technical authorization and
product development
Japan
Technical authorization and
product development

Balance as of Balance as of
December
December
31, 2018
31, 2017
$
55,433 $
55,433

Expressed in thousands of NTD

Shares held as of December 31, 2018

Income of the
investee for the
year ended
December 31,
2018

Number of
shares
Ownership (%) Book value
3,100,000
100%
$ 46,963 $

Investment income
(loss) recognized by the
Company for the year
ended
December 31, 2018
Footnote

5,504 $

2,812

4,410

4,410

1,000,000

100%

1,599

216

216

3,023

3,023

780,000

100%

3,713

274

274

23,399

23,399

1,000,000

100%

37,995

15,086

15,086

2,670

2,670

1,000

100%

3,484

139

139

Note: All the transactions with subsidiaries had been eliminated when preparing consolidated financial statements.
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Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Information on investments in Mainland China - Basic information
Year ended December 31, 2018

Investee in
Mainland China

Main business
activities
Paid-in capital

TLC
Consulting and $
Biopharmaceuticals, technical
(Shanghai) Limited service of
medication

2,236

Investment method
(Note 1)
Reinvestment in
Mainland China
through third region
company (TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited)

Accumulated
Accumulated
amount of
amount of
Amount remitted from Taiwan to
remittance from Mainland China/Amount remitted back to remittance from
Income of
Taiwan to
Taiwan to
investee for the
Taiwan for the year ended December 31,
Mainland China
Mainland China
year ended
2018
as of January 1,
Remitted to
Remitted back to as of December December 31,
2018
31, 2018
2018
Mainland China
Taiwan
$
2,243 $
- $
- $
2,243 $
263

料結束列

Note 1: Investment methods are classified into the following three categories:
(1) Directly invest in a company in Mainland China.
(2) Through investing in an existing company in the third area, which then invested in the investee in Mainland China
(3) Others
Note 2: In the ‘Investment income recognized by the Company for the year ended Dectember 31, 2018’ column:
(1) It should be indicated if the investee was still in the incorporation arrangements and has not yet generated any profit during this period.
(2) Indicate the basis for investment income (loss) recognition in the number of one of the following three categories:
A. The financial statements were audited and attested by international accounting firm which has cooperative relationship with accounting firm in R.O.C.
B. The financial statements were audited and attested by R.O.C. parent company’s CPA.
C. Others (The financial statements were reviewed by R.O.C. parent company’s CPA.).

Company name
Taiwan Liposome
Company, Ltd.

Accumulated
amount of
remittance
from Taiwan
to Mainland
China as of
December 31,
2018
$
2,243

Investment
amount
approved by
the Investment
Ceiling on
Commission of
investments in
the Ministry of
Mainland China
Economic
imposed by the
Affairs
Investment
(MOEA)(Note) Commision of MOEA
$
2,243 $
401,517

(Note) The investment amount was approved by Jing-Shen-II-Zi No. 10300223010 of Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C.
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Expressed in thousands of NTD

Ownership
held by the
Company
(direct or
indirect)
100

Book value Accumulated
of
amount of
Investment income
investment
recognized by the investments
Company for the in Mainland income remitted
China as of back to Taiwan
year ended
December 31, 2018 December as of December
31, 2018
31, 2018
Footnote
(Note 2(2)B)
$

263

$

3,074

$

-
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TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Assets

December 31, 2018
AMOUNT
%

Notes

December 31, 2017
AMOUNT
%

Current assets
1100

Cash and cash equivalents

6(1)

1136

Current financial assets at

6(2)

$

amortized cost

786,843

53

307,150

$

917,611

71

21

-

-

1140

Current contract assets

6(18)

2,283

-

-

-

1170

Accounts receivable, net

6(3)

9,343

1

8,622

1

1200

Other receivables

6(19)

3,053

-

17,743

1

1220

Current income tax assets

113

-

414

-

1410

Prepayments

56,066

4

70,773

5

1,164,851

79

1,015,163

78

93,754

6

75,954

6

150,752

10

149,964

12

4,030

-

5,840

-

65,774

5

46,739

4

314,310

21

278,497

22

1,479,161

100

1,293,660

100

11XX

6(4)

Total current assets
Non-current assets

1550

Investments accounted for under

6(5)

equity method
1600

Property, plant and equipment

1780

Intangible assets

1900

Other non-current assets

15XX
1XXX

6(6) and 8

6(7)

Total non-current assets
Total assets

$

(Continued)
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$

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Liabilities and Equity

December 31, 2018
AMOUNT
%

Notes

December 31, 2017
AMOUNT
%

Current liabilities
46,000

3

6(9)(26)

267,547

6(10)(11)

2100

Short-term borrowings

6(8)

2200

Other payables

2300

Other current liabilities

21XX

46,000

3

18

124,732

10

91,981

7

53,443

4

405,528

28

224,175

17

368,010

25

66,177

5

6,922

-

6,922

1

29,505

2

9,102

1

404,437

27

82,201

7

809,965

55

306,376

24

640,451

43

561,990

43

952,364

65

1,322,625

103

(

910,042) (

62) (

874,086) (

68)

(

13,577) (

1) (

23,245) (

2)

$

Total current liabilities

$

Non-current liabilities
2540

Long-term borrowings

6(10)

2550

Provisions for liabilities - non-

6(14)

current
2600
25XX

Other non-current liabilities

6(11)(12)

Total non-current liabilities

2XXX Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
3110

Common share
Capital surplus

3200

6(15)
6(16)

Capital surplus
Retained earnings

3350

Accumulated deficit

6(17)

Other equity
3400

Other equity interest

3XXX

Total equity
Significant contingent liabilities

669,196

45

1,479,161

100

987,284

76

1,293,660

100

9

and unrecognized contract
commitments
Significant events after reporting

11

period
3X2X

Total liabilities and equity

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT LOSS PER SHARE AMOUNT)

4000

6200
6300
6000
6900

7010
7020
7050
7070

7000
8200

8311

8361

8300
8500

9750
9850

Items
Operating revenue
Operating expenses
General and administrative
expenses
Research and development
expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Non-operating income and
expenses
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Share of profit of
subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures accounted for
under equity method
Total non-operating
income and expenses
Net loss
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement arising on
defined benefit plan
Items that may be
subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Financial statements
translation differences of
foreign operations
Total other comprehensive
loss, net
Total comprehensive loss
Loss per share of common
stock
Basic loss per share (in
dollars)
Diluted loss per share (in
dollars)

Notes
6(18) and 12(5) $
6(12)(13)(22)(23
)

6(19)
6(20)
6(21)
6(5)

Year ended December 31
2018
2017
AMOUNT
%
AMOUNT
62,324
100 $
49,635

(

138,758) (

(
(
(

847,515) ( 1360) (
986,273) ( 1583) (
923,949) ( 1483) (

(
(

($

223) (

15,389
1,655) (
9,886) (

25
3)
16) (

18,527

30

22,375
36
901,574) ( 1447) ($

123,936) (

%
100

250)

828,270) ( 1669)
952,206) ( 1919)
902,571) ( 1819)
26,158
2,636
3,385) (

3,200

53
5
7)

7

28,609
58
873,962) ( 1761)

6(12)
($

527) (

1) ($

124)

-

(

727) (

1) (

3,396) (

7)

6(5)

($
($

1,254) (
2) ($
902,828) ( 1449) ($

3,520) (
7)
877,482) ( 1768)

($

14.37) ($

15.75)

($

14.37) ($

15.75)

6(25)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)
Capital Surplus

Notes

2017
Balance at January 1, 2017
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss
Issuance of restricted stocks to employees
Share-based payments
Share options forfeited
Cancellation of restricted stocks
Restricted stocks vested
Capital surplus used to cover accumulated deficit
Balance at December 31, 2017
2018
Balance at January 1, 2018
Effects of retrospective application of new standards
Balance at January 1, 2018 after adjustments
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss
Issuance of new share capital, net of issuance costs of $100,499
Issuance of restricted stocks to employees
Share-based payments
Share options forfeited
Cancellation of restricted stocks
Restricted stocks vested
Capital surplus used to cover accumulated deficit
Balance at December 31, 2018

Common shares

$

6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(17)

(

$
$
3

6(15)
6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(13)(15)
6(13)
6(17)

(

$

Additional paidin capital
Treasury stocks

557,306
$ 1,835,958
5,000
37,000
316 )
10,312
- (
824,662 )
561,990
$ 1,058,608

$

561,990
$ 1,058,608
1,058,608
561,990
472,546
78,311
500
69,935
350 )
5,813
874,086 )
- (
640,451
$ 732,816

$

$

$

7,009
7,009
7,009
7,009
7,009

Share options

$

(

$
$

(

$

Restricted
stocks
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Accumulated
deficit

213,379
$
52,835
37,000 )
- (
229,214
$

22,562
22,489
16
17,273 )
27,794

($
(
(
(

229,214
$
229,214
27,570
69,935 )
- (
186,849
$

27,794
27,794
3,359
350
5,813 )
25,690

($
(
(
(
(
(

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.

Other equity interest
Exchange
difference on
translation of
foreign
Unearned
financial
statements
compensation

($

($

Total equity

824,662 ) $
873,962 )
124 ) (
874,086 ) (
824,662
874,086 ) ($

1,684 ($
3,396 )
3,396 )
- (
1,712 ) ($

9,694 )
23,114 )
4,314
6,961
21,533 )

$ 1,803,542
(
873,962 )
(
3,520 )
(
877,482 )
4,375
57,149
(
300 )
$
987,284

874,086 )
7,941 )
882,027 )
901,574 )
527 )
902,101 )
874,086
910,042 )

1,712 )
1,712 )
727 )
727 )
2,439 )

21,533 )
21,533 )
3,421 )
13,816
11,138 )

$
(

($
(
(
(

($

($
(

(

($

(
(
(

$

987,284
7,941 )
979,343
901,574 )
1,254 )
902,828 )
550,857
438
41,386
669,196

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Years ended December 31
2018
2017

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Provision for doubtful accounts
Share-based payments
Depreciation
Amortization
Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures accounted for under equity method
Interest expense
Interest income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Prepayments for equipment being transferred to other
expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Accounts receivable, net
Current contract assets
Other receivables
Other receivables-related parties
Prepayments
Changes in operating liabilities
Notes payable
Current contract liabilities
Other payables
Other current liabilities
Provision for liabilities-non-current
Other non-current liabilities
Cash outflow generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Tax refunds received
Net cash flows used in operating activities

($

41,386
36,818
5,345

12(4)
6(13)
6(6)(22)
6(22)
6(5)
(

6(21)
6(19)
6(20)
6(26)

(Continued)
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901,574 ) ( $

(
(

9,065
57,149
39,894
5,468

18,527 ) (
9,886
2,398 ) (
1,435 )
780

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

3,200 )
3,385
5,051 )
-

721 ) (
2,283 )
14,933 (
17,293 (
7,941 )
136,864
334 )
124 )
672,032 )
2,155
9,924 )
316
679,485 )

873,962 )

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

701 )
17,607 )
432
24,300 )
206 )
15,198 )
383
74 )
74 )
824,597 )
5,156
3,361 )
5,020
817,782 )

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
Years ended December 31
2018
2017

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
($

Acquisition of current financial assets at amortized cost

$

-

Decrease in other financial assets
Acquisition of investments accounted for under equity

307,150 )

1,817

6(5)
-

method

(

23,396 )

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

6(26)

(

60,667 ) (

17,694 )

Acquisition of intangible assets

6(26)

(

3,163 ) (

7,201 )

7,984

(

4,946 )

362,996 ) (

51,420 )

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
(

Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings

(

Payments of short-term borrowings

46,000

46,000 ) (

46,000 )

731,580

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Proceeds from finance lease liabilities
(

Payments of finance lease liabilities
Issuance of restricted stocks to employees

1,700 )

40,000

48,000

44,000 ) (

46,500 )

500

5,000

350 ) (

(

Cancellation of restricted stocks

-

366,874 ) (

(

Payments of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of new share capital, net of

46,000

316 )

6(15)

issuance costs of $100,499
Net cash flows from financing activities

-

911,713

4,484

130,768 ) (

(

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

550,857

864,718 )

917,611

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
$

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

786,843

1,782,329
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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917,611

TAIWAN LIPOSOME COMPANY, LTD.
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)
1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION
Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated as a company limited by shares
under the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China (R.O.C.) and was listed on the Taipei
Exchange on December 21, 2012. In November 2018, the Company’s American Depositary Shares
(“ADSs”) was listed on the Nasdaq Global Market. The Company is mainly engaged in the development
and commercialization of pharmaceutical products based on its proprietary lipid-assembled drug delivery
platform technologies.
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and
commitments in the normal course of business. The Company has financed its operations to date
primarily through the issuance of common stock. The Company has incurred net losses of $901,574 for
the year ended December 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit
of $910,042 after taking into account of capital surplus to cover accumulated deficit amounted to
$874,086. The Company has reported a net loss in all fiscal periods since inception and expects to incur
substantial and increased expenses to expand its development activities and advance its clinical programs.
The Company expects to continue to generate operating losses in the foreseeable future.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $786,843 and a time deposit
with maturity over three months of $307,150 (shown as “Current financial assets at amortized cost”).
The above time deposits include the funding from a loan and security agreement of $368,580 (US$12,000
thousand) that has a maturity date in 2020. As disclosed in Note 6(10), the Company is required to
maintain certain financial covenants quarterly and annually as agreed by both parties.
As the Company is in the research and development phase, the Company may seek future funding based
on the need of capital. The Company is able to exercise discretion and flexibility to deploy its capital
resources in the progress of the research and development according to the schedule of fund raising.
Based on the Company’s business plans, management believes that this is sufficient to fund its operating
expenses and capital expenditure requirements and meet its obligations for at least the next twelve
months from December 31, 2018. However, the future viability of the Company beyond that date is
dependent on its ability to raise additional capital to finance its operations. The Company will seek
additional funding through public offerings. If the Company is unable to obtain sufficient funds on
acceptable terms when needed, the Company could be required to delay, limit or reduce certain of its
research and development programs, which could have effects on the Company’s business prospects.
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The Company’s business plans, consider, among others, the cost management, the issuance of its
common stock, and renewal of its banking facilities with the financial institutions. Although management
continues to pursue these plans, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in
obtaining sufficient funding on terms acceptable to the Company to fund continuing operations.
2. THE DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORIZATION
These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on January 25, 2019.
3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by FSC effective from 2018 are as
follows:
Effective date by
International
Accounting
Standards Board
("IASB")
January 1, 2018

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Amendments to IFRS 2, ‘Classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions’
Amendments to IFRS 4, ‘Applying IFRS 9, Financial instruments with IFRS 4,
January 1, 2018
Insurance contracts’
IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
January 1, 2018
IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
January 1, 2018
Amendments to IFRS 15, ‘Clarifications to IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
January 1, 2018
with customers’
Amendments to IAS 7, ‘Disclosure initiative’
January 1, 2017
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses’
January 1, 2017
Amendments to IAS 40, ‘Transfers of investment property’
January 1, 2018
IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’
January 1, 2018
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IFRS 1,
January 1, 2018
‘First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IFRS 12,
January 1, 2017
‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IAS 28,
January 1, 2018
‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’
Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the

Company’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.
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A. IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and amendments
(a) IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ replaces IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’,
IAS 18, ‘Revenue’ and relevant interpretations. According to IFRS 15, revenue is recognized
when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. A customer obtains control of
goods or services when a customer has the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits from, the asset.
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognizes
revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:
Step 1: Identify contracts with customer.
Step 2: Identify separate performance obligations in the contract(s).
Step 3: Determine the transaction price.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied.
Further, IFRS 15 includes a set of comprehensive disclosure requirements that requires an
entity to disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.
(b) The Company has elected not to restate prior period financial statements and recognized the
cumulative effect of initial application as retained earnings at January 1, 2018, using the
modified retrospective approach under IFRS 15. The Company applied retrospectively IFRS
15 only to incomplete contracts as of January 1, 2018, by adopting an optional transition
expedient. The significant cumulative effects of adopting the modified transition as of January
1, 2018 are summarised below:

Balance sheet

Affected items
January 1, 2018
Contract liabilities
Total affected liabilities
Accumulated deficit
Total affected equity
Total affected liabilities
and equity

Book value
Adjusted amount
Adjustment for
under previous initial application of
after IFRS 15
IFRS 15
application
revenue standard
$
(
(

- $
874,086) (
874,086) (

7,941 $
7,941
7,941) (
7,941) (

7,941
7,941
882,027)
882,027)

($

874,086) $

- ($

874,086)

The Company’s authorization collaboration and development transactions generally
authorizes intellectual property rights of the drug products to pharmaceutical companies.
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Though the Company will continuously provide research and development services on the
drug products, pharmaceutical companies could make use of the research and development
outcome at any time. Pharmaceutical companies pay a non-refundable up-front payment upon
the signing of the contracts, and make milestone payments upon each milestone achieved.
Pharmaceutical companies would have difficulty finding another service provider who offers
the same services in terms of continuing research and development on the authorized drug
products. Under the previous accounting policy, the Company recognized milestone payment
revenue upon each milestone achieved, without distinguishing between authorization and
continuing research and development services. After adopting IFRS 15, due to the
authorization and following milestones of research and development being not able to meet
the criteria of distinction, therefore, the Company shall account for all the authorization and
continuing research and development services as a single performance obligation and
recognizes the transaction price according to the progress of performance obligations satisfied.
(c) Please refer to Note 12(5) for other disclosures in relation to the first adoption of IFRS 15.
B. Amendments to IAS 7, ‘Disclosure initiative’
This amendment requires that an entity shall provide more disclosures related to changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes.
Please refer to Note 6(27) for additional disclosures to explain the changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities.
(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by
the Company
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2019 are as
follows:
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Prepayment features with negative
compensation’
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’
Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’
Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures’
IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle

Effective date by
IASB
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019

Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the
Company’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and related interpretations and SICs. The standard
requires lessees to recognise a 'right-of-use asset' and a lease liability (except for those leases with
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terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets). The accounting stays the same for lessors,
which is to classify their leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two
types of leases differently. IFRS 16 only requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors.
In the first quarter of 2018, the Company reported to the Board of Directors that IFRS 16 has a
material impact to the Company.
The Company expects to recognize the lease contract of lessees in line with IFRS 16. However, the
Company does not intend to restate the financial statements of prior period (collectively referred
herein as the “modified retrospective approach”). It is expected that ‘right-of-use asset’ and lease
liability will be increased by approximately $52,937, and no significant impact to the Company’s
retained earnings as of January 1, 2019.
(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs as
endorsed by the FSC are as follows:
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Amendment to IAS 1 and IAS 8, ‘Disclosure Initiative-Definition of
Material’
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Definition of a business’
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’

Effective date by
IASB
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2020
To be determined by
IASB
January 1, 2021

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
(1) Compliance statement
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”.
(2) Basis of preparation
A. Except for defined benefit liabilities recognized based on the net amount of pension fund assets
less present value of defined benefit obligation, these financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.
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B. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note
5.
C. In adopting IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 effective January 1, 2018, the Company has elected to apply
modified retrospective approach whereby the cumulative impact of the adoption was recognized
as retained earnings or other equity as of January 1, 2018 and the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017 were not restated. The financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 were prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standard 39 (‘IAS
39’), International Accounting Standard 11 (‘IAS 11’), International Accounting Standard 18
(‘IAS 18’) and related financial reporting interpretations. Please refer to Notes 12(4) and (5) for
details of significant accounting policies and related footnotes.
(3) Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
A. Foreign currency transactions and balances
(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are retranslated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss.
(c) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within other gains and losses.
B. Translation of foreign operations
The operating results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
(a) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;
(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and
(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
(4) Classification of current and non-current items
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets:
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(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(c) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are
to be exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.
B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities:
(a) Liabilities that are expected to be paid off within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(c) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are non-current assets and liabilities,
respectively.
(5) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents refer to short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that meet the
above criteria and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitment in operations are
classified as cash equivalents.
(6) Accounts receivable
A. In accordance with contracts, accounts receivable entitle the Company a legal right to receive
consideration in exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.
B. The short-term accounts receivable not bearing interest are measured at initial invoice amount as
the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(7) Impairment of financial assets
For financial assets at amortized cost, at each reporting date, the Company recognizes the impairment
provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or recognizes the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking into
consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other hand, for
accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component, the Company recognizes
the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.
(8) Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met:
A. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset expire.
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B. The contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.
C. The contractual right to receive cash flows of the financial assets have been transferred, and the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset.
(9) Subsidiaries accounted for under equity method
A. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) that the Company has control over the
investees, which the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investees. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for under equity method.
B. Unrealized gains or losses on transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.
C. The Company's share of its subsidiaries' post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in profit
or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognized
in other comprehensive income. When the Company’s share of losses in a subsidiary equals or
exceeds its interest in the subsidiary, the Company continues to recognize losses proportionate to
its ownership.
D. Pursuant to the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,”
profit (loss) of the current period and other comprehensive income in the financial statements shall
equal to the amount attributable to owners of the parent in the financial statements. Owners’ equity
in the financial statements shall equal to equity attributable to owners of the parent in the financial
statements.
(10) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period are capitalized.
B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss as incurred.
C. Land is not depreciated. The cost model is applied to other property, plant and equipment which
is depreciated using the straight-line basis. Each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.
D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end or earlier if events and circumstances warrant. If
expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful lives differ from previous estimates or the
patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic benefits embodied in the assets have
changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a change in estimate under IAS 8,
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‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, from the date of the change.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings
Testing equipment
Office equipment
Leasehold assets
Leasehold improvements

3 years~
3 years~
5 years~
1 years~

44 years
8 years
5 years
10 years
5 years

(11) Leased assets/ lessee
A. Based on the terms of a lease contract, a lease is classified as a finance lease if the Company
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset.
(a) A finance lease is recognized as an asset and a liability at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
(b) The minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charges are allocated to each period over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.
(c) Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at
the end of the lease, the asset shall be depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
useful life.
B. Payments made under an operating lease (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(12) Intangible assets
Computer software is stated at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over its contract terms of
1 to 4 years.
(13) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where
there is an indication of impairment. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or reasons for recognizing
impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is
reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the
depreciated or amortized historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been recognized.
(14) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.
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(15) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is removed (or a part of a financial liability) when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
(16) Provisions
Decommissioning provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation on the balance sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
(17) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognized as
expenses in that period when the employees render service.
B. Pensions
(a) Defined contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognized as pension expenses on an
accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent of a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments.
(b) Defined benefit plans
i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount of
pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Company in current period or prior periods. The liability recognized is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit net obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest
rates of government bonds (at the balance sheet date) of a currency and term consistent
with those of the employment benefit obligations.
ii. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.
(18) Employee share-based payment
A. (a) For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are
recognized as compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity. The fair value of the equity instruments granted reflects the impact of market vesting
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conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service conditions that
are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest at each balance sheet date. Ultimately, the amount of compensation cost
recognized is based on the number of equity instruments that eventually vest.
(b) Whenever share options expire, the previous compensation costs recognized in “Capital
surplus – Share options” are reclassified as “Capital surplus – Additional paid-in capital”
B. Restricted stock:
(a) Restricted stocks issued to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted at the grant date subtracting the subscription price of NT$10 (in dollars), and are
recognized as compensation cost over the vesting period. The Company has set the date when
employees signed the agreement as the grant date of restricted stocks.
(b) For restricted stocks where those stocks do not restrict distribution of dividends to employees
and employees are not required to return the dividends received if they resign during the
vesting period, the Company recognizes the fair value of the dividends received by the
employees who are expected to resign during the vesting period as compensation cost at the
date of dividends declaration.
(c) For restricted stocks where employees have to pay to acquire those stocks, if employees
resign during the vesting period, they must return the stocks to the Company and the
Company must refund their payments on the stocks based on original subscription price, the
Company recognizes the payments from the employees who are expected to resign during
the vesting period as liabilities at the grant date, and recognizes the payments from the
employees who are expected to be eventually vested with the stocks in “Capital surplus –
restricted stocks”.
(19) Income tax
A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
items recognized directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity, respectively.
B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes
provisions where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
C. Deferred tax is recognized, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the balance
sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
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reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability
is settled.
D. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance sheet
date, unrecognized and recognized deferred tax assets are reassessed.
E. A deferred tax asset shall be recognized for the carry forward of unused tax credits resulting
from research and development expenditures and employees’ training costs to the extent that it
is possible that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilized.
(20) Common shares
A. Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
(21) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is comprised of up-front payments and milestone payments under
authorization collaboration and development contracts, and sales-based royalty payment under
royalty contract.
A. The Company’s authorization collaboration and development transactions generally authorizes
intellectual property rights of the drug products to pharmaceutical companies. Though the
Company will continuously provide research and development services on the drug products,
pharmaceutical companies could make use of the research and development outcome at any time.
Pharmaceutical companies pay a non-refundable up-front payment upon signing of the contracts,
and make milestone payments upon each milestone achieved. Based on the Company’s
assessment, the Company uses its proprietary drug delivery technologies to continue the research
and development related services, which are unique such that pharmaceutical companies would
have difficulty finding another service provider who offers the same services in terms of
continuing research and development on the authorized drug products. The authorization and
subsequent research and development services provided by the Company are bonded and highly
interrelated and therefore not distinct and as such are accounted for as one performance
obligation to be delivered over time. The revenue is recognized based on the transaction price,
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excluding variable considerations considered not achievable, and the stage of completion, which
is measured by the proportion of contract costs incurred for research and development services
as of the financial reporting date to the estimated total research and development costs for the
authorization collaboration and development contracts. As the Company’s inputs, including
costs of Contract Research Organizations, Contract Manufacture Organizations, and medicines,
which have direct relationship with the transfer of control of services to customers, the Company
uses the cost incurred method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation. The revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal of the cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The customer
pays at the time specified in the payment schedule. If the services rendered exceed the payment,
a contract asset is recognized. If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability
is recognized. A contract liability is recognized as revenue through the performance obligation
is satisfied over time.
B. The Company also entered into contracts with customers, where the Company is entitled to a
sales-based royalty in exchange for a license of manufacturing and the right to sell
pharmaceutical products. In accordance with the contracts, the Company will not undertake any
activities that will significantly affect the intellectual property to which the customer has rights.
The nature of the Company’s promise in granting a license is a promise to provide a right to use
the Company’s intellectual property and therefore the revenue is recognized when transferring
the license to a customer at a point in time. The Company recognizes revenue when the
performance obligation has been satisfied and the subsequent sale occurs.
C. Given that the period between the transfer of promised services to customers and payment by
customers exceed one year for authorization collaboration and development contracts, the
transaction price is adjusted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Company and its customers at contract inception. The
discount rate would reflect the credit characteristics of the Company receiving funding from
financial institution.
(22) Research and development costs
Research and development costs that do not meet the criteria of internally generated intangible assets
of IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” are expensed in the period in which it is incurred.
(23) Government grants
Government grants are recognized at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that
the Company will comply with any conditions attached to the grants and the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Company recognizes expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make critical judgements in
applying the Company’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates concerning
future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are continually evaluated
and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions and estimates have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:
(1) Critical judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies:
The Company provides authorization collaboration and development services to its customers, which
generally includes authorization of intellectual property rights of drug products to pharmaceutical
companies together with continuing research and development services, which pharmaceutical
companies can access and make use of the research outcome at any time. In determining the
performance obligations under authorization collaboration and development contracts, the Company
takes into account the guidance IFRS 15 par. 29:
Factors that indicate that an entity’s promise to transfer a good or service to a customer is separately
identifiable (in accordance with paragraph 27(b)) include, but are not limited to, the following:
a. The entity does not provide a significant service of integrating the good or service with other
goods or services promised in the contract into a bundle of goods or services that represent the
combined output for which the customer has contracted. In other words, the entity is not using
the good or service as an input to produce or deliver the combined output specified by the
customer.
b. The good or service does not significantly modify or customize another good or service promised
in the contract.
c. The good or service is not highly dependent on, or highly interrelated with, other goods or
services promised in the contract. For example, the fact that a customer could decide to not
purchase the good or service without significantly affecting the other promised goods or services
in the contract might indicate that the good or service is not highly dependent on, or highly
interrelated with, those other promised goods or services.
Based on the Company’s assessment, the Company uses its proprietary drug delivery technologies
to continue the research and development related services, which are unique, and based on the
intellectual property rights authorized and therefore, pharmaceutical companies would have
difficulty finding alternative service provider in offering the same services. In addition, the
authorization and subsequent research and development services provided by the Company are
bonded and highly interrelated and therefore not distinct and are identified as one performance
obligation to be delivered over time.
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(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Revenue recognition
The Company accounts for all the authorization and subsequent research and development services
as one performance obligation and recognizes revenue based on the transaction price and the stage
of completion, which is measured by the proportion of contract costs incurred for research and
development services as of the financial reporting date to the estimated total research and
development costs for the authorization collaboration and development contracts. The estimated total
research and development costs would be affected by the progress of research and development,
development of pharmaceutical products, collaboration with pharmaceutical companies, clinical
trials, etc. The Company reassesses the reasonableness of estimates periodically.
6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
$
50 $
50
786,793
513,161
404,400
$
786,843 $
917,611

Cash on hand
Checking and demand deposits
Time deposits

The Company transacts with a variety of financial institutions with high credit quality to disperse
credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.
(2) Financial assets at amortized cost

Item

December 31, 2018

Current items:
Time deposits with maturity over three months

$

December 31, 2017

307,150 $

-

Amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortized cost are listed below:
2018
2017
$
380 $
Interest income
(3) Accounts receivable

December 31, 2018
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

$
(
$

December 31, 2017

27,475 $
18,132) (
9,343 $

26,754
18,132)
8,622

A. The Company does not hold any collateral as security.
B. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired is as follows:
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December 31, 2018
$
9,343
18,132
$
27,475

Up to 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 181 days

December 31, 2017
$
8,622
18,132
$
26,754

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.
C. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable is provided in Not 12(2).
(4) Prepayments
Net input VAT
Prepaid repair expense
Prepaid insurance expense
Prepaid handling charges
Prepaid expense for medical research
Prepaid service charges
Others

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

$

$

40,614
1,580
1,564
1,294
3
11,011
56,066

$

36,103
7,042
1,064
1,352
1,499
15,742
7,971
70,773

$

(5) Investments accounted for under equity method

2018
At January 1
Addition of investments accounted for under
equity method
Share of profit of investments accounted for
under equity method
Changes in other equity
At December 31

$

2017
75,954

$

-

(
$

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, B.V.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited
TLC Biopharmaceuticals Pty Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals Japan Co., Ltd.

52,754
23,396

18,527
727) (
93,754 $

3,200
3,396)
75,954

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

$

$

$

46,963
1,599
3,713
37,995
3,484
93,754

$

42,762
1,400
3,485
25,135
3,172
75,954

Information about the subsidiaries is provided in Note 4(3) of the 2018 consolidated financial
statements.
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(6) Property, plant and equipment
A. The details of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land
At January 1, 2018
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

2018
Cost
Additions
Reclassifications
Transferred (Note)
Depreciation charges
Closing net book amount
At December 31, 2018
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

Buildings

Testing
equipment

Leasehold
assets

Office
equipment

Leasehold
improvements

Total

$

14,962

$

29,532 $

31,141

$

17,150 $

98,170 $

70,194 $

261,149

$

- (
14,962 $

5,360) (
24,172 $

19,384) (
11,757 $

11,253) (
5,897 $

23,680) (
74,490 $

51,508) (
18,686 $

111,185)
149,964

$

14,962 $
- (
14,962 $

24,172 $
656) (
23,516 $

11,757 $
34,802
9,114
143
4,752) (
51,064 $

(
$

74,490 $
7,679)
19,841) (
46,970 $

18,686 $
101
8,821) (
9,966 $

149,964
36,028
1,435
143
36,818)
150,752

$

14,962

$

29,532 $

72,719

$

16,624 $

50,013 $

70,295 $

254,145

$

- (
14,962 $

6,016) (
23,516 $

21,655) (
51,064 $

12,350) (
4,274 $

3,043) (
46,970 $

60,329) (
9,966 $

103,393)
150,752

$
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5,897
1,125
2,748)
4,274

$
(

Land
At January 1, 2017
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation
2017
Cost
Additions
Reclassifications
Transterred (Note)
Depreciation charges
Closing net book amount
At December 31, 2017
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

Testing
equipment

Buildings

Office
equipment

Leasehold
assets

Leasehold
improvements

Total

$

14,962 $

29,532 $

56,159 $

14,974 $

100,070 $

69,494 $

285,191

$

- (
14,962 $

4,703) (
24,829 $

29,644) (
26,515 $

8,443) (
6,531 $

30,239) (
69,831 $

39,103) (
30,391 $

112,132)
173,059

$

14,962 $
- (
14,962 $

24,829
657)
24,172

(
$

26,515 $
12,069
25,642)
1,256
2,441) (
11,757 $

6,531 $
2,773
3,407) (
5,897 $

69,831 $
25,642
20,983) (
74,490 $

30,391 $
701
12,406) (
18,686 $

173,059
15,543
1,256
39,894)
149,964

$

14,962 $

29,532 $

31,141 $

17,150 $

98,170 $

70,194 $

261,149

$

- (
14,962 $

5,360) (
24,172 $

19,384) (
11,757 $

11,253) (
5,897 $

23,680) (
74,490 $

51,508) (
18,686 $

111,185)
149,964

$

$
(

Note: Transferred from prepayments for equipment (shown as “Other non-current assets”).
B. Information about the investing activities that were partially paid by cash is provided in Note 6(26).
C. Information about the leasehold assets is provided in Note 6(11).
D. Information about the property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral is provided in Note 8.
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(7) Other non-current assets

Refundable deposits
Prepaid expense for medical research - non-current
Prepayments for equipment

December 31, 2018
$
17,832
20,000
27,942
$
65,774

December 31, 2017
$
25,816
20,000
923
$
46,739

December 31, 2018
$
46,000
1.95%~2.10%
$
-

December 31, 2017
$
46,000
1.95%~2.10%
$
-

(8) Short-term borrowings

Type of borrowings
Bank unsecured borrowings
Interest rate
Credit lines
(9) Other payables

December 31, 2018
Research expenses
$
161,690
Service expenses
48,050
Salaries and bonuses
30,927
Payables on machinery, equipment and intangible assets
3,677
Medical research expenses
2,707
Labor and health insurance
2,191
Repair expenses
676
17,629
Other accrued expenses
$
267,547

December 31, 2017
$
67,106
9,154
30,210
4,697
2,218
6,668
4,679
$
124,732

(10) Long-term borrowings

Type of borrowings
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Cathay Bank
-secured borrowings

Borrowing
period and
repayment term

Interest
rate

Collateral

Note 1

1.85%

Note 5

Note 2

1.85%

Note 5

28,900

Note 3 and 4

5.25%

Note 5

368,580
434,757
66,747)
368,010

Less: Current portion (shown as “Other current liabilities”)
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December 31, 2018
$

(
$

37,277

Type of borrowings
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings
Taiwan Cooperative Bank
-secured borrowings

Borrowing
period and
repayment term

Interest
rate

Collateral

Note 1

1.85%

Note 5

Note 2

1.85%

Note 5

Less: Current portion (shown as “Other current liabilities”)

December 31, 2017
$

(
$

37,750
32,300
70,050
3,873)
66,177

Note 1: The Company entered into a long-term loan contract with Taiwan Cooperative Bank on
September 1, 2015 in the amount of $37,750. The contract period is from September 2015 to
September 2035. The interest is payable monthly for the first 3 years and payable monthly
along with the same amount of principal starting from the fourth year.
Note 2: The Company entered into a mid-term loan contract with Taiwan Cooperative Bank on
September 4, 2015 in the amount of $34,000. The contract period is from September 2015 to
September 2022. The interest is payable monthly for the first 2 years and payable semiannually along with 5% of the principal starting from September 2017. The remaining 50%
of principal is required to be repaid in September 2022.
Note 3: The Company and its subsidiary, TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc. (“TLC US”) entered into a
mid-term loan contract with Cathay Bank on June 14, 2018 in the amount of US$12 million.
The contract period is from June 2018 to December 2020. The interest is payable monthly for
the first six months and payable monthly along with the same amount of principal starting
from January 2019. The Group had repaid the loan in full amount in November 2018.
Note 4: The Company and its subsidiary, TLC US entered into a mid-term loan contract with Cathay
Bank on December 27, 2018 in the amount of US$12 million. The contract period is from
December 2018 to June 2020. The interest is payable monthly for the first six months and
payable monthly along with the same amount of principal starting from July 2019.
Note 5: Information about the collateral provided for the loans is provided in Note 8.
A. According to the above two bank loan contracts with Taiwan Cooperative Bank, the Company is
restricted from paying cash dividends or other distributions on the common shares and Taiwan
Cooperative Bank retains the right in requesting the Company to raise paid-in capital or to
improve financial structure if certain conditions are met.
B. According to the above bank loan contract with Cathay Bank, if the Company and its subsidiary
violates any of the following covenants, Cathay Bank has the right to ask the Company and its
subsidiary to repay early the outstanding loan:
The Company fails to maintain a quick ratio of at least a minimum of 2.25 to 1.00 and adjusted
tangible net worth of not less than US$12 million as per its quarterly and yearly consolidated
financial statements. Quick ratio is a ratio of cash and cash equivalents plus net trade receivables
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to the amount of principal payments owing to Cathay Bank under this contract for the next 12
months plus all other current liabilities.
The Company was in compliance with all of the loan covenants as of December 31, 2018.
Accordingly, the entire debt balance for this loan has been classified as non-current liability at
December 31, 2018.
The bank loan contract with Cathay Bank also prohibits the Company from paying cash dividends
or making distributions on account of the Company’s capital stock without the consent of Cathay
Bank, subject to certain exceptions.
C. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the undrawn loan facilities amounted to $6,623 and $2,750,
respectively. The information about the Company’s liquidity risk is provided in Note 12(2)C(c).
(11) Finance lease liabilities
The Company leases testing equipment under finance lease. Future minimum lease payments and
their present values as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Total finance lease
liabilities
Current
Not later than one year (Note)
Non-current
Later than one year but not later
than two years (Note)

$

24,583 ($

583) $

24,000

$

24,198 (
48,781 ($

198)
781) $

24,000
48,000

Total finance lease
liabilities
Current
Not later than one year (Note)
Non-current
Later than one year but not later
than two years (Note)

December 31, 2018
Future finance
Present value of
charges
finance lease liabilities

December 31, 2017
Future finance
Present value of
charges
finance lease liabilities

$

48,466 ($

466) $

48,000

$

4,008 (
52,474 ($

8)
474) $

4,000
52,000

Note: Shown as “Other current liabilities” and “Other non-current liabilities”, respectively.
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(12) Pensions
A. Defined benefit plan
(a) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act,
covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor Pension
Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to continue to be
subject to the pension mechanism under the Labor Standards Act. Under the defined benefit
pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit
for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are
based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last
6 months prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of
the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund committee. Also, the
Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by
December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated
by the aforementioned method to the employees expected to qualify for retirement in the
following year, the Company will make contributions to cover the deficit by next March.
(b) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:
December 31,
2018
Present value of funded defined
benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit liability

$
(
$

2017
7,064 $
1,560) (
5,504 $

(c) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:
Present value of
defined benefit
Fair value of
plan assets
obligations

Year ended December 31, 2018
Balance at January 1
Interest expense/income

$

Remeasurements:
Change in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments
Pension fund contribution
Balance at December 31

$
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6,421
1,319)
5,102

Net defined
benefit liability

6,421 ($
83 (
6,504 (

1,319) $
17)
1,336)

5,102
66
5,168

162
398
560
7,064

33)
33)
191) (
1,560) $

162
365
527
191)
5,504

(
(
(
($

Present value of
defined benefit
obligations
Year ended December 31, 2017
Balance at January 1
Current service cost
Interest expense/income

$

Remeasurements:
Change in financial assumptions
(
Experience adjustments
Pension fund contribution
Balance at December 31

$

Fair value of
plan assets

Net defined
benefit liability

6,141 ($
59
105 (
6,305 (

1,086) $
18)
1,104)

5,055
59
87
5,201

312
196)
116
- (
6,421 ($

8 (
8
223) (
1,319) $

312
188)
124
223)
5,102

(d) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined
benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilization plan
and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor
Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilization for the Fund includes deposit in
domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-thecounter, or private placement equity securities, and investment in domestic or foreign real
estate securitization products, etc.). With regard to the utilization of the Fund, its minimum
earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the
earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest
rates offered by local banks. If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government
shall make payment for the deficit after being authorized by the Regulator. The Company has
no right to participate in managing and operating that fund and hence the Company is unable
to disclose the classification of plan asset fair value in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142.
The composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is given in
the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilization Report announced by the government.
(e) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2017
2018
1.10%
1.30%
2.00%
2.00%

Discount rate
Future salary increases
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Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial valuation in
accordance with the 5th version of Taiwan Standard Ordinary Experience Mortality Tables.
The present value of defined benefit obligation is affected whenever there is change in main
actuarial assumption. The sensitivity analysis is as follows:
Future salary increases
Discount rate
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%
December 31, 2018

Effect on present value of
defined benefit
obligations

($

201)

$

209

$

189

($

183)

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%
December 31, 2017
Effect on present value of
defined benefit
obligations

($

197)

$

205

$

186

($

181)

The sensitivity analysis above was arrived at based on the assumption that other conditions
remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once. The
method of analyzing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the
balance sheet are the same.
(f) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plan of the Company for the year ending
December 31, 2019 is $194.
(g) As of December 31, 2018, the weighted average duration of that retirement plan is 15 years.
The analysis of timing of the future pension payment is as follows:

$

Within 1 year
1-2 year(s)
2-5 years
6-10 years

$

462
2,753
3,215

B. Defined contribution plans
Effective July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution pension plan (the
“New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering all regular employees with R.O.C.
nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6% of
the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the
Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon
termination of employment. The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plan of the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $8,843 and $8,676, respectively.

222

(13) Share-based payment
A. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s equity-settled share-based
payment arrangements were as follows:

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

Quantity
granted
Contract
Grant date (in thousands) period
Vesting conditions
2012.05.08
62.8 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2013.11.14
883.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2014.03.20
153.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2014.08.15
82.3 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2015.02.26
1102.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2015.04.30
16.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2015.05.04
35.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2015.07.30
50.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2015.10.29
180.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2016.02.25
1391.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2016.08.11
140.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2016.11.03
73.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2018.06.29
1320.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
2018.07.02
65.0 5 years Gradually vested after 2 years
service (Note 1)
Service and performance
2014.08.15
307.0 3 years (Note 3)

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

2014.11.14

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

2017.11.16

500.0 3 years

(Note 4)

Restricted stocks to
employees (Note 2)

2018.07.02

50.0 3 years

(Note 4)

Type of
arrangement
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options
Employee stock options

Service and performance
43.0 3 years (Note 3)

(Note 1) Employees with 2 year service are entitled to 50%; after the 2 year service, the ratio will
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increase by 1/48 every month for the following 24 months; and employees with 4 year
service are entitled to 100%.
(Note 2) The restricted stocks issued by the Company cannot be transferred within the vesting
period, but voting rights and dividend rights are not restricted on these stocks.
Employees are required to return the stocks but not required to return the dividends
received if they resign during the vesting period.
(Note 3) For the employees who are currently working in the Company and whose services have
reached 1 year, 2 years and 3 years while achieving targeted performance, which are
mainly based on the progress of research and development projects, and they have made
certain contribution. The applicable accumulated maximum vested share ratio is 30%,
60% and 100%, respectively.
(Note 4) For the employees who are currently working in the Company and whose services have
reached 1 year, 2 years and 3 years without violating the terms of employment agreement
entered between the Company and employees, they are entitled to 20%, 30% and 50%,
respectively.
B. Details of the share-based payment arrangements are as follows:
(a) Employee stock options
2018

Stock options
Options outstanding at
beginning of the year
Options granted
Options expired
Options forfeited
Options outstanding at
end of the year
Options exercisable at
end of the year
Options permitted but
not yet outstanding at
end of the year

2017

WeightedWeightedaverage
average
No. of units exercise price No. of units exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
3,513 $
239
4,168 $
231

(
(

1,385
831)
338)

101
379
196 (

3,729

152

3,513

239

1,957

188

1,844

301

415

-

-

-

224

655)
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(b) Restricted stocks to employees

At January 1
Granted for the year (Note 1)
Expired for the year (Note 2)
Vested/restrictions removed for the year
At December 31

2018
2017
Shares (in thousands) Shares (in thousands)
500
111
50
500
(
35) (
31)
(
93) (
80)
422
500

(Note 1): For the restricted stocks granted with the compensation cost accounted for using
the fair value method, the fair values on the grant date are calculated based on the
closing price on the grant date subtracting the subscription price of $10 (in dollars).
(Note 2): Please refer to Note 6(15)D.
C. No employee stock options were exercised for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
D. The expiry date and exercise price of stock options outstanding at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

Exercise price
Quantity
(in dollars) (in thousands)
$
249.7
119.0
191.7
52.0
227.3
820.0
208.4
15.0
208.4
35.0
140.8
38.0
134.7
138.0
150.5
1,063.0
123.7
28.0
118.0
61.0
99.2
1,295.0
65.0
101.2
3,729.0

December 31, 2018
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
at end of year
at end of year
Remaining
contractual Exercise price
Quantity
Exercise price
life (years)
(in dollars)
(in thousands)
(in dollars)
0.22 $
249.7
119.0 $
249.7
0.62
191.7
52.0
191.7
1.16
227.3
787.0
227.3
1.33
208.4
14.0
208.4
1.34
208.4
31.0
208.4
1.58
140.8
33.0
140.8
1.83
134.7
109.0
134.7
2.15
150.5
758.0
150.5
2.61
123.7
16.0
123.7
2.84
118.0
38.0
118.0
4.49
99.2
4.50
101.2
1,957.0
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Exercise price
Quantity
(in dollars) (in thousands)
$
379
831.4
272
150.2
206
59.7
246.5
954.7
225
16.0
225
35.0
148
38.0
141
138.0
159
1,148.0
128.5
69.0
73.0
122
3,513.0

December 31, 2017
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
at end of year
at end of year
Remaining
contractual Exercise price
Quantity
Exercise price
life (years)
(in dollars)
(in thousands)
(in dollars)
0.87 $
379
831.4 $
379
1.22
272
142.0
272
1.62
206
51.0
206
2.16
246.5
688.3
246.5
2.33
225
10.7
225
2.34
225
22.6
225
2.58
148
23.0
148
2.83
141
75.0
141
3.15
159
3.61
128.5
3.84
122
1,844.0

E. The fair value of stock options granted on grant date is measured using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Relevant information is as follows:
Employee stock options
Grant date
Dividend yield rate
Exercise price volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life (years)
Per share exercise price (in dollars)
Weighted average stock options
fair value (in dollars)

June 29, 2018

July 2 , 2018

43.59%~44.04%
0.65%~0.69%
3.5~4.5
$100.5

43.60%~44.03%
0.65%~0.70%
3.5~4.5
$102.5

$33~$37

$33~$38

F. Expenses incurred on share-based payment transactions are shown below:
Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
$
41,386 $
Equity-settled

57,149

(14) Provisions (decommissioning liabilities)
2018
At January 1
Used during the year
At December 31

$
$
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2017
6,922 $
- (
6,922 $

6,996
74)
6,922

Analysis of total provisions are shown below:

December 31, 2018
$
6,922

Non-current

December 31, 2017
$
6,922

In accordance with the requirements specified in the agreements, the Company bears the obligation
for the costs of dismantling, removing the asset and restoring the site of its rented office in the future.
A provision is recognized for the present value of costs to be incurred for dismantling, removing the
asset and restoring the site. It is expected that the provision will be used in 1~4 years.
(15) Common share
A. As of December 31, 2018, the Company’s authorized capital was $2,000,000, and the paid-in
capital was $640,451, with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds from shares
issued have been collected.
Movements in the number of the Company’s common shares outstanding are as follows (Unit:
thousand shares):

2018
At January 1
Capital increase - issuance of American
Depositary shares
Issuance of employee restricted stocks
Cacellation of employee restricted stocks
At December 31

(

2017
56,199

55,730

7,831

-

50
35) (
64,045

500
31)
56,199

B. To increase the Company’s working capital, the stockholders at their extraordinary stockholders’
meeting on March 10, 2011 adopted a resolution to raise additional cash through private
placement with the effective date set on March 25, 2011. The maximum number of shares to be
issued through the private placement was 4,711 thousand shares at a subscription price of $42.45
(in dollars) per share. The amount of capital raised through the private placement was $200,000
which had been registered. Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of the ROC, the common
shares raised through the private placement are subject to certain transfer restrictions and cannot
be listed on the stock exchange until three years after they have been issued and have applied for
retroactive handling of public issuance procedures. Other than these restrictions, the rights and
obligations of the common shares raised through the private placement are the same as other
issued common shares.
C. On February 17, 2018 (February 16, 2018 Eastern time in the United States), the Company filed
the registration statement, Form F-1, with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
for the initial public offering in the United States of its American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”)
representing shares of ordinary shares. The registration statement for listing its ADSs in the
Nasdaq Global Market was declared effective by the SEC, and the Company held the initial
public offering of its ADSs on November 21, 2018.
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The actual units of ADSs for this offering were 3,915,550 and each ADS represents 2 of the
Company's ordinary shares, which in total represents 7,831,100 ordinary shares. The offering
price per ADS was US$5.8 (in dollar), equivalent to a price per ordinary share of $89.32 (in
dollar). The payment of this fundraising was fully collected as of November 27, 2018, and the
record date for this capital increase was November 27, 2018.
The terms of ADS are as follows:
(a) Voting rights
ADSs holders may, pursuant to the Depositary Agreement and the relevant laws and
regulations of the R.O.C., exercise the voting rights pertaining to the underlying common
shares represented by the ADSs.
(b) Dividends, stock warrants and other rights
ADSs holders and common shareholders are all entitled to receive dividends. The Depositary
may issue new ADSs in proportion to ADSs holding ratios or raise the number of shares of
common stock represented by each unit of ADSs or sell stock dividends on behalf of ADSs
holders and distribute proceeds to them in proportion to their ADSs holding ratios.
D. Employee restricted stocks
(a) The Board of Directors during its meeting on June 18, 2014 adopted a resolution to issue
employee restricted stocks (see Note 6(13)) with the effective date set on August 21, 2014
and November 20, 2014, respectively. The subscription price is $10 (in dollars) per share.
The employee restricted stocks issued are subject to certain restrictions on selling, pledging
as collateral, transfer, donation or other methods to dispose before their vesting conditions
are met. Other than these restrictions, the rights and obligations of these shares issued are the
same as other issued common shares.
(b) As 2,000 shares of employee restricted stocks distributed to certain employees in March 2017
did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted stocks, the
Board of Directors has resolved on May 11, 2017 to buy back the restricted stocks to retire
for capital reduction. The registration was completed on June 23, 2017.
(c) As 15,000 shares of employee restricted stocks distributed to certain employees in July and
August 2017 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted
stocks, the Board of Directors has resolved on August 10, 2017 to buy back the restricted
stocks to retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on September 7, 2017.
(d) As 14,000 shares of employee restricted stocks distributed to certain employees in September
and November 2017 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of
restricted stocks, the Board of Directors has resolved on November 1, 2017 to buy back the
restricted stocks to retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on December
8, 2017.
(e) As 25,000 shares of employee restricted stocks distributed to certain employees in June and
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July 2018 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted stocks,
the Board of Directors has resolved on August 1, 2018 to buy back the restricted stocks to
retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on August 29, 2018.
(f) As 10,000 shares of employee restricted stocks distributed to certain employees in November
2018 did not meet the vesting conditions in accordance with the terms of restricted stocks,
the Board of Directors has resolved on October 31, 2018 to buy back the restricted stocks to
retire for capital reduction. The registration was completed on January 3, 2019.
(g) The stockholders at their annually stockholders’ meeting on May 31, 2017 adopted a
resolution to issue employee restricted stocks (see Note 6(13)) with the effective date set on
November 16, 2017 and July 2, 2018. The subscription price is NT$10 (in dollars)) per share.
The employee restricted stocks issued are subject to certain restrictions on selling, pledging
as collateral, transfer, donation or other methods to dispose before their vesting conditions
are met. Other than these restrictions, the rights and obligations of these shares issued are the
same as other issued common shares.
(16) Capital surplus
Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital reserve arising from paid-in capital in excess of par
value on issuance of common shares and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the
Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act requires that
the amount of capital surplus to be capitalized mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the paidin capital each year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless the legal
reserve is insufficient.
(17) Accumulated deficit
A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current earnings, if any, shall be distributed
in the following order:
(a) Payment of taxes and duties;
(b) Cover prior years’ accumulated deficit, if any;
(c) After deducting items a and b, set aside 10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve;
(d) Appropriate or reverse special reserve in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations,

if necessary; and
(e) After deducting items a to d, the remainder, if any, to be retained or to be appropriated shall
be resolved by the shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting.
B. The Company’s dividend policy is summarized below:
As the Company operates in a volatile business environment and is in the growth stage, the
residual dividend policy is adopted taking into consideration the Company’s financial structure,
operating results and future expansion plans. According to the dividend policy adopted by the
Board of Directors, cash dividends shall account for at least 10% of the total dividends distributed.
C. Under the R.O.C. Company Act, when the accumulated deficit exceeds 50% of the capital, the
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directors should convene a meeting of the shareholders and report the situation.
D. The shareholders during their meeting on June 26, 2018 and May 31, 2017 adopted a resolution
to use capital surplus amounting to $874,086 and $824,662 to cover accumulated deficit,
respectively.
Information on the above as proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the shareholders
will be posted in the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock
Exchange.
E. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit. Therefore, the earnings
distribution information disclosure is not applicable.
F. For the information relating to employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration, please
refer to Note 6(23).
(18) Operating revenue

Years ended December 31,2018
$
62,324

Royalty revenue
A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point
in time in the following types:

Authorization
collaboration and
development revenue

Year ended December 31,2018 Royalty revenue
Timimg of revenue recognition
At a point in time
$
52,100 $
Over time
$
52,100 $
Total

- $
10,224
10,224 $

Total
52,100
10,224
62,324

B. Contract assets and liabilities
The Company has recognized the following revenue-related contract assets:
December 31, 2018
Contract assets- authorization
$
2,283
collaboration and evelopment revenue
(a) Revenue recognized that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of
the year.

Year ended
December 31, 2018
Revenue recognized that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the year
Authorization collarboration and development contracts
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$

7,941

(b) Unfulfilled long-term authorization collaboration and development contracts
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-term authorization
collaboration and development contracts that are partially unsatisfied as of December 31,
2018 amounted to $37,716. Considering the progress of research and development,
management expects that the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts
amounting to $37,716 as of December 31, 2018 will be recognized as revenue in the next
three years.
C. Related disclosures in relation to operating revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 are
provided in Note 12(5)B.
D. Authorization collaboration and development revenue is the revenue arising from authorization
collaboration and development of generic drugs. The details are as follows:
In December 2013, the Company entered into a license and collaboration agreement with
Sandoz AG. (“Sandoz”) for the development and commercialization of products in Europe and
in the USA. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company received an upfront, nonrefundable payment of US$0.1 million in January 2014, and aggregated milestone payments of
US$2.275 million related to the Europe submission in March and April 2014, and January 2015,
respectively.
Under IFRS 15, the revenue, based on the proportion of transaction price, is recognized on the
basis of costs incurred relative to the total expected costs of the performance obligation. Once
the new drug is launched in the market, a royalty fee will be received by the Company, which
is equal to an agreed upon percentage of net sales. The Company will recognize performancebased milestone payment revenue upon entering the local market in Europe and in the USA, and
upon achieving a certain net sales volume and market position within five years.
E. The details of Royalty payment revenue are as follows:
(a) The Company granted TTY Biopharm Company Limited (TTY) the exclusive right in
Taiwan to produce and promote LIPO-DOX, a medicinal product developed by the
Company. Under the contract, royalty payments are based on 12% of the net product sales.
(b) The Company authorizes Yung Shin Pharm. Ind. Co., Ltd. (“YSP”) the exclusive right in
Taiwan to produce and promote generic drugs. Under the contract, the Company will receive
a royalty fee based on a certain percentage of the net sales.
(19) Other income
Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
Interest income
Government subsidy income (Note)
Others

$

$

2,398
7,615
5,376
15,389

$

$

5,051
14,206
6,901
26,158

Note: The Company has entered into contracts of “A phase IIa trial of lipid-based investigational
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drug TLC399 in the subjects with macular edema due to retinal vein occlusion in the United
States” and “A phase I/II trial of lipid-based, sustained release investigational drug TLC399
(ProDex®) for treating macular edema due to retinal vein occlusion” with the Institute for
Information Industry in 2017 and 2014, respectively. The Company has accrued government
subsidy income in accordance with the progress of the plan. The aforesaid subsidy plan has
recognized income of $7,615 and $14,206 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has not received government subsidy
of $2,661 (shown as “Other receivables”).
(20) Other gains and losses

Net currency exchange (loss) gain
Gain on disposed of property plant
and equipment
Other loss

($

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
2,780) $
1,435

(
($

2,677
-

310) (
1,655) $

41)
2,636

(21) Finance costs
Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
Bank borrowings
Finance lease liabilities

$

9,379
507
9,886

$

$

2,255
1,130
3,385

$

(22) Expenses by nature (Shown as “Operating expenses”)

$
$
$

Employee benefit expense
Depreciation charges
Amortization charges

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
276,354
271,019 $
36,818 $
39,894
5,345 $
5,468

(23) Employee benefit expense

Years ended December 31,
2018
Wages and salaries
Share-based payment compensation
costs
Labor and health insurance fees
Pension costs
Other personnel expenses
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2017

$

199,579

$

187,532

$

41,386
13,977
8,910
7,167
271,019 $

57,149
13,834
8,822
9,017
276,354

A. According to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit of the
current year, after covering accumulated deficit, shall be distributed as employees’ compensation
and directors’ remuneration. The ratio shall be 2%~8% for employees’ compensation and shall
not be higher than 2% for directors’ remuneration.
B. Through December 31, 2018, the Company had accumulated deficits and did not accrue
employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration.
Information about the appropriation of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration by
the Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation
Post System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
(24) Income tax
A. Income tax expense
Components of income tax expense:

Years ended December 31,
2018
$

Current/deferred income tax

2017
-

$

-

B. The Company had incurred net loss for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. As the
probability of deferred income tax assets caused by the temporary difference to offset the future
taxable income is low, deferred income tax assets are not recognized. Therefore, reconciliation
between income tax expense and accounting profit is not applicable.
C. Details of investment tax credits and unrecognized deferred income tax assets are as follows:

Qualifying items
Research and development
expenditure
Employees' development and
training

Qualifying items
Research and development
expenditure
Employees' development and
training

Unused tax
credits
$

358,394

December 31, 2018
Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets
$

72

Unused tax
credits
$

307,403
72

358,394
72

December 31, 2017
Unrecognized
deferred income tax assets
$

307,403
72

Final year tax
credits are due
Note
″

Final year tax
credits are due
Note
″

Note: In accordance with the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) Jing-Shou-Gong-Zi Letter
No. 10020409420 dated June 10, 2011 and Letter No. 10320407210 dated April 3, 2014,
the Company was approved as a biotech pharmaceuticals company. Accordingly, the
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Company and its shareholders are eligible for investment tax credits under the Statute for
Development of Biotech New Pharmaceuticals Industry. Relevant investment tax credits
can be used to offset against the Company’s income tax within four years from the year in
which the Company starts to have income tax payable.
D. Expiration dates of unused taxable loss and amounts of unrecognized deductible amount of the
Company are as follows:

December 31, 2018

Year incurred
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Amount filed/
assessed
$
136,642
196,215
212,903
187,946
407,816
632,283
649,799
792,388
832,622
918,113
$
4,966,727

Unrecognized
amount
Unused amount
(Note)
$
136,642 $
136,642
196,215
196,215
212,903
212,903
187,946
187,946
407,816
407,816
632,283
632,283
649,799
649,799
792,388
792,388
832,622
832,622
918,113
918,113
$
4,966,727 $
4,966,727

Expiry
year
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

Note: Unrecognized amount represents unused tax losses for which no deferred income tax
asset has been recognized.
December 31, 2017
Unrecognized
Amount filed/
amount
Expiry
assessed
Unused amount
(Note)
year
Year incurred
2008
$
200,442 $
200,442 $
200,442
2018
2009
136,642
136,642
136,642
2019
2010
196,215
196,215
196,215
2020
2011
212,903
212,903
212,903
2021
2012
187,946
187,946
187,946
2022
2013
407,816
407,816
407,816
2023
2014
632,283
632,283
632,283
2024
2015
649,799
649,799
649,799
2025
2016
792,388
792,388
792,388
2026
869,479
869,479
869,479
2027
2017
$
4,285,913 $
4,285,913 $
4,285,913
Note: Unrecognized amount represents unused tax losses for which no deferred income tax
asset has been recognized.
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E. The amounts of deductible temporary differences that were not recognized as deferred income
tax assets are as follows:
December 31, 2018
$
85,337

Deductible temporary differences

December 31, 2017
$
104,865

F. The Company’s income tax returns through 2016 have been assessed and approved by the Tax
Authority.

(25) Loss per share

Year ended December 31, 2018
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding Loss per share
(in dollars)
Amount after tax
( in thousands of shares)
Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company
Dilutive effect of common share
equivalents:
Employees' stock options
Restricted stocks

($

Diluted loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive
($
potential common shares

901,574)

-

901,574)
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62,719 ($

14.37)

62,719 ($

14.37)

(Note)
(Note)

Year ended December 31, 2017
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding Loss per share
Amount after tax
( in thousands of shares)
(in dollars)
Basic loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company
Dilutive effect of common share
equivalents:
Employees' stock options
Restricted stocks

($

55,489 ($

873,962)

-

15.75)

(Note)
(Note)

Diluted loss per share
Loss attributable to common
shareholders of the Company plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive
($
873,962)
55,489 ($
15.75)
potential common shares
Note: Employee stock options and employee restricted stocks have no dilutive effect for any period

due to the fact that the Company was in loss position for both periods presented.
(26) Supplemental cash flow information
Investing activities with partial cash payments

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(including transfers)
Add: Opening balance of payable on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Ending balance of prepayments for equipment
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
being transferred to intangible assets
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
being transferred to other expenses
Less: Ending balance of payable on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
Cash paid

236

$

(
(
$

36,171

$

16,799

27,942

1,229
922

-

227

780

-

3,303)
923) (
60,667 $

1,483)
17,694

Acquisition of intangible assets (including transfers)
Add: Opening balance of payable on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Less: Ending balance of payable on machinery,
equipment and intangible assets
Opening balance of prepayments for equipment
Cash paid

$

Years ended December 31,
2017
2018
3,537 $
5,933

(
$

-

1,495

374)
- (
3,163 $

227)
7,201

(27) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

At January 1,2018
Changes in cash flow from
financing activities
Net exchange differences
At Decenber 31,2018

Shortborrowings
liabilities
form
term
(inculding current (inculding current
financing
borrowings
portion)
portion)
activities
$ 46,000 $
70,050 $
52,000 $ 168,050
$ 46,000 $

364,107 (
600
434,757 $

4,000)
48,000 $

360,107
600
528,757

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names of related parties and relationship

Name of related parties

Relationship with the Company

Keelung Hong
George Yeh
TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals Pty Ltd.

The Company's Chairman
The Company's General Manager
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

(2) Significant transactions and balances with related parties
A. The Company’s Chairman provided guarantees for the Company’s long-term and short-term
borrowings with Taiwan Cooperative Bank.
B. The Company’s Chairman and General Manager provided guarantees for the Company’s shortterm borrowings with E.SUN Commercial Bank.
C. The Company’s Chairman provided guarantees to Taiwan Cooperative Bank for the Company’s
government grant in relation to the research and development program from the Institute of
Information Industry.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, details of loans are described in Notes 6(8) and 6(10).
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D. Operating expenses - research expenses
Years ended December 31,
2018
$

Subsidiaries

2017
123,250

$

121,234

The Company reimbursed subsidiaries for product research and development in according to
agreements.
E. Accrued expenses (shown as“Other payables”)

December 31, 2018
$

Subsidiaries

75,627

December 31, 2017
$

33,747

(28) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

$

Years ended December 31,
2018
2017
30,443 $
486
9,366

$

40,295

$

25,214
432
8,120
33,766

8. PLEDGED ASSETS
(1)
Assets pledged
Shown as “Property, plant and
equipment”
Land
Buildings

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017 Pledge purpose

$

$

14,962
23,516
38,478

$

$

14,962
24,172
39,134

Note
Note

Note: Provided as collateral for long-term borrowings with Taiwan Cooperative Bank.
(2) Pursuant to the bank loan contract entered between Cathay Bank and the Company and its subsidiary,
TLC US, on December 27, 2018, except for the Intellectual Property, including trademarks, patents,
copyrights, servicemarks, technology, trade secret, and etc., defined in the loan contract, all other
personal property, including tangible and intangible assets, of the Company and its subsidiary, TLC
US are pledged as collateral for borrowings. Cathay Bank constitutes a first priority security interest
in the personal property of the Company and its subsidiary, TLC US located in the United States and
does not constitute a first priority security interest in the personal property of the Company located
outside of the United States.
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9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS
(1) Contingencies
Under certain special generic product agreements, the Company is required to have a certain market
supply capacity before the launch of the products in the market. Otherwise, the Company is obligated
to pay a certain amount as compensation.
(2) Commitments
In addition to the commitment mentioned in Note 6(10)A and B, the Company’s significant
commitment are as follows:
A. Capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred and are
cancellable without cause are as follows:
December 31, 2018
$
11,037

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2017
$
1,781

B. Operating lease commitments
The Company leases offices with lease terms between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease terms at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments are as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than
five years

December 31, 2018
$
23,927

December 31, 2017
$
25,231

30,284

56,921

$

54,211

$

82,152

C. The Company has outstanding commitments on purchase contracts for the research and
manufacturing of medicines which are cancelable without cause as follows:
December 31, 2017
December 31, 2018
$
120,707 $
31,577
D. The Company has outstanding commitments on research and development which are cancelable
without cause as follows:

December 31, 2018
$
603,178

December 31, 2017
$
478,977

E. The Company has signed a licensing agreement for technology transition with TWI
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. with maximum royalty charges of US$5,000 thousand according to the
R&D achievement. Once the new drug is launched in the market, the Company will pay a royalty
fee based on a certain percentage of the net product sales.
10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS
None.
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11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
None.
12. OTHERS
(1) Capital risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to improve the Company’s capital structure,
the Company may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt rate. The Company monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s gearing ratios are as follows:

December 31, 2018
$
809,965
$
640,451
126.47%

Total debt
Total capital
Debt ratio

December 31, 2017
$
306,376
$
561,990
54.52%

(2) Financial instruments
A. Financial instruments by category

December 31,
2018
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost/ loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
$
Current financial assets at amortized cost
Accounts receivables, net
Other receivables
Refundable deposits
$

2017

786,843
307,150
9,343
3,053
17,832
1,124,221

$

$

917,611
8,622
17,743
25,816
969,792

December 31,
2018
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Short-term borrowings
$
Other payables
Financial lease liabilities (including current portion)
Long-term borrowings (including current portion)
$
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46,000
267,547
48,000
434,757
796,304

2017

$

$

46,000
124,732
52,000
70,050
292,782

B. Financial risk management policies
(a) The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Company adopts overall risk management
program and control system to identify all financial risks and seeks to control and balance
potential adverse effects from those aforesaid financial risks.
(b) The goal of market risk management is to appropriately consider the impacts of economic
environment, competition and market value risk, in order to achieve the best risk position,
to maintain appropriate liquidity position and to centrally manage all market risks.
(c) To meet its risk management objectives, the Company’s procedure of hedge focus on market
risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
C. Significant financial risks and degree of financial risks
(a) Market risk
i. Foreign exchange risk
(i) The Company’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s functional currency: NTD). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the
exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

December 31, 2018
(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Foreign currency
amount
(in thousands)

$

Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
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Book value
(NTD)
(in thousands)

Exchange
rate

29,933

30.715

$

919,392

1,529
1,754

30.715
21.665

46,963
38,000

17,886
2,544

30.715
21.665

549,368
55,116

December 31, 2017
(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD

Foreign currency
amount
(in thousands)

$

Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Book value
(NTD)
(in thousands)

Exchange
rate

575

29.76

$

17,112

1,437
1,084

29.76
23.705

42,762
25,135

741
1,466

29.76
23.705

22,052
34,752

(ii) Analysis of foreign currency market risk arising from significant foreign exchange
variation:

(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Year ended December 31, 2018
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on other
Effect on profit
comprehensive
Extent of
or loss
income
(in thousands)
(in thousands)
variation

1%
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$

9,194

$

-

1%
1%

-

470
380

1%
1%

5,494
551

-

(Foreign currency:
functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
Non-monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
AUD : NTD

Year ended December 31, 2017
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on other
Effect on profit
comprehensive
Extent of
or loss
income
(in thousands)
(in thousands)
variation

1%

$

171

$

-

1%
1%

-

428
251

1%
1%

221
348

-

(iii) The unrealized exchange gain arising from significant foreign exchange variation on
the monetary items held by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 amounted to $24 and $320, respectively.
ii. Cash flow and fair value Interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at floating rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s borrowings at
floating interest rate were denominated in the NT dollars.
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, if interest rates had been 0.2% higher/lower with all
other conditions held constant, net loss for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
would have been $653 and $232 higher/lower, respectively. The main factor is that the
floating-rate borrowings resulted in changes in interest expense.
(b) Credit risk
i. Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Company arising from cash and
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as default by the customers on the
contract obligations. The main factor is that counterparties could not repay in full the
accounts receivable based on the agreed terms.
ii. The Company manages their credit risk taking into consideration the entire group’s
concern. For banks and financial institutions, only financial institutions with a good credit
rating are accepted. According to the Company’s credit policy, each entity in the group is
responsible for managing and analyzing the credit risk for each of their new customers
before entering into license contracts. Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of
the customers, taking into account their financial positions, past experience and other
factors.
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iii. The default occurs when the contract payments are past due based on the agreed terms.
iv. The Company classifies customers’ accounts receivable in accordance with credit rating
of customers. The Company applies the simplified approach to estimate expected credit
loss under the provision matrix basis
v. The Company wrote off the financial assets, which cannot be reasonably expected to be
recovered, after initiating recourse procedures. However, the Company will continue
executing the recourse procedures to secure their rights.
vi. The Company assesses the expected credit losses based on the payment terms stipulated
in the contracts with the customers. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
Except for loss allowance of $18,132 provided for the delayed payment from one
customer, the Company has not identified impairments on other trade receivables. The
Company has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
and contract assets is very low, and the loss allowance for the trade receivables and
contract assets recognized is immaterial as of December 31, 2018.
vii. Movements in relation to the Company applying the simplified approach to provide loss
allowance for accounts receivable are as follows:

2018
Accaunts receivable
At January 1_IAS 39
Adjustments under new standards
At January 1_IFRS 9
Provision for impairment
At December 31

$

$

18,132 $
18,132
18,132 $

Contract assets
-

viii. Credit risk information for the Year ended December 31, 2017 is provided in Note 12(4).
(c) Liquidity risk
i. Cash flow forecasting is performed by Company treasury. Company treasury monitors
rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs.
ii. The table below analyzes the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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December 31, 2018

Short-term borrowings
Other payables
Finance lease liabilities
(including current portion)
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion)

Between 1 Between 2 Between 3
Over
1 year
and 2 years and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
$ 46,761 $
- $
- $
- $
267,547
24,583

24,198

-

-

-

82,864

322,928

8,351

24,210

30,429

December 31, 2017

Short-term borrowings
Other payables
Finance lease liabilities
(including current portion)
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion)

Between 1 Between 2 Between 3
Over
1 year and 2 years and 3 years and 5 years 5 years
$ 46,062 $
- $
- $
- $
124,732
48,466

4,008

-

-

-

5,137

6,493

6,430

27,901

33,019

(3) Fair value estimation
A. The Company had no financial instruments measured at fair value, by valuation method, as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.
B. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are approximate to their fair values, including cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at amortized cost, receivables, refundable deposits, short-term borrowings, longterm borrowings (including current portion), payables, and finance lease liabilities (including
current portion).
(4) Effects on initial application of IFRS 9 and information on application of IAS 39 for the year
ended December 31, 2017
A. The significant accounting policies of accounts receivable, other receivables, and impairment of
financial assets adopted in 2017 and for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(a) Accounts receivable and other receivables
Accounts receivable are claims resulting from the sale of goods or services. Other receivables
are those arising from transactions other than the sale of goods or services. Accounts
receivable and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
However, short-term accounts receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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(b) Impairment of financial assets
i. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
Company of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
ii. The criteria that the Company uses to determine whether there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss is as follows:
(i) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
(ii) A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
(iii) The Company, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granted the borrower a concession that a lender would not otherwise

consider;
(iv) It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization;
(v) Information about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in
the technology, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates,
and indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not be
recovered.
iii. When the Company assesses that there has been objective evidence of impairment and an
impairment loss has occurred on financial assets measured at amortized cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted using the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, and is recognized in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its amortized cost that would have been at the date of reversal
had the impairment loss not been recognized previously. Impairment loss is recognized and
reversed by adjusting the carrying amount of the asset through the use of an impairment
allowance account.
B. The reconciliation of allowance for impairment and provision from December 31, 2017, as
these are impaired under IAS 39, to January 1, 2018, as these are expected to be impaired
under IFRS 9, are as follows:

Accouns receivable
$
18,132
$
18,132

IAS 39
Impairment loss adjustment
IFRS 9
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C. Credit risk information for the year ended December 31, 2017 are as follows:
(a) Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Company arising from default by the
customers on the contract obligations. According to the Company’s credit policy, each entity
in the Company is responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their
new customers before signing the license agreement. Internal risk control assesses the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. Credit risk arises from cash and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
as well as credit exposures to corporate pharmaceutical companies, including outstanding
receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only financial institutions with a good credit
rating are accepted.
(b) For the year ended December 31, 2017, no credit limits were exceeded during the reporting
period, and management does not expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.
(c) The Company’s accounts receivable that were neither past due nor impaired were fully
performing in line with the credit standards prescribed based on counterparties’ industrial
characteristics, scale of business and profitability. As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s
accounts receivable that were neither past due nor impaired amounted to $8,622. The
Company deals with counterparties with good credit reputation and has policies in place to
ensure that customers have an appropriate credit history when signing the contracts.
(d) The ageing analysis of financial assets that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

December 31, 2017
Accounts receivable
Up to 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

$

-

$
D. Movement analysis of accounts receivable that were impaired is as follows:

(a) As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s accounts receivable that were individually
determined to be impaired amounted to $18,132.
(b) Movements on the Company’s provision for impairment of accounts receivable for the year
ended December 2017 are as follows:

At January 1
Provision for impairment
At December 31

Individually assessed Collectively assessed
for impairment
for impairment
$
9,067 $
- $
9,065
$
18,132 $
- $
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Total
9,067
9,065
18,132

(5) Effects of initial application of IFRS 15 and information on application of IAS 11 and IAS 18 for
the year ended December 31, 2017
A. The significant accounting policies applied on revenue recognition for the year ended December
31, 2017 are as follows:
(a) Out-licensing development collaboration revenue includes up-front fees and milestone
payments. Upfront fees are recognized in a reasonable and systematic approach over the
development period, and is not recognized in full, if the authorization contract of the
Company does not meet all of the following criteria
The amount of royalty is fixed or non-refundable.
The contract is irrevocable.
Relevant rights may be at the authorized party’s own disposition.
The party granting authority has no further obligations after passing on the rights to the
authorized party.
Milestone payments are contractual payments due to the Company upon the achievement of

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

certain additional events. The entire milestone payment due is recognized as revenue, in full,
at the time the milestone set forth in the respective agreements has been achieved and the
amount is reasonably assured of collection.
(b) Royalty revenues are recognized based on the substance of contracts when the earning process
is substantially completed and are realized or realizable, which is in the same period that the
licensee makes a qualifying sale of licensed products.
B. The revenue recognized by using above accounting policies for the year ended December 31,
2017 are as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2017
$
49,635

Royalty revenue

C. The effects and description of current balance sheets and comprehensive income statements if the
Company continues adopting previous accounting policies as of and for the year ended December
31, 2018 are as follows:

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2018

Balance sheet items
Contract assets
Operating revenue
Accumulated deficit

Balance by using
Description
IFRS 15
Note
$
2,283
Note
$
10,224
Note
$
7,941

Balance by using
previous
accounting
policies
$
$
$
-

Effects from
chages in
accounting policies
$
2,283
$
10,224
$
7,941

Note：The Company accounts for all the authorization and subsequent research and development
services provided by the Company as one performance obligation, and recognizes
revenue based on the transaction price, and the stage of completion, which is measured
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by the proportion of contract costs incurred for research and development services
performed as of the financial reporting date to the estimated total research and
development costs for the authorization collaboration and development contracts.
13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
(1) Significant transactions information
A. Loans to others: None.
B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: None.
C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): None.
D. Aggregate purchases or sales of the same securities reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more: None.
E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more: None.
H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
I. Derivative financial instruments undertaken during the year ended December 31, 2018: None.
J. Significant inter-company transactions during the year ended December 31, 2018: Please refer
to table 1.
(2) Information on investees
Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
China): Please refer to table 2.
(3) Information on investments in Mainland China
A. Basic information：Please refer to table 3.
B. Significant transactions conducted with investees in Mainland China directly or indirectly
through other companies in the third areas: Please refer to table 1.
14. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Significant inter-company transactions
Year ended December 31, 2018
Table 1

Expressed in thousands of NTD
Transaction
Percentage of
total
operating

Number
(Note 1)

Relationship
Company name

Amount

Counterparty

(Note 2)

General ledger account

revenues or total assets

(Note 5)
$

Transaction terms

(Note 3)

74,586

(Note 4)

119.67%

1

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2

Operating revenue

2

TLC Biopharmaceuticals Japan Co., Ltd.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2

Operating revenue

2,961

(Note 4)

4.75%

3

TLC Biopharmaceuticals (Shanghai) Limited

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2

Operating revenue

4,370

(Note 4)

7.01%

4

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Pty Ltd.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2

Operating revenue

40,245

(Note 4)

64.57%

1

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2

Accounts receivable

34,070

(Note 4)

2.40%

4

TLC Biopharmaceuticals, Pty Ltd.

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

2

Accounts receivable

38,347

(Note 4)

2.70%

Note 1: The numbers filled in for the transaction company in respect of inter-company transactions are as follows:
(1) Parent company is ‘0’.
(2) The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from ‘1’.
Note 2: Relationship between transaction company and counterparty is classified into the following three categories:
(1) Parent company to subsidiary.
(2) Subsidiary to parent company.
(3) Subsidiary to subsidiary.
Note 3: Regarding percentage of transaction amount to total operating revenues or total assets, it is computed based on period-end balance of transaction to
total assets for balance sheet accounts and based on accumulated transaction amount for the period to total operating revenues for income statement accounts.
Note 4: Transaction items follow the agreement.
Note 5: Only related party transactions in excess of NT$1 million are disclosed.
Note 6: The above transactions between the parent company and its subsidiaries had been eliminated when preparing consolidated financial statements. The disclosure information is for reference only.
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Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investee in Mainland China)
Year ended December 31, 2018
Table 2

Expressed in thousands of NTD

Initial investment amount

Investor

Investee

Taiwan Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Inc.

Taiwan Liposome
Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC Biopharmaceuticals
B.V.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K.) Limited

Taiwan Liposome
Company, Ltd.
Taiwan Liposome
Company, Ltd.

TLC Biopharmaceuticals,
Pty Ltd.
TLC Biopharmaceuticals
Japan Co., Ltd.

Location
USA

Main business activities
Research on new anti-cancer
drugs and biotechnology services $

Netherlands Technical authorization and
product development
Hong Kong Biotechnology services and
reinvestment
Australia
Japan

Technical authorization and
product development
Technical authorization and
product development

Balance as of
December
31, 2018
55,433

Shares held as of December 31, 2018

Balance as of
December
31, 2017
$

Number of shares

Ownership (%)

Book value

the Company for the
year ended
December 31, 2018

100%

4,410

4,410

1,000,000

100%

1,599

216

216

3,023

3,023

780,000

100%

3,713

274

274

23,399

23,399

1,000,000

100%

37,995

15,086

15,086

2,670

2,670

1,000

100%

3,484

139

139

251

$

year ended
December 31,
2018

3,100,000
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46,963

Investment income (loss)
recognized by

55,433

Note: All the transactions with subsidiaries had been eliminated when preparing consolidated financial statements.

$

Income of the
investee for the

5,504

$

2,812

Footnote

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.
Information on investments in Mainland China
Year ended December 31, 2018
Table 3

Expressed in thousands of NTD

Investee in

Main business

Mainland China

activities

TLC
Consulting of
Biopharmaceuticals, technological
(Shanghai) Limited service of
medication

Paid-in capital
$

2,236

Accumulated

Amount remitted from Taiwan

Accumulated

amount of

to Mainland China/

amount of

remittance from

Amount remitted from Taiwan to Mainland

remittance from

Income of

$

2,243

$

2,243

amount of

Ownership

recognized by the

investments

investment
income remitted

Taiwan to

China/amount remitted back to Taiwan for

Taiwan to

investee for the

held by the

Company for the

in Mainland

Mainland China

the year ended December 31, 2018

Mainland China

year

Company

year ended

China as of

back to Taiwan

method

as of January 1,

Remitted to Mainland

Remitted back to

as of December

ended December

(direct or

December 31, 2018

December

through December

（Note 1）

2018

China

Taiwan

31, 2018

31, 2018

indirect)

(Note 2(2)B)

31, 2018

31, 2018

Reinvestment in
$
Mainland China
through third region
company (TLC
Biopharmaceuticals,
(H.K) Limited)

$

Accumulated

of

Investment

2,243

$

-

$

-

$

2,243

Note 1: Investment methods are classified into the following three categories:
(1) Directly invest in a company in Mainland China..
(2) Through investing in an existing company in the third area, which then invested in the investee in Mainland China.
(3) Others
Note 2: In the ‘Investment income (loss) recognised by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018’ column:
(1)It should be indicated if the investee was still in the incorporation arrangements and had not yet generated any profit during this period.
(2)Indicate the basis for investment income (loss) recognition in the number of one of the following three categories:
A.The financial statements were audited and attested by international accounting firm which has cooperative relationship with accounting firm in R.O.C.
B.The financial statements were audited and attested by R.O.C. parent company’s CPA.
C.Others (The financial statements were reviewed by R.O.C parent company's CPA)
Note 3: The numbers in this table are expressed in New Taiwan Dollars.
Investment
Accumulated
amount
amount of
approved by
Ceiling on
remittance
the Investment
investments in
from Taiwan to Commission of
Mainland China
Mainland
the Ministry of
imposed by the
China as of
Economic
Investment
December
Affairs
Commision of
Company name
31, 2018
(MOEA)(Note)
MOEA
Taiwan Liposome
Company

Book value
Investment income

401,517

(Note) The investment amount was approved by Jing-Shen-II-Zi No. 10300223010 of Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C.
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$

263

100

$

263

$

3,074

$

Footnote
-

Taiwan Liposome Company, Ltd.

Chairman of the Board: Keelung Hong

Address: 11F-1, No.3, Yuanqu St. Nangang District, Taipei City
Tel: 886-2- 2655-7377

